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Our purpose Financial highlights e Operational highlights
- Organic growth in AUM of 23% (£529 mitlion)
&;ﬁﬁﬁg:gf;g:::g:gem (AUM) N including contributions from all divisions across
] i the Group

£2,797m

+23%

2 Revenue, adjusted operating profit and dividend
growth of 124%, 237% and 50% respectively

Building a sustainable future
forall stakeholders

- Successfully integrated the FiM(Forestry) and
Livingbridge VC (Strategic Equity) businesses
in the year, capturing annualised synergies of
£1.0 miflion

]

6107
8102

Total core income
(Emillion for the year to 31 December) - Executed the Group's first international
forestry acquisition in Irefand on behalf of AXA

Investment Managers - Real Assets

£32.9m

]
X
oz I

Gresham House is a specialist ‘ We are creating an “asset to " asustainable future for all S124%

alternative asset management  ‘ covet”, for our shareholders, our stakeholders. - gomfbeted the f;rs‘l’ bgrreur"y sto':age e

business that is quoted on the clients and employees, by ' = evelopment sale to Gresham House Energy
N . 1 Gresh H e mal S Storage pic (GRID)with a net gain of £1.3 million

London Stock Exchange AIM delivering value through financial Srésham Hous nages

nd non-financial returns investments and co-investments

sustainable investment products, ! alongside high-quality service  throughits FCA-regulated
across real assets, public and rovision. Our commitment . investment management

international opportuniti
private equity, that omeet : to integrating sustainable k platform (Gresham House E]U 3°m international opportunities
the long-term objective s of | investment practices across Asset ﬂaqagement_)l onfbfehalf +257% -
clients and sharéholders. "our strategies makes anactive  Of institutions, family offices, : S - g
s > 3 ustainabiljty agenda
AN contribution to the sustainability - charities, endowments and Rl 'ty ag
Strateglc Report E 3 private individuals. ’

. | ! . - Continued investment in the platform and
Adjusted operating profit/{loss) people to support identified future growth
(Emillion for the year to 31 December} from scaling existing investment units plus

(GHE.LN). We deliver a range of

oz cof

8102

agenda at a global, local and

o ’;;"m";:',’:mw,ew asset level. Net performance fees and - Forestry division planted over 4.1 million trees

04 Chalrmans Statement 3 realised gains in UKWAS certified forests in 2019. In the year,

06 Chief Executive's Report . ( £million for the year to 31 December} approximately 1.5 million tonnes of CO, were

“g m‘?ﬂ;\m’:"”°'“ 4 As p?(?ple’ we are drlv_en, captured, bringing total carbon s(oragzs across N

1 Strategylnaction v ambitious and refiective. We the portfolio o over 34 million tonnes

18 GH2s- theSyearstrateqy | take decisions based on robust .

20 Sustalnabillty at Gresham House N A )] - New Energy division operates 135MW of

2 Financlel Review analysis and in-depth research, 888 wind farms and solar parks which generate

30 Divisional Review N : acse

38 Riskmanagement - while always ensuring we look © e £14,000 MWh per annum, enough power for

—— back on our results with a 111,000 homes and saving 186.000 tonnes of

44 Board of Directors ? critical eye. Total comprehensive net income €0, emissions per annum

46 Corporate Bovernance - overview {Emillion for the year to 31 December)

49 Corporato Governance - Audlt Committee Report )

51 Corporate Governance - Remuneration Repart We believe our culture of

it empowerment, individual flair -

;M?;‘i':e‘:;:m";‘mmem and entrepreneurial thinking

u X fieg Thel ;

62 FinancialStatemonts enables us to design and 388 anconen B71msan

? z:::;.w:‘:c:::xz:aums implement innovative investment ] ., - 833 02018 which has incredsed theadiusted cperating rsfi by COTmition. l
. o or morelnformationvisit . . . .

frrmerr—— solutions capable of building 1 @ Winngresnamhause.com We have grown the business organically in 2019, demonstrating our ;

N0 Corporate information HH i H i i 3 ili

T o o oo tgoting . ability to integrate acquisitions, alongside driving the sustainability

agenda in all that we do. i
Tony Dalwood, Chief Executive Officer
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Company overview

The specialist alternative

asset manager

We have created a specialist
asset management business
in the growing alternative
mvestment space, focused
on dehvermq results for

both clients and shareholders. ﬂ
We are committed to
operating responsibly, taking
the tong view in delivering
sustainable mvestment
solutions. “og

- Gresham House is an
{SE-guoted specialist
alternative asset manager,
offering funds, direct
investments and tailored
opportunities, including
co-investment. across a :
range of sustainable i
strategies t

> We have created a specialist
asset management business
in the growing alternative
investment space, focused
on delivering results for both
clients and shareholders.
We are committed to
operating responsibly and
sustainably, taking the long
view in delivering sustainable
investment salutions.

Financial overview

Total AUM (£m)

£2.8bn

+23%

201 [0S

201

2018

AUMhas grovn omganically by ¢.23% over the year with
& healthy pipetig for further qrswtnin 2020,

Adjusted operating profitability (£m)

£10.3m

+237%

200 B3
05 [l
201 10.3

Ejusted operating profils grown by 237% 1o
£10.3min 2019,

Formoreintormation
Seepages 2610

Gresham House plc
anesl Report 2nd ASeaunts 2013

Lo e

U Governancs

l Strategic
Roport

Divisions and strategies

Strategic Equity

U Fingncial
Statementr

Targeting superior long-term returns in a range of public and private equity
investments, by applying a private equity approach, engaging rigorous due
diligence and developing a deep understanding of each investment.

Z (v}

Public Equlty £283m AUM Private Equity £425m AUM
Lpplles & priy pp : s Private Equity g,
iy funds, pius our t high growth,

strategic pul?lic equty listed and l P vehicles. earlier stage and lower mid-market private

 companies.

£708m

Revenue

i < Baronsmead Verture Trust pic
| > Baronsmead Secand Yenture Trust pic
i =¥ LMS Capital pic

- Gresham House Strategic pic

- Greshem House Strategic Public Equity LP

> LF Gresham House UK Micro Cap Fund

- LF Gresham House UK Multi Gap Income Fund
- LF Gresham House UK Smatter Companies Fund

£13.2m

o Formoreintarmation
Seepages 301

——
— —_

Real Assets

Protection from inflation through proven, sustainable, asset-backed
investments

Forestry £1,334m

AUM

ousing & £220m ; New Energy
nfrastructure AUM ¢
vestment into these two

£535m
AUM

Areal asset class thal bom Supporting the shift from

or tfoli the UK market i reliance on finite resources to
and providss evposure to. unm cing siming @ gy
timoer and underlying fand value deiver superior fnancil by renevzables, vith the aim of
growth, The i ide a positive generating sustainable long-
g u ial and envis fmpact. . lefm returns. investments are

in thi iy | focused on key transtormative
enetis from substantial assex—

classes, and underpi bythe
biolagical growtn of the trees,

{ technologies: solar. wind and

; enert i can be

! accessed through listed vehicles,
i Afternative Investment Funds

+ (AIF)or direct invesiments,

incom yield In a tex-efficient
manner.

£2,089m

Revenue

£19.7m

 Fil1Sustainabie Timber and . iavestment |  Gresham House Erergy
Energy LP Fund (BS!F)S’raany Storage Furd pic

> FiltForest Fund i LP - f Rensviable

> Fii Timberiand LP infrastructure LP : _ EnergyvCT iplc

> The Forestry Partnershlp > Gresham House BSI £ Gresham House Renewiabte
2008 LLP Hausing LP EnergyVCT 2 plc

> Sresham House Forestry > FiM Soler i .
FunaLP § > FIMWind Energy LP @ Soesy

- Managed accounts 1 > Gresham House Wind

Energy 1 ple

Gresham House pic
Aol Report and Accounts 2013
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Chairman’s Statement

Another strongyear,
continuing momentum
and growthto generate
long term shareholder value

N

P I35
. T

!
f

It has been five years since the management
buy-in led by CEO Tany Calwood, vith an
ambition to transform Gresham House into
the dynamic speciaiist asset management
business it is today. The quality of the senior
team has been evid d

* This has been evident from the good
. performance across our funds, for example

the 10-year track record of our LF Gresham
Housz UK Micro Cap Fund is excepticnal and,
on a risk adjusted basis, it is the number tvio
UK-based fundin its sector, The investment

this period and we are pleased
®

inour egi ic Equity{SPE}

his anniversary with a year that has beat

Gresham House St ic pl

d achieved

it

continuing our momentum and grov/th to
generate long-term shareholder value.

Activity in the period
Over the course of 2018, we have seen good
performances acress our range of products,
by the i i
of our recent acquisitions. As aresult, we have
seen strong organic grovith of over £0.5 billion
in AUM to £2.8 bitfion in 2019, a 23% organic
incresse in the year (201: £2.3 bidlioni. This
has helped drive profitability vith our revised
adjusted operating profits increasing to £10.3
million in the year {2018: £3.0 milkion).

A ey 2018 objective was to demonstrate
our ability to manage acquisitions with the
successfulintegration of FIM Services Ltd
{FiM}and Livingbridge VC LLP, whichincluded
adding the two Baronsmead VCTs to our range.
s was Ihe first full year to benefit from these
i where lised cost savir d

very strong and the SPE strategy

. now has a track record of cutperformance over

manyyears.

In Real Assets, we are particularly pleased
with the growth of our two leading sustainable
products, the Gresham House Energy Storage
Fund ple{LSE:GRID)and British Strategic

. Investment Fund (BSIF)Strategy which
: both completed successful fundraisingsin

2018, GRID raised a further £107 million in

* 2019 and continued to acquire utility-scale

battery storage projects in this critical area

- to support renewable energy generation. The

BSIF Strategy held a successful fundraise in
dding £35 miili il
capital and £20 million to a separate fund

: from locat authority investors and continues
* to deploy in sustainable infrastructure and

housing projects.

We also established our first footheld outside
of the UK with the expznsion of our market-

of over £1.0 miion h
been captured.

We have built strong market positions in our areas
of expertise such as forestry, VCT management

* leading forestry i into

ireland through working with AXA Investment
Managers - Real Assets.

: Gresham House has a talented team and the

)] ge. across the Company deserves to
Anthony Townsend financial and * be recognised for it itment Lo success.
Chalrman aninncvative approach to creating investment As suchitis gratifying 1o have been awarded
opportunities for our clients. : des from leading industry publicati
. this year, including Funds Europe, Investment
0 4 Gresham House ple
Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Week and Professional Pensions among others,
for our expertise in alternative investments.

I Strategle
Roport

: aumM

U U Financlal U Additional
Governanea Statemenis Informatiga

Adjusted operating profit

£2.8bn

+23%

{ witha strong balance sheet, nel cash, plus
! fiquig assets of £41.3 miliion(2018: £32.8 million),

The culture of the tobe strong :
and dynamic as the opportusities expand.

the Group 1l ioned for further growth
h i nd further i in

. the Gresham House platform and people.

Sustalnabifity H
inabil i ocial and
Governance(ESG)concerns are at the forefront
of the minds of both Greshem House end our H
investors. These issues are embedded in the

with

solar, wind, battery storage and forestry, aswell |
as housing and agritech, among others. We

: Dividend
| ksindicated in the 2018 interim results, the

Board has decided to increase the dividend

: from the maiden dividend of 3.0 pence paid for
 theyear to 31 Decamber 2018. We are delighted

1o recommend increasing the aividend by 50%

i to 4.5 pence in 2018, We intend to pursue a

£10.3m

+237%

{ allocation, with key ESG themes throughout,
© and with further international ambitions.

: We were pleased to announce the acquisition

of Trade Risks Limited(Trade Risks), the
Housing fund management and corporate
finance and advi iness, post year eng.
Trade Risks comglements our existing Housing

* business and provides a further platform for

growih, we vielcome the Trade Risks team to
the Gresham House family.

 We note that at the time of writing there are

have

policyinthe year ished our i
Investment Committee to embed this throughout
the business.

in Gecember, we demonstrated how we use our |

p dividend policy subject to building
i valug over the

fong-term.

Shareholders

We are proud of our diversified

about doy

resuit of coronavirus and its impact on globat
steck markets. While we monilor this situation
closely, our belief in the long-term nature of the
asset classes that we operate inremains. We

bout 2020 as we lock beyond the

balance sheet to align with clients. Qur |
whotly owned subsiiary Gresham House DevCo
Limited soid its first material battery storage
devetopment project to GRID for an initial net
gain of approi £1.3mi

hand

i one on our long-term journey to become ‘an asset
{ to cover. The Comparny has come a lonig way from

the E15 million market capitalisation when this

advanced negotiations on other projects. We

waarein team tock chargein 2014,
will continue to use our balarice sheet to support | Board
andinvesting . T sment of  Board ing the

grovsthin product

alongside our clients.

Results
The Group has generated core income of !
£32.9million, an increase of 124%, reflecting i
the organic growth in AUMin the year and the
first full year including FiM and Livingbridge G
businesses(2018: £14.7 million). Gur revised
adjusted operating profit has also improved to
£10.3 milion in the year(2018: £3.0 million}and we ©
were pleased to receive our first net performance
I i i E1S

| necessary 5!

105upport a growth company
at our stage remains highly important and
we were pleased to have Gareth Davis join

: asa Non-Executive Director of the Company

on i October 2019. Garsth is a former Chief

+ Executive of Imperial Brands where he served
; for 38 years. More recently he has been

Chairman of a number of FTSE 100 compani

: We welcome the expertise he will bring to

the Board as 2 highly experienced colleague

and one with proven experience in brands,

growth and vision.

ilion in the year. C tincome
includes amortisation of management contracts,
movements in cantingent consideration
payments and other items was £0.8 million loss
for the year(2018: £0.6 million loss). This has.
resufted in adjusted diluted EPS growth of 127%.

i Outlook
f We have made excellent progress against
 our objectives set in 2014 and we are well-

positionad to meet the challenges of the next

i five years. The management team has an

: agreed framevvork over that pericd, known as

The key focus remains on growing the business
by investing in high-quafity people across fund

‘GH25, and it is an integral part of the Group to

{ work towards these goals, We have established

tegal,

aquality,

i business and we nov lgok to the next five

years to scale up in areas of allernative asset

|

2018 and v focused
on delivering our plan for the next five years.

Anthony Townsend

Chairman
5tarch 2020

Future value driven by

-> Growth of AUM in
scalable alternative asset
management segments
both organically and
through acquisition

-» Long-term income
visibility in high margin
products

-> Delivering performance
fees and carried interest

->» Achieving operational
gains from acquisitions

Readmore sbout GH2E
SeopagesBtols

Gresham House pic O 5
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Chief Executive's Report

VWe have grown our
specialist alternative asset
management businessasthe
‘sustainable agendaexpands

Tony Dalwood
Chief Executive

2018 was a crucial year for Gresham House, as
we five ince the

alongside growing AUM by over £0.5 billion, with
newi i

Buy-In (81}t transform the Company into a
leading specialist alternative asset manager.

Our goal has been to deliver shareholder

value through capturing the growth in asset

allocation to iternative assets, with increased

client alignment. ‘We are creating an ‘asset

to covel” for sharenolgers, clients and our
deivering superior i

performance wihile providing a highly respected

level of service.

Aswe look to the ne«t five years, our ambitions
remain clear, and are captured in our GH25
mission staiement announced within these
results, as we importantly aim to double
sharehoider value again.

We remain commiltted to a sustainabie future
through specialist alternative investment.
We have integrated investment practices
across our siralegies that make an active

ibution to the il ta
global, iocat and asset level. Thisis fundamental
to cur proposition and cur clients alongside
shareholders continue to benefit from{and
demand)a focus on this area of growving interest.

1 2019, we demonstrated our capability in
two key strategic areas - organic growth plus
acquisition integration. Both factors have been
in evidence with the successful integration of
FIM Services Ltd{FIM)anc Livingbridge VC LLP,

' it forecast.

y our
performance, specialist investment products
and brand recognition.

GH25 - the 5-year strategy
Our goat s to further develop the business as
aleading specialist alternative asset manager,
utilising the highly scalable platforms in place
and the talented people across the Group.

We aim to double shareholder value’ over

the next five years through the execution

of & number of identified objectives. These
include doubling AUM and a dedicated focus on
delivering clear financial and strategic targets.

Our financial targets aiming to double
shareholder value':
- Grow AUM to over £6 billion

- Increase operating margins” to greater than
4

> Maintain target Returns on Invested Capital
of 15% or sbove

Our strategic objectives to support these

financial targets are to:

-> Become arecognised leader in Sustainable
and Governance investment objectives

i > Ensure the funds we manage maintain
superior returns compared 10 the market

i Build market share in our niche product
H areas

bo taken

* Adjusted operating profit

m
O 6 Lnnual Report and Accounts 2019

> Develop the business internationally.
throughi oroducts and clients

i Stratoglc U H Financlal Bﬂudiﬁnni
Report Bovernanca Statemonts Informatica

and processes o shared central functions

finance, marketing
d di Examples include th

= Further enhance the Gresham H b
1o create significant goodwill

Gresham House has established a number of

of the divisional
in new combined uch

threugh our extensive experience in the area. We

are also proud signatories of the United Nations.
Principles of Responsible Investment (UNPRI)

Thet Committee and each

FiMand the original Gresham House Forestry

asset piatforms,

asingle unit, plus
the Livi team nowr i

investment division input to the evolution of our
approach and we believe ve can make a strong

‘each with the ability to scale alongsi

product, new product development, and
international potential. Impact and sustainable
asset management requires an element of
disruption - to evolve current methods. We
believe we have demensirated this capability
through investment platferms such as
Gresham House Energy Storage Fund plc
(GRID), the British Strategic Investment Fund
(BSIF) Strategy and the Baronsmead YCTs.

Critical to the Group's success is delivering
apertnership approach with our clients
threugh excellent service and quality
investment solutions.

Disciplined use of the balance sheat to make
strategic acquisitions that ars aligned with o
piatform and shareholder valus creation in li
with our track record and future goals remain
at the core of our ambitions. Through scaling
Ihe business, we anticipate the shareholder
benefits of operational gearing and margin
expansion, whilst continuing to prioritise

investment in our platform ang people.

Creating shareholder value

combined urit with the Strategic Public Equity
team within the Strategic Equity division. We
are pleased that the teams have continued
their momentum after joining Gresham House,
embracing the entrepreneurial spirit 1o grow
their businass divisions with the support of the
Group, be it through the preduct development
process, the provision of seed capital 1o faunch
new funds, or simply additional sales and
marketing investment.

2018 also saw sffective use of the balence
sheet to align us with our clients and the
funds we manage or advise. ‘We were pleased
to announce the lirst Gresham House DevCo
Limited transaction, with the sale of the

Red Scar battery storage development to
GRID in December 2019, This is one of the
exclusive portfolio projects being developed
by subsidiaries and associates of Gresham
House for sale to GRID and Is consistent with
exceeding our 15% return on balance sheet
capital threshold. We are targeting this area

[ locreatinga
tuture through specialist alternative investment
asset classes.

Organic growth in 2019 and beyond

We are weli-positioned to benefit from the
increasing demand in alternative investments
among investors as well 2s the wave of
demand for sustainable investment products.
We have atiractive market sharesina
number of areas and our approach has been
successful, with fundraising being a focus for
platform investment.

GRID has now successfully raised the £200
mitiion outlined in its IPU pruspectus,
demonstrating its appeal to the market as
battery storage becomes an essential feature
of the UK's critical national infrastructure. Since
the year end, GRID has compisted an additional
equity raise of £31.2 million, confirming the
fong-term growth prospects in this area.

‘We also continue to see good progress

g
valug from sustainable investments. The

in the British Fund
Strategy, which had a further close with new

prudent of the bals heet viill
continue il 10 our strategy with

2019 saw the various elements intrinsic to the.
Gresham House story begin to manifest, namely:
valye-add through organic growth, balance
sheet capital utilisation, product development,

; et

adisciplined approach thet fully exploits the
opportunities available to us.

These have all contributed to groving
shareholder value, building the brand, growing
earnings, and generating AUM growth and cash.

QOur acquisitions continue to deliver against

2018, bringing
committed capital to £200 million. The BSIF
Strategy remains an attractive investment

with assets tial i
infrastructure and housing classes that have
aposilive impact, as weil es possessing

Gresham House has placed inabiity at

glities and attractive fong-ierm

the heart of its culture and our £
Socisl and Goverrance (ESG) framework is

Il of our i
strategies, as well as our role as an employer

their 1I5% pital-i d targets
and we have identified ang captured over £1
million of annuaised cost synergies from the

Whether it is investment in renewable

FiMand Livis i We have also
benefited from additions revenue synergies,
vihereby clients that have joined through
acquisitions are now investing in other areas

of the business; suchas i

investing in BRID as wel as in Gresham House plc
- evidence of parinership and alignment.

have b higved
acress a number of areas, from systems

such as solar,
storage, or our commitment 1o forestry and

cash flow

We are defighted to have expanded our market-
leading forestry operations inte Ireland, vorking
with AXA Investment Managers - Peal Assets

o manage a 4,074-hectare forestry portfolio.
This gives the Group the potential to establish
apresence in Europe from which to develap
avariety of other new opportunities foltawing

in sacial housing
Bresham House is aiming t

it from the European Union. The

Forestry division al it 10 acquire

G
move these asset classes forveard for investors.

Our approach was codilied with the

forests in the UK on behaif of clients and raised
£35 million in the FIM TimberlandLP in 2019.
Our No.1 position in UK commercial forestry

of our
Commi ) "

ailows our forestry

inst a
Y3
Sustainable Investment Policy that has evotved

ions t
g
berefit of our clients.

jata and insights for the

Gresham Houso pic O 7
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Chief Executive’s Report

The Baronsmeag YCTs both undertook top-
up fundraisings in January 2019, totalling
£25 million to invest in new ang existing
opportunities across their earlier stage
company portfolios. The rapid close of these
offers, both within ten days, demonstrates
the depth of the appstite for this investment
approach. The Barensmead YCTs were aisc
fundraising in the tater part of the y:
closing out 2019 with a further £19 milion
raised, bringing the total raised in 2013 1o £44
million. and with more in the pipeline for 202,
Importantly, we are investing in our sales
platform and are pleased with our Equity Funds
recruitment, which, alongside the very strong
performance of our UK Micro Cap and UK Multh
Cap Income funds, shauld continue to support
a positive AUM growth outlook.

Strategle Equity
Our Strategic Equity division camprises public
equity and private equity unils, each being hi

10inten Cowies article 2isi Century's Top 20
Investment Trusts so far'in January 2020. et
Asset Value (NAV) performance remains strong
involgtiis market conditions, with s NAV Tetal
Return since inception of 50.5% versus the
FTSE Small Cap Total Return of 31.2%.

The UK has beena difficult olace for investment

approximately 1.5 million tonnes of CO, were.
captured, equivalent to the annual emissions
of the population of Newcastie. We are aiso
exploring the viability of carbon credits in this
area Lo add to management and acquisition
fees earned by the division.

Thisis cmnuleman ited by our battery storage

over the past year, with evenls
alongside multiple expansion in some narrow
areas of the equity marker. However, the
LF Gresham House UK IMicro Cap Fund and the
LFG(Eaham chse U¥ Muiti Cap Income Fund
trong
unuerlﬁe!eadersmp of KenWotton. The 10-
year track record for the U¥ Micro Cap Fund
is second to nene and it haswon a series of
industry swards as a result - including Ken
being named Fund Manager of the Year 2019 at
the Grant Tharnton Quoted Company Awards.
The UK Mutti Cap Income Fund, cc-managed

differertiated within their investment worlds.
The Baronsmead VCTs afe along-term brand
within the private equity universe. Alongside
these capturing intellectual and investment

by di , was Ist out of 84 funds in
the UK Equity Income sector over two years.
0 31 December 2019 and remains No.1in the
ector since faunch in June 2017. We ook
(orward Lo its three-year anniversary in June

synerqxe‘s K

cur lop-performing Strategic Puslic Equity
wehicle, Gresham House Strategic pic(GHS), and
the LF Gresham House UK Micro Cap Fund and
L Gresham House UK Multi Cap Income Fund.

GHS's active approach to investing in
§ UK

2020 ing a wider range of investors
will be able to gain exposure Lo its market-
beating performance.

The Baronsmead VCTs continue to attract

activities, p g utility-scale batieries to
meet the increasing demand for renewables,
acrucial factor in the transition to a zero-
carbon economy. This demand was evident in
the success of our placings in May, July and
October of 2018, totalling c.£107 miliion, building
the potential for further future acquisitions snd
the recently completed further fundraise of

£31 miltion.

The BSIF Strategy siso added £35 miltion
commitments 16 its infrastructure platform
and £20 miilion for a separate regional
mandate. providing innovalive diversity viithin
sustainable infrastructure investment. Our
ability to work with clients to develop end
deliver tailored sub-£50 million projects
through this strategy is resonating with Local
Government Pension Schemes {LGPS}and is
attractive to institutional investors given BSIF
Strategy's focus on ESG factors, income yield
and asset backing.

significant interest and.
toinvest inadiverse portfolio of primarily UK

Inaddition to in
the BSIF Strategy is nows moving into nevs

continues to prove successiul against a
background of political, regulatory and
economic uncertainty affecting the market.

growth whether ung traded
on AiM, and it s this generalist approach vhich is
proving to be a dilferentiating factor.

Real Asset:

we I-placed ta explait the i

i jfable, having an
ana passionate team in place, which has now
been augmented with the hire of Richard
Staveley, a specialist small-cap manager
with expertise garnered over 20 years in
the business.

GHS continues to be a top perferming
“nvestment trust” and was cited ai rumber

—

In fine with our commitment to sustainability,
the Gresham House Forestry division planted
over 4.1 million trees in 2018 on behaif of its

clignts, in UKWAS certified forests. In the year,

has vertical f: and waste
recycling, reducing the carbon footprint of
our food and supporting efforts to masimise
the effectiveness of the waste ranagement
industey. These platform deals provide great
potential for scalability.

D 8 Gresham House pic.
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People and culture

Our people are integral to 2l that Gresham

House achieves. They are the foundation of our

success and we believe by recruiting top talent,

aligned with our values of entreprennunahsm
ition, we are i

for the Company, our clier

s end sharelm%uevs.

We are proud of our investment teams and
wili continue to invest in them as they create
revenue opportunities for the Company. We
recognise that this doesnt happen in isofation
and we are supported by a highly talented
team that enables Gresham House to function
effectively - and with 5 smile!

Our culture of empowerment, encouraging
individual flair and entrepreneurial thinking,
enables us to design and irnplement inngvati
investment solutions capable of building a
sustainable future. This is reflected in our
success angd the industry awards that have
validated individua! and team performance, as
welt 2s that of the Company as a whole.

am thankful to each and every individual for
their commitment, dedication and pride in
Gresham House.

Outiook
We have made significant oroqress in 2019

of our platform. The il |n.ez,ratmn of FIM and
Livingbridge has shswn how a discipli

' Stratagic
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& . en

approach Lo incorporating new talent helps us
create value and a company where the whole is
greater than the sum of its parts.

At the same time, our sustained organic AUM
growth is a testament to our capabililies across
our product range and client confidence in

our performance and dedication to service
excelience. Five years of pianning and execution
came to fruition in 2018 and the creation of the
foundation for a long-term future was rezlised.

However, we are far from finished on ourjourney.

Qur mission for the next five years is to buiid on
the platform we have created, delivering GH25'
andwith it doubling shareholder value.

‘With the opportunities ahead, and assuming

3 continued benign macroeconomic
environment, we are confident that we will

be able to grow our business in iine with our
ambitions, to create shareholder value and add
further depth and braad:h to our platform.

The valuation of many asset markets remains
distorted by global interest rate policy and
quantitative easing, which has resuited in the

for specialist i mvesmrs Gresh'\m
Huuse is locking to capture value from such
opportunities through our differentiated and
specialist asset

the housing and social infrastructure sectors,
with strong ESG credentials through its secial
impact in a structurally important area. We
expect th acquisition to be immediately
earnings enhancing, increasing our AUM tc
more than £3.0 bilion 2nd driving additional

Concerns about the impact of coronavirus
onglobal health have crystalised fears of an
economic slowdown and we have wilnessed

Aswe move| into the next |we years of our plan,
that
Irajefmry of growith, deliering aharehclder value

stack markets move | territory.

We are 6 i jith & long-t

it
belief that global Intl’rest rﬁles will rermain

lower for langer. As such, th yield
and therefore alternative assets will remain a
growth area.

The wiave of capital flowing into ESG
continues. Our

g-terr
plan based on long term investment horizons. Our
tion s cl 0 build

1o enter the next phase of our growth.

Tony Dalwood

of sustainabie investment opportunities,
inctuding solar, wind, battery storage and
forestry, positions us as a natural home for
investors Seeking superior returns within an
ESG-comptiant frameveork.

We were also pleased to announce the
acquisition of TradeRisks Limited (TradeRisks)
post year end. TradeRisKs is a fund
manayement business and specialist provider

of debt structuring and advisory services to

Chief ive Offit
5 tarch 2020

Gresham Kouse plc O 9
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Strategic framework

Delivering growth

[
[
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Etrategic objective: to deliver
fong-term value to shareholders
and clients whereby Gresham

oveetive [Jeliver organic growth Deliver acquisition
inAUM growthin AUM
Progress = Successful further share issuances for Gresham House Eneigy > 2015 was 2 year of integration
in2018 W to £207 miliicn - Integrated Fil4 and Livingbridge '/C businesses successtully

Strategle Investment Fund (BEIF)

; inte the Group, capturing annualised synergies of
Strategyuth additional commizments of £35 milion taking total

E1L0million.

£20 mifion > Acquisitions continug 1o or exceed the 15% Returnon
commitment toa separat mrasuucmrema Invested Capital (POIC)hurdle in the medium to long term
> for BSIF Straicg, o ture > isition opportuniti i
andhousing mve‘tmems continue to be explored
e forests for clients deitvering additionat AUM

e o
sortiolio fo

fuding the secuistianslth st rish orestey
: stment Managers -
> Timberland LP of £35

] > Baronsmead \/CTS sn.ccesslul‘/lalsac £44
l ~» New sales teain hired for open-ended funds{U¥. Micro CBD anc Ui

o=

¥ulti Cap Income ting 1o deliver

- Top-performing Steategic Equity vehicies, Gresham House Stratsgic
oic and LF Gresham House U ?
Multi Cap Income furds

= Vianaged LIS Capita lc successfuty, defivering cost singzena
changestc DI’DC‘$S
have voted baci

icro Cap 2nd LF Gresham House UK.

chrEc( “ inJs 2020

Investments in Stratsgic Public Equ(/

KPIs Organic Growth In Total AUM(£m)

£529m

Acquisition Growth In Total AUM (£€m)

k92240

o E—

o M
2.3

+23% i
(o] pey -
] 888
2020 > Issus further shares in GRIDIn 2020 to fund acquisition of further > tdentity it the
Priorities' atility-scale battery storage projects existing business and provide further scals
lity-scal of the > Maintain discipli ital ellocation pol 5%
evelusiva pipeline with GRIC to enzbls GRIDS hend in the medium tolong term
recognition of Gevelopment gains by the Group > d the completion of ¢ isi radeRisks
BSIF Strategy B8} Limited, the fund managsment business and specialist
In rrssuucmve LP and Gresham House BSI Housing LP)in H) 2020 provider of debt structuring and agvisory services o the
- Launch BSIF 2, the follow-on infrastructure LP fund to BSIF by tre housing 2nd social infrastructure sectors
end of 2020
- Grow Forestry AUM through fundraising for FIl4 Forestry Fund 1LP
and ecquisition o forests for clients
| isisstager ? CONtinuE international forestry exponsion
IG5 Eupand fundraising LF Gresham House LF UK Hicro Cap and
Mot LF Gresham House UK Multi Cap Income funds atongside incubating
forecast, LF Gresham House UK Smalier Comoanies fung
canteno > i ver i ploy
aswanes 0t of capital [P
thesetargats > 192 GHS plc = iy to increass NAY pport tundraising
wiihe net, as appropriate.
] D Gresham House ple
&nnwal Report and Accounts 2013

House becomes an “asset to covet™.

°
o
Deliver operating Deliver operational
profitability to shareholders efficiencies
—> Defivered operating pralfit (argels for 2018 = Increased revenus per employee to £404k
through both crganic ar - Clear focus onsynergles from acquisitions and integration
acemsmor\gmwmmAUM plans.
> 1 - Benefits of operational lsverage
i fong-term growth >0 i it h
- Growing adjusted operating margins to 31.3% (2013; 20. of cost growth
Adjusted Operating Profit* (Em) ! Revenue per Employee® (£'000) |
i £
'
£1U.Om g £ k
i
,
% s || +42%
+237% lggz + (<) 5
> Deliver i =¥ Build AUM whil westing in the platform
revenue growth and management of Cost base > Invest in revenus generating tesm members.
Gresham House plc

fnnusl Report and Accounts 2019




Creating value
Business Model

Creating
value

Successful delivery of our
business model creates
long-term sustainable
management fees and carried
interest, creating value for
clients and shareholders

IFSWZ of the Companies Act 2006
- requires directors to promote
the success of the Company
for the benefit of membersasa
whole and doing so have regard
to the interests of stakeholiders
including shareholdcrs, clients
employees, regulatcrs and
the wider society in which it
operates. This is demonstrated
through our business model.

'] 2 Gresham House plc
Lnnuiat Repart and Lecounts 2019

Our key strengths

Partnership with clients

‘e develop an understanding of our clients’ needs to provide
tailored long-term investment solutions. We tailor products.
to fit clients' needs, with the restructure of BSIF intoa
separate Housing and Infrastructure Funds an example

of this

Long-term alignment

‘We invest Gresham House's balance sheet aicngside
client capital and also have clients who are invested in
the Company

Sustainable investment
outperformance

Qur experienced team has a strong investment track record
across long-term alterrative asset ciasses. The adeption of
our Sustainable investment Policy is a key example of how we
consider wider society and other key stakeholders beyend
simply shareholders

Attracting and retaining top talent

‘We have ted a culture of where individual
fisir and entrepraneurial thinki
Retaining and providing 2 stimutating envi for our

1gams is Critical to our success.

How we do it

Actively managed solutions

Across our investment activity. we engage directly with
Investers, it it d project ies.
Itis central to aur Group philosophy 1hat v take a hands-o
approach to our investments to snsure the best result for
both shareholders and clients.

Understand our clients’ ambitions

We prioritise consulting with and understanding the views,

d ambitions of our Inseeking
sustainable, profitable outcomes from the investments we.
are involved in.

Develop innovative strategies and
products

Utifising our considerable in-house resource and expertise,
we maintain a close eye on the gl i landscape
to ensure we are on top of or ahead of the latest industry and
investment trends and offering the best possibie solutions lor
clients and sharehoiders.

' Strategic
Roport

U U Financial B Additionat
Governanue Statemenis Infarmaticn

Delivering value for
stakeholders
Investors

latifity, v o the
of our client superior and
sustainable investment performance.

Against the backdrop of political and environmental uncertainty

Shareholders

‘e maintai lar and
i and

. Iore detail s included in the Dir t

Employees

Dverall s1aff numbers increased from 74 to 84 in 2019,
and v/ remain cemmitted Lo retaining and nurturing our
{alent. We have established a ‘Gresham House ethos’ of
entrepreneurialism and individual flair that permeates
through all departments and functions.

Community

*We continue tc deliver responsibly to the communities that are
impacted by our activity.

Regulator

Asan 150 9001 certified business, we maintein robust internat
processes and procedur 6 on delivering efficient

and compliant business practices. In Jine with this, we hired a
Head of Compliance in 2019 to oversee our output.




Strategy in action
Gresham House Energy Storage Fund

Supporting the
decarbonisationof
the UK economy

ey

-

Delivering organic growth in AUM
Overview
Gresham House Energy Storags Fund plc(f‘PIDhmeats ina portilio of
y using
batteries in Great Britain. The fund sesy 1o provide shareholgers with
an atlrzclive and sustainable dividend over the long term. alongside the
prospect of capitai growith. Gresham H I
raise £100.0 mitlion in an IPO on the London Stock Exchange Specialict
S Fund Segment in November 2018.

Operatlcnal performance
deliver grovth in GRID, th £SSneeded to
pro«/emarmeba ery storage concept works in this relatively nascent
sector. Thei team hy adiversified portfolio of
ility ESS projects. Each ons ¢ e multiple
revenue streams toallow the fund 1o defiver on s return abjectives
focusing on four sources of revenue:

> Asset optimisation - the abriity to maximise incorne from the
wholesale market and the Balancing Mechamsm!mmugh vikich
i id balance intra haf y

Pply

., = Firm Frequency Response - the provxslon ofa d)narmc lie.
Proporti second
by second, based on changes in the GE grid's etectrical frequency

+

1 Capacity Market - 2 UK government mechanism whereby generators
! {including batteries)are paid a fixed fee for being on call to deliver
[ power when required at times of extreme need (known 65 Stress
events)

Grid payments - at times of peak demand Nationa! Grid make Triad
payments to generators lincluding batteries) during the three peak
hatf-hours when demand is highest for the year

¥

¢ Theoriginal 70MW acquired by GRID have been in operation during 2019
' andare proving the four sources of revenues are achievable.

! ‘

T

i
's\m-g': . : !

Repert [ R EIR T

Growth

During 2018 Gresham House used the expertise of its New Energy team
to deliver growth for GRID by identifying. developing, executing the
acquisition and operation of appropriate ESS projects. This hasin turr
driven the need for GRID 1o raise further equity to satisty the need to
acquire these and further ESS projects.

Pipeline

Gresham Hous® and asseciates have successfully detivercd two
operalional assets in 2018, alongside sourcing two other operational
assets for acquisition. This has grown the seed asset porlfclio of 76MW
to 174MW by the end of 2019. The exclusive pipeline of ESS projects thzt
Gresham House is developing and other ESS projects identified by the
Gresham House team adds a further potential 150MW capucity 10 be
integrated into GRID on acquisition.

Fundraising
GRID raised a further £106.7 million in 2019, through a number of
toinstitutional investors, wealth ind high net worth

citents, more than doubling the size of funds raised for GPID to £206.7
miflion. GRiD also raised a further £31 milfion in March 2020.

Market opportunity
The demand from investors In Lhis sustainadle product is evident as
the asset class bec more videh The

of ESS are needed to support the movement in the UK and globally
to decarbonise the economy through the electrification of trancport
and the need for an exiremely refiable electricity supply based on
renewatle energy.

Our original view of xhe importance of this asset class at the IPO of GRID
rasbeen potentiaf to gt vieare
pleased the New Energy division can play a part in this growth,

Gresham House pic.
tanusl Report and Accounts 2013
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Ingeérgtrng'acquisitions

Acquisition approach

All potentiel acquisitions are considered vhere they meet the strict
criteria of the Group:

build scais and enable the capture of synergies

- Haveac

ion 10 grow AUM through new clients, products o other
complementary factors

We use this diligent approach and the Group's investment committee Lo

provide further challenge and rigor to Ihe acquisition process in order to

deliver the above criteria.

r strategic raticnale that will enable the Group te increase

| Activityin 2018

N L

2019 vas 3 year of i lon as the Group f gthe
FIM Services Limited (FIM)ang L idge VC LLP(Livingbridge VC)
businesses into te Group

Captured annualised synerges of £1million across both businesses

International expansion of the forestry business into reland,
complzting the acquisition of Irsland's largest forest acquisition on
benhalf of AYA Investment Managsrs - Peal Assets

LF Gresham House UK Multi Cap Income Fund ranked st out of 84
funds inthe UK Equity Income sector over 2 years to 31 December
2018

'l 6 Gresham House plc
Annual Report and Account 2019

J

FiMintegration

The Fil4 business was integrated vith the eristing Gresham House
Forsstry business in 2019. The forestry team are novs working together
todeliver isi nd forastry ions for client: combined
unit under the ieadership of the Ferestry Management Committee.

The team wiarks together to cover all elements of client service,
sourcing o apporiunities, appraisal of opportunities to execution of
forestry acquisitions.

Revenus synergiss have been pleasing with a number of Fil4 clients not
only continuing to invest in the Group's forestry funds, but also investing
in the other progucts aveilable at Gresham House, for evample GRID end
sisc Gresham House pic itself, We are sble to utilise our growing position
to offer a suite of sustainable investment preducts to our clients.

FIM performance
The Fll business within

resham House has continued to grow, with
combined revenues looking Lo exceed the earn out target of £14 million
for the rwo-year pertod 1o May 2020. The combined revenues also
encourages the integration of the two forestry businesses. We use gam
outs asa key part of our acquisiti weare not i

Strategle Financil ionat
Report Goverasnce Statamen:s L haticn

ucceéful integration is a

key,

" Livingbridge VC integration
The Livingbridge VC busi d with the Strategic

ity business, which highlights their shared investment principles of

ent research and applying 3 private equity style of investment to the

lic markets. The Strategic Equity » Committee has been*
lished and ic delivering clear synergies for th bined team,

Fundraising in Strategic Equity has been increaszd in 2019, with the
Baronsriead YCTs raising £44 million as the demand for the YCTs.
remains sirong. We are aiso looking at launching new fund products to
utilise the skills in the team and deliver operational leverage.

Livingbridge performance

‘The Baronsmead VCTs, UK Micro Cap and UK Multi Cap Income funds
hiave remained resilient in the face of difficult conditions for UK Smatler
Cap companies. Over ten years, the U¥ Micro Cap Fund is ranked &th cut
of 44 funds and has delivered an impressive cumulative returns totel of
295.6% vs 245.87% in the A UK Equity Income sector® and the UK Multi Cap
income Fund, co-managed by Brerdan Guisten, was Ist out of 34 funds

in the UK Equity Income sector over two years to 31 December 2018, and
remains No.lin the sector since launch in June 2017. Our investment in

forabusiness. The FIM earn out is expected to pay out the maximum £4

the wholesate distribution leam is starting to bear fruit with increasing

miliion in cash as the combined Forestry business is evpected to deliver  inflows in Lhe ops jed funds al id i J ferthe
the tull £14 millicn combined forestry revenues, The combined Forestry Baronsmead YCTs.
business is expected to dellver revenues in excess of £13 miilicn over
the same two-year periog driving additional contingent consideration
astimated at £1 miflion.
* Source FE Trusines 31 December 2018
Gresham Housa plc -I 7
Aanual Report and Acceunts 2018
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GH25 - the 5-year strategy
G Doubling shareholder value Financial targets Strategic targets
l | 2 6 Our goal is to double shareholder value in the next five years. > AUMIc £6bn+ Strategic targets to position Gresham House as & group
through achieving financial and stralegic targets. with attractive market positions., market shares and
> EBITDA margins of 40%+ ambitious targets.
Keylevers in order to achieve this goal include: profit growth,
t h e 5 - e a r multiple attributed to these profits plus balance sheet cash 5 Returnon Invested Capital of 15%+ LEADERS IN ESG AND SUSTAINABLE INVESTING
use and generation. A sgnised exterally as a leader inthis
AUN . culture and phitosophy
We have developed a speciallst alternative asset manager, We see clear routes across all divisions to grow the business bl m::;;if‘?:tjm porenod pm;s's
St r a t e which has highly scalable platforms across a number of inkey areas. The areas inwhich we have developed a aspratlans sad objectives & g
growth arsas. The plan is to further scale these through speciatism and which are key on the Environmental, Social N g
the expansion of existing funds and products, new product end genda, such ility scale battery storage, MAJORITY INVESTMENT PRODUCTS OUTPERFORMING
development and the potential 1o operate in international forestry and housing, are identified growih areas where we The performance of our funds is critical, and we aim
markets. We have buiit 2 talented team which is driving the are well positioned o expand. for top-quartile performance across our asset classes.
business forward. The various asset management platforms Gulp: f dium 10 long-term
have clear sustainability agendas. EBITDA MARGINS OF 40%+ tfor our listed vehi anded funds will drive this
Shareholder value creation is also linked to profit margin, wihilst the private funds wil target top-quartile performance.
The quality of a business can be seen by attractive profil
marging versus comparators and the market. As the business SIGNIFICANT MARKET SHARES IN SPECIALIST PRODUCTS
maturss, we e4péct performance fees and carried interest Reaffirm our Specialist nature In the key asset ciasses, whilst
10 add to the increase in EBITDA margins and (o support our growing market shares in each area.

growthplans. INTERNATIONAL PRESENCE ESTABLISHED

Offering access to Europe and subseguent global
opportunities through a selective approach to international
growlhand partnerships.

RETURN ON INVESTED CAPITAL 15%+
The disciplined use of our balance sheet is critical to ensure
that we make the right strategic acquisitions ang also
support the growth of our existing products and divisions. ! GRESHAM HOUSE BRAND AND GOODWILL RECOGNITION
This alignment vith clients adds to our partnership” culture. jalists i ives, who can gene

outperformance, shareholder value and great client service.

CLIENT DIVERSIFCATION AND DEPTH

Growing our institutional, Wholesale and Direct client base [
through the development of sur distribution channeis and i
revenue synergies across the business.

Through the dedicated focus on our strategic targets in the
current environment we are siming to deliver the financial
targets and double shareholder value in the next five years.

. Assuming the mai of & benign i

" envi we are aiming value over
the next five vears through profit growth, a strong multiple
attributed to the profits and superior cash generation
through the use of balance sheel capital and strong margins.*

< thist A aprofi iz
Lorgel wil 9 s, 1S argst choutt ot e Gken a5 25 indicat.on of the
Conganyserpec

‘]8 Gresham House plc. Gresham House plc 19
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AtGresham House, our Social
and Bovernznce ES6 strategy and appruach

1o sustainabity is embedded in our business

purpose, and the way we work.

We believe in creating sustainable, iong -term

 parti in several of
¥ gur assel classes are creating tangible positive
* action towards meeting this giobal challenge.

+ ‘We seek to align wherever we can, the ESG
; benefits of our investments with the UN

walue tor our clients,
communities and the environment, with the
sim of making i ibution to the

s Gosls. W
toidentify, optimise and evaluate further

ability agenda at a glebal, locat and asset
levzi over tne long term.

Our commitment is demonstrated through

the integration of sustainable investment
oraclices across our strategies. through our
proactivity in seeking 1o make a positive social,
economic or envirecnmentat impact alongside
delivering strong financial returns and by being
aresponsivle and ethical employer.

Why sustainability matters to us

‘We are mindful of the many significant drivers
to the sustainability agenda, especially the
impact of climate change, which we regard as
5 critical priority for all businesses to play their

"

includes clearly defined processes and
expert tools and methods.

. > Encure our team understands the

imperalive for effective ESE management
and is empowered and equipped to carry
this out through management support and
training.

Conduct regular monitoring of ESG rigks,
opportunities and performance in our

¢ We aim to be at the forefront of the ingustry
with our sustainable investment approach. We

. published an updated Sustzinable Investment
Policy in December 2018 and have fisted our

" commitrnents betow:

!> Take steps tounderstand the zmbitions

: and concerns of all our stekehoiders in
seeking sustainable outcomes from the
investments we are involved in

- Integrate ESG considerations across the

lifecycle of eachinvestrnent by applying our
sustainable investment framework which

and over time, reporting to our
investors.

+

Conduct our business activities in line
with the Ul-supocrted Principies for
Responsible investment, including an
annual repert of our progress towargs.
implemeniaticn,

How we are doing this

* We are committed to defivering the objectives
* of our Sustainadle Investment Pelicy and

+ to ensunng implementation of sustainable

: investing processes and approach throughout
 every aspect of our business,

Gresham House ple
Lnnwal Repert and Accounts 2019
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Sustainability drivers

To that end, we have established
& Sustalnable ivesting
Committee within Gresham
House whose remit is to marshal
delivery of our commiiments,
offer a forum for sharing best
practice, nev: ideas and ensure
the provision of ongoing
education across the business.
The Committee secks external
expert advice and guidance as
needed.

Arepresentative from the

Sustainable investing Comimitree

is also a member of each of our
investment teams. ensuring that
our Policy i¢ visibly implemented
and fully integrated into the day-
to-gay business.

- Improved security of food supply with UK-based production
-> Reduced water usage and no pesticides
3 Efficient use of land and the ability to harvest all year round

> Reduced food miles - meaning a reduction in the carbon emissions usually
generated by the transportation of produce from the farm 1o the end corsumer.

- Aligning with two of the Sustainable Development Goals

Communlty care
and engagement

@

Marketplace

responsibitity O

Supply chain

@ sustainabllity

Carbon, emisslons
and pollution

B

Naturl resource
management

Waste
managsment

Risk ang
compliance

; Commitment to
#" " sustalnabili

Employment, health,
@ safety and weli-being

rnance
and ethics

Gresham House ple
&l Kepart and Atcounts 2019
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Sustainability at Gresham House

IF’Being able to report the positive environmental and social
impact of investments to our clients is a key priority.
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Helplng tackle climate change -

Building sustainable Investment value
Qurinvestment divislons vary considerably in
terms of the nature of investiment and business
activity and in relation to opportunities to

b 0 Do
Report Governance Statemenis

tools that go beyond
snalysis to include a qualitative overlay which
aims 10 promote long-term value creation. In
addition, our ESG risk management toof is used
Dyl the Investment teams throughout th desi

Driving ible p through
culture

Our people set us apart and are the cornerstone
of the business.

influgnce board and attitudes [ lection, svaluauan We are committed to nurturing the talent we
and decisions towards long-t g and have and ing a work envi
outCemes. 0 ensure. comm.(mnms and deliverables wehich values and respects all employeses.
outlined in the asset class policies are met. N PO i o
For this just as our i We are investing significantly in the training

strategies are tailored across our asset classes,
we have adopted dif i G il

e of these policies and refated
tools will aflow Gresham House to i

and dwelvpment of our leams. especially to

policies for our five platforms - Forestry,
Houslng and Infrastructure, New Energy,
Private Equity, and Strategle Public Equity.
They are designed to be both practical and
meaningful in context snd straightforward to
implement.

We recognise the need to measure the impact
of ourinvestments. Developed in parthership
with our external ESG consultants. we have
adopted asset ciass specific evaluation and

* The UK Woodland Assurance Standard(UKWAS)isan

vioodland management In the UK.

reporting to our cliznts by the end
of 2020 and aligns us with the requlremenls

raise under
order to drive sustainable investment and the
i i our i

outiined in the up: UK ipCode
(oublished inJanuary 2020},

Il=t’l:ommitted to
embedding
sustainability across
our investments and
the business itself

4l

The subject of sustainable investment is @
constant feature of team meetings, management

visibility and focus at all levels of the business.

Educational programme
\ie are delighted to have husted a number of
educational sessions over the course of the
year onvarious aspects of investment and their
sustainable investment drivers. One e«ample of

his visits t
and Wales involving groups of up to 65 students
University. These h ided the

udents vith invaluable insights i i

h)feslry and ted to many tascinating Gebates
about the role of plantation forests and the
sustainable nature of this assat class.

Our community funds hefp to support charitable ac

life for local residents, contribute to V\Dran[ healthy, successful and sustainatle

Case study - our wind farm community impact

We are proud to contribute to a number of local benefit projects for the communities
in the vicinity of our windfarm portiolio

ano pirit and activity

n 2018, Gtesbam Hr,us= wind projects contributed just over £380,000 in

ies that enhance quelity of
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Financial Review

Ayear of integration and
organic growth

The Group has had a strong year and
successfully built onits speciafist ssset
management platform to deliver organic
growth of 23% in AUM to £2.8 billi

The adjusted operating profit metric below

now highlights the performance of the core

asset management business separately from
fees and realised gai I

£2.3 billion). This is the first full year of
revenues from the FIM and Livingbridge V¢
businesses and highfights their successful
integration into Gresham House. The resuit
has seen tozal core income increasing by
124% to £32.9 mitlion(2018: £14.7 million}and
revised adjusted operating profits increased
to £10.3 milfion from £3.0 million in 2018. The
Group has also benefited for the first time
from net performance fees and realised gains
from development company {DevCo)activity

of investments. The performance fees and
realised gains on sale of investments are.
presented alongside the variable compensation
costs payable as a resull of their generation o
show the net impact on the Group.

S pay T irex

to acquisitions have been excluded as they are
effectively an earn out paid to the seliers of
Businesses rather than an operating expense.

totalling £1.5 million. Total net | Finslly, the ion of IFRS 16 Leases
income after the deduction of amortisation has reclassified rent from administrative

and other isiti lated cost ined expenses 1o cepreciati d this i
broadiy consistent with last year with a loss administration overheads accordingly. The

of £0.8 miliion (2018: £0.8 million loss). We el il the

are also pleased to announce our intention to tothe ious adj S operating

pay & divicend of 4.5 pence for the year ended
31December 2018, building on the Greup's

metric in 2018:

maiden dividend of 3.0 pence for the year ended | Original adjusted
31 December 2018. operating profit metric £9.3m
Less net performance fees £0.2)m

As the Group has evolved, so have the revenue
sireams around the business with the Group
starting te benefit irom performance fees

Add back acquisition
related share-based

and realised gains on its investments. In ordsr payments £0.5m
to present the performance of the Group
more clearly, we have reviewed the non- 3:::_3;';‘;"; E:Z:‘:"
CAAP agjusted operating profit metric. The
9 perating profit metri adjustment £0.7m

aim of the adjusted operating profit metric

is to show the trug performance of the core
asset management business through the
management fee income and revenues earned,

Revised adjusted
operating profit metric £10.3m

Kevin Acton less the administrative overheads associated
Chief Financlal Officer with defivering the asset management services.
2 4 Gresham House plc

£yt Repor and Accounts 2013

! Strategic u ﬂ Financial u Acditional
Ropart Governance Statements nformatica

Adjusted operating profit

' 2018 208
£600 £o00

Income 31,583 I 14,498
Dividend income f i 1,323 2n
Total core income 32,908 14,708
inistrati tisation, fati fonal items and acquisitlon related

share-based payment charges)” (22,229) (11,618)
Finance costs (380} (42)
Adjusted operating profit i 10,267 § 3,049
Adjusted operating margin 31.3% § 20.7%
Performance fees(gross) 1,944 -
Variable compensation attributable to performance fees (1,744) -
Pertarmance fees net of casts 200 -
Realised gains on investment 2,369 -
Variable compensation attributable to realised gains {1.037)} -
Realised gains net of costs ! 1332 | -
Performance fees and reallsed gains net of costs i 1532 | -
Adjusted operating profit, performance fees and realised gains net of costs ne | 3,048
Amortisation and depreciation @527} (2,903}
Exceptional items (1,083)! (2,001}
Acquisition related share-based payment charges (593) (87)
Net losses on investments** (z,l.sz)f 1,087
Tax (23)! 218
Operating loss after tax 1 (850)° (657
Profit from discontinued operations ] 55 i
Total comprehensive net income ] {795): (646)
. 27400,
R ot o1 . oot ot 2 ilfon{2013: £

The adjusted operating profit metric has
increased to £10.3 miltion (2018: £3.0 million)
and the adjusted operating margin improved to
31.3% in the year (2018: 20.7%). The key

i driver of the increase in profitability in the year | administration overheads by £0.7 million,

was the impact of the FiMang Livingoridge 1§ therehy increasing adjusted operating profits
i the Group, The i ion | by £0.7 million in 2019.

of IFRS 16 Leases also decreased H

Income
’ 2018 I 2012
£000 £000
Asset management income 31226 B7
Dividend and investment income l 278 7]
Other income L) 734
Totalincome i 31583 | 14,498
Divided income from i 1323 | n
Total core Income ] 32,808 | 14,709
Core income 1 from the FiM and Livingbridge acquisitions that ‘ The Group provides high-guality services in
Total core income has i yR26%in in2018. The strong 23% organic  § actively managed alternative asset classes.

the year to £32.9 million(2018: £14.7million). | growthin AUM in the year to £2.8 biflion (2018: Delivery of returns for investors is key and
primarily driven by asset income £2.3billicn)has also been a key factor in requires the team of asset management
with 2013 being the first fuil year of ravenues revenue generation in 2019, ; specialists to drive investor performance. As
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Financial Review

such. we operate in higher margin specialist
areas of assel management.

The Group benefits from a diverse range of
long-term management contracts, which
provide a stable view on future revenue
streams. This is demonstrated through

the weighted average fife of managemént
contracts accounting for £0.8 billion in AUM
being 16 years in asset forestry.

items were £22.2 million in the year (2018:
EN.B miltion). Alongside revenues this is the
first full year of costs from both the FiM and
vamgnncqe teams. which has been the

target cost savings, we continue to diligently
review all areas of the Group's cost base to
ensure that we are operating efficiently and
ina lean manner. ‘We do howsver ensure that

factor to the int ein
admlmslra'we overheads.

The Group has taken the conscious decision
(O iny IES\ inthe team to be able to grow the
flectively. In the eartier stagas of

The spread of products managed by the Group's

this investment there is an impact on operating
i the speed at which we scmeve our

15 and Strategic Equity division als
ensures that the Group is not exposed to one
particular market, adding a natural hedge.

Dividend, interest and other Income
We continue to use our balance sheet to

takes piace in areas
hat villSupport the groveth of the business.

Finance costs

The Group borrovied £10.0 million under a term
loan and revolving credit facifity vith Santander
in Hovember 2018 as part of the Livingbridge
VG acquisition. We were pieased (hat cash

targer 407% ajusted operai ginsinthe
Theb“ne'l!unms

will be recognised when the revenues

generated come through increased AUM.

invest alongside cli
support products managed by the Group
and dividends, !nteresl and omer income
reflect this. O |

inkey team members from
fund management and distribution to the
critical Group functions of compliance, risk

income increased in 2015 to EZ?E,ODD[QDIB'
£47,000), cue to dividends being recognised
from Gresham House Energy Storage Fund pic
(GRID)of £148,000(2018: Enil), interest from
co-investment holdings in Gresham House
Strategic Public Equily Fund LP of £24,000
(2018: £22.000)and a dividend from LMS
Capitat plc of £25,000(2018: £nl).

Other income includes directors' fees, where
team members sit on the boards of pertfofio
companies. The main difference compared to
the prior year was the recognition of  make-
whole fee of £620,000 in 2018, payable by Hazel

o tegatand KR took place in
the year with 20 news team members joining
the Group. The Group's full-time equivalent
headcount now stands at 94, which has gre

in the year was strong and the Group
was in 8 position Lo repay the entire facility
earlyinJuly 2019. The £3906,000 finance cost
in 2019 reflects the intsrest and arrangement
fees paid for the termcan and revolving credit
facility of £357,000(2018: £42,000)and IFRS 16
Lease interest of £33.000(2018: £nil).

Amortisation and depreciation
Amortisation of managerment contracts,
client contacts, the website and client

tal unted for £7.7 mitli £28

from 74 at the end of 208, People costs have
consequently increased to £15.6 million frem
£8.1million in the year. alongside variable
compensation relating to performance fees and
realised gains of £2.8 milfion {2018: £nif).

The Group has aiso benefited from improved
performance across the divisions, which
drives a share of the profits with the teams and
thereby increases costs.

Total off

Capital to the Group as part of a;
wihereby the British Strategic fnvestment Fund
LPinvested in ESS2 Holdco Limited(a battery
storage project cempany), and which became

<costs across the Grouf

£0.7 mililon {2018: £0.8 million), with the key
change being the ciassification of office rent
as depreciation in 2019 as reuurred unnu !FRS

payable when ESS2 Hotdco Limited
GRIDas & seed asset.

Dividend income from associates refates to
dividiends recognised in 2018 from Noriker
Power Limited [Moriker)and GHS. Noriker paid

1€ Leases, which
overheads by £0.7 milion in the year.

‘We operate with offices in London, Oxford,
Dumfries and Perth and continue to operate
aflexible approach to the London office

adividend in specie of GRID sh:
of £1.2 miliion up to Gresham House pic(20ie:
£nil)and GHS made dividends of £172,0600 in the
year(2018: £211,000). These are recognised in
the share of associates profitline in the income
statement and separated out as part of the
adjusted operating profit metric disclosure.

Administrative overheads
Administrative overheads, excluding
amortisation, deprecistion and exceptional

wihere itis impy that we commit to

an appropriate size and time frame to
accommodate acquisiticn activity as part of our
strategic growth.

The synergies identified in 2018 as part of
the acquisitions continue to be developed
and we were pleased with over £1.0 million of
synergies identified and caplured in 2019, the
benefit of which will be ewdent in2020 and

million)as these intangible assets continue
to be amortised over their useful lives. The
acquisition cf FIM and Livingbridge VC in
2018 required the assessmenit of the fair
value of ths management contracts within
these businesses, which are being amertised
over their useful ives, ranging from one

1025 years in the case of some of the Fiit
management contracts.

Depreciation of £816,000 in the year (2018:
£138,000)relates primarily to office leases,
motor vehicles used by the forestry business
and [T equipment. The impiementation of
IFRS i€ Leases now includes classifying office
leases a5 right of use assets on the balance
sheet and amortising these over their usefut
lives, the lease period. This had the impact of
increasing deprecation in 2019 by £0.7 milion.

Exceptional items

Infine vith previous years we havs clsssified
exceptional items as those fees and costs
which refate Lo acquisitions and restructuring
of the husiness post acquisition as well as
one-off costs. Exceptional items in 2018 were
£1.Ymiffion compared to £2.0 mikiion in 2018.
The impact of restructuring following the FIM
and Livingbridge VC acquisitions was seenin
2019, alongside the costs associated vnm the
Aberdeen Standarg ) Joint

Venture

beyond. It is not enly scquisi we

inthe first half of 20i8.

2 8 Gresham House ple.
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l 2018 ! 2018
£000 £000

Share of associates’ profits 246 1ng
Gains/(iosses) in investments held at fair value 3,048 2n
Movement in fair value of contingent consideration (2,085) (209)
Movement in value of deferred receivable - 4
Total gains/{losses) on investments 1,228 1.278
Less realised gains on investments 2,389 -
Less dividend income from associates 1,323 pall
Net (losses)/gains on investments (2,483) 1,087

Overali the Group has made gains onits
|nv=s[ments and fair value movement in

ion related contingent i
totalling £1.2 rnillion in 2019(2018: £1.3 million).

The share of associate’s profits relates tc the
23% holding that the Group has in GHS and the
Group's 28% holding in Noriker Power Limited
{Moriker). The last resuits announcement

from GHS was on 25 November 2013 for the
six-month period to 36 September 2019. Under
associate accounting, the Group has therefore
recognised its share of the profit in the period
of £70,060(2018: £1,643.000), which included
dividends received in the year from GHS of
£172,000(2016: £21,000).

The Groups investment in Noriker was
acquired for alignment as Noriker develops
battery storage projects which are part of the
pipetine of projects 1o be acquired by GRID
when operational. The Group's share of Noriker
profits in 2019 wias £187.000 (2018: £75,000),
whichincluded dividends dinthe year

battery storage project to GRID, which made a

be paid in mig-2620. The FiM acquisition also

realised profit of £2.4 millior: from th D
£0.8 million Juan and equity investment. This is
the first sale of a battery development project
and made areturn oninvestment in excess

of the Group's medium-term target of 15%.
The net gain after the deduction of variabdle
compensaticn refating to the project was £1.3
‘miliicn for the Group.

The other notable movements in the gains/

included an el ¢ that should th bined
Forestry business deliver above the sellers’
business plan that the sellers would benefit
from an amount of 33% above this target. The
current business plan is expected to deiiver an
ameunt which equatss lo an increase of £1.0
million in the contingent consideration to be
paid to the sellers and this has been recog
in the fair value movement.

ed

{losses)ini held at fair val re:

> GRID-increass inthe share price to
£108 25 at 31 December 2018, creating a
£291,000 value increase

N3

Gresham House Forestry Friends ang
Family Fund LP - the increase In the
independent valuation of the forests driving
2 £207000 increase

> LF Gresham House UK Smaller Companies
Fund - the Group's £500,000 sead

from Noriker of £1.1 milfion(2018: Enit).

The asscciates have different year ends Lo that

has increased in value b)‘
£133,600n the year

Fair value movement in contingent

of the Group no material
are required to the reported numpers.

The gain of £3.0 miilicn from investments

held at fair value in the year (2018: £0.3 million)
includes realised ang unrealised gains and
losses on the co-investments that have been
made in the funds managed or advised by
Gresham House. The key driver of this was the
realised gain made on the sale of the Red Scar

Both the FIM and Livingbridge YC acquisitions
have a contingent payment element which is
driven by revenue performance over two to
three years. The contingent consideration
payment has been fair valued at each reporting
period end with the movement in the fair value
recognised in the income statement.

The FiM contingent payment is expected to pay
out in full, with £4.0 milfion of cash expected to

The Livingbridge VC business ted

to deliver infine with the 2018 revenue
performance assumptions and the increase in
the fair value of the contingent consideration
reflects the unwind of the discount between the
period end and settiement in 2021 and 2022.

Tax

The Group continues to utitise the losses
available sgainst the current trading aciiviiy.
The tax charge noted refiects taxable

profits within the Group partially offset by

the deferred tax liability recognised on the
acquisition of the FIl1 business and the impact
of the movement in the fair valus of the FIM
ranagement contracis.

Dlsl;nntlnued operations

related to DY
Iegacy property portfelio, with the remaining
sites at Southern Gateway and Newton-le-
Willaws being salg during 2017. The small
profit of £55,000 in 2019 relates to the retum
of amounts held in escrow as part of the sale
reflects updaies as further details on the
properlies are concluded (2018: £11,000}

Gresham House ple 2 7
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Financial position

2018 2018
000 000
Assets
Insestments® 21,802 17,785
Deferred receivable - Persimmon - 1,033
Cash 18,432 13.958
Tanglble/realisable assets 1,334 32,786
In:angible assets 58,545 8581
QOther assets -~ 13,560 5832
Tetal assets 3,439 104,528
Liabilities
Borroving - 9,840
Contingent consideration 10,510 8,447
Other creditors 12,882 7.029
Total Liabilities 23,202 25316
Netassets 90,237 | 79,213
X i saxeweu.\aa.nao)an;l’ (£,
expostrein ? E Tnassrciates{£54.000)

Tangible/realisable assets

The above highlights the strong balance sheet position that the Group improved on during 2019. The tangible/realisable assets supparting this total

£41.3 miktion (2018: £32.8 million), comprise investments and cash.

Investments
The Group invests in or alongsi
portiolio at the end of the year:

the funds that it manages (o align itself with clients. The below table provides 3 summary of the investment

Investment Porttolio
2018 2018
£000 £000
Investment In assoclates ;
Gresham House Strategic plc(GHS) 8791 889
Noriker Power Limitedlequity) 30 1304
DevCo Projects 54 -
0186 10,19
Investment in securitles
Gresham House Energy Storage Fund plc(GRID) 5402 3982
De.Co Projects 3678 129
Gresham House Forestry Fund LP 1489 1337
Gresham House Stratsgic Public Equity LP 844 672
LF Gresham House Smaller Companies Fund 633 -
LM Capital pic 221 291
Noviker Power Limited(ican) . 438 -
Other investments T 5
1276 7,597
Total lling Interests) 21,802 17,795
2 8 ::‘mnm House plc
el Report and Azcounts 2019

Investments In assoclates

The Group maintained its holding in GHS in the
year at 23%. GHS has performed well in the year
and based on ils last publicly available resulls
for the six months to 30 September 2019, this
has ied {0 an increase in the recognised value
as an associate of £70,000{2018: £i.4 million),
which after adjusting for the dividend payment
of £172,000 in the year results in a valus of
£8,781,000.

The Group treats Noriker as an associate and
has also provided Noriker with 3 £439,000

king capital ioan, which was repaid sh
after year end. Noriker also made a dividend in
speciein the year in GRID shares for £1.1million,
regucing the value within Noriker to £341,000.

Investments in securities

The Group's holding in GRID is now £5.4 million
(2018: £5.2 mitiion direct and indirectly hetd),
which is ¢.2.5% of GRID's shares inissue. The
share price of GRID continues to rise and was
£1.08 as at 31 December 2018,

IFRS 10 Consclidation requires the
cansofidation of the Group's investmants

in battery storage Development Company
projects {DevCo Projects)as the Group took

a contralling position in these projscts In the
secend half of 2013. The DevCo Projects have
borrowed lo pay the deposits for the utility
scale balteries ang this borrowing is secured
at the OevCo Project level on the batteries
and there is no recourse to the Group. The
disclosure above therefore shows the Group's
exposure to the DevCo Projects, i.e. the equity
and loan investment in the vehicies and nets
out the borrowing and utility scale battery
assets as shown in the IFRS statement of
anclal position asssts and liabilities of a
disposat group held for sale.

The Group increased its investment in the
DevCo Projects in the year, whi £37

'Slmlnul:
Roport

Gresham House Forestry Fund LP has
performed weil in the year, with Increases in
the value of the underlying forests driving an
increase in the Group's investment to £1.5
million{2018: £1.3 million), excluding ron-
controlling interests.

Gresham House Strategic Public Equity LP
continued to invest during 2019 and also
generated reafised and unrealised gains of
£177.000In the year (2018: £182.060).

I I Financla! Aaditionat
Governanss Statemenis infarmatien

acquisitions and the goodwill associated with
these acquisitions. As at 31 December 2019, the
net book value of management contracts and
other intangible esssts was £34.5 million(2618:
£41.8 million), reflecting the smortisation of the
management contracts over their useful lives,
ne contracts were impaired at the year end,

Goadwill resulting from acquisitions is revievred
each year end and there was nc ingication
there any impairment to goodwill should

be considered to the book valug of £24.1

The other the Group's
ability to co-invest alongside the funds that it
vides alk P

£24.imillion). Further details
are Included in the notes to the financial

Property and deferred receivable

The final settlement by Persimmon of its
remaining £1.0 million payment under the terms
of i igi was raceived i
full on 28 February 2018 and no further amounts
are outstanding.

Cash and Borrowing

The cash belance of the Group was £19.4 million
(2018: £14.0 millionjand reflected operating
cash profits generated in the year as well as
anumber of other items. The issuance of
shares in the Company to Aberdeen Standard
Investments {ASI}in the year generated £6.5
million, alongside the exercise of Supporter

Contingent consideration

The FIM and Livingbridge YC acquisitions are
the key drivers of contingent consideration. The
fair value of the Fil contingent consideration
hasincreased to £4.7 million at the end of 2019
{2018: £3.4 mvillion). This reflects the unwind

of the discount as well as en increase of £1.0
million related to the strong performance of the
combined Forestry business as set out ai the
time of the acquisition.

The Livingbridge VC contingent consideration
increased 1o £5.8 million at 31 December 2618
(2018: £5.1 million}. There have been no material
changes to the assumptions on the pay out of

and Narrants, which expired at the

end of 2018, generated a further £4.9 millionin

2018. The sale of the DevCo Project. Red Scar,
leted on 31 December 201! gi cash

the ion, the movement
primarily reflects the unwind of the discount to
the date of payment.

proceeds of £2.3 mill;
January 2020.

The Group repaid the entire £6.8 million
Santander acquisition faciiity and revolving
credit facility in the year, leaving the Group
inanet cash position of £19.4 million(2018:
£4.1million).

The Directors carry out a rigorous assessment
of all the factors affecting the business In
deciding to adopt a going cancern basis for
tha preparation of the accounts. The Directors
i ined the financial and
other processes embedded in the business, in
particular the annual budget process. On the
basis of such review and the significant fiquid

million at the end ¢f 2018(2018: £1.3 million)
and are in the exclusive pipeline for GRID to
purchase when they are opsrational. GRID will
go through a detailed independent valuation
process when the projecis are operational

as parl of the acquisition process and these
projects currently remain on track to be
operational in 2020. The first sale of a DevCo
Project, Red Scar, took place at the end of 2019,
confirming the DevCo Project concept that the
Group can develop utility scale battery storage
projects to an operational level,

the DevCo Proj hi
borrowed te fund the acquisition of the utility
scale batteries, this exposure is neited off
against the DevCo Prejects. On consolidalion,
the IFRS statement of financial position
includes this borrowing ameunt of £9.7 million
under liabilities of a disposal group classified
as held for sale, although this borrowing has no.
recourse to the Group.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are primarily mads up of the
management contracts scquired as part of

the balance sheet relative
to the Group's predictable operating cost
profite, the Directors cunsider that the adoption
of agoing concern basis, covering a period of at
least 12 months from the date of this report. is
appropriate.

Kevin Acton
Chiet Financlal Officer
51arch 2020
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DivisionaljReview’
Strategic Equity

h

Aninvestment philosophy bas d on th
application of private equity nve ting
techniques to both public and"
companies.

Strategic Equity

AUM
As at 31 December 2013

£708m

+20%

Revenue

3 O Gresham House ple
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Public Equity
Our public equity phitosophy d

I Strateglc. U U Financls! U Aaditionat
Report Governance Statements informaticn

pushing some institutions further up the

taking a hends-on approach 1o engaging with
our investee company stakeholders, seeking
to capllahseon market inefficiencies and

& clear equity eation plan i
the lanq term.

The opportunity
We bell current i

p

> Inthe aftermath of the UK General Election
and post Brexit. better clarity is emerging,
and a more stable five-year government
term can be reascnably expected, and with
this a stable iax cutlook.

Strategic Public Equity

presents a very attractive yet overlooked
opportunity set from which significant value
and superior investment returns can be
achieved utilising cur Strategic Equity teams
approach:

> The most significant determinant of future
returns is entry valuation. UK equities remain
cheap relative to history and to mr-er markets

Strategic Public Equity (SPE) i t
investment strategy that applies private
equity techniques to investing in mainty

UK public companies, typically below E150
miltion in size. It is & highly engaged strategy,
requiring the team to use therough due
diligence to take Influential minority stakes
ininvestee companies, having identified
value creation catalysts to enable strategic,
initiatives. SPE

and assets, and this

present; ies to make sup
returns. The size' discount for the UK small
cap market is large when compared against
history - there are ¢.1000 companies vith
amarket cap of <€250 miliicn and these
smaller companies ¢an offer higher growth
rates with a iquidity discount.

- The smaller companies markets remain
inefficient, due to a lack of liquidity and
alack of research for smaller companies
exaggerated by MiFID Il as well 35 fimited
access to capital and corporate advice.

targets the inefficient areas of the UK smaller
companies markets and seeks superior returns.
over the medium-term. The investment

team takes a value approach’, with a clear
focus on Intrinsically undervalued, cash
generative companies.

The ‘value style of investing is very out of favour
nd we expect returns should mean-revert to
their long-term averages, which implies there
is a significant opportunity for outperformance.
Fewer investors are competing in this space.
Pn vate equity investment funds typically

The market focus on smalier
deteriorated further in 2619 after & pocr
year for smail-cap IPOs. Moreover, a
combination of tighter regulation and the
after-eftects of the Woodford debacle are

'Smalt Cap Discount’ - Median SC P/E - FTSE 250

limited access to public
to constraints and a lack of understanding
of public markets whilst many public market
institutions are held back by lack of trading
liquidity in smaller companies.

ﬁe greedy when

others are fearful and
fearful when others
are greedy.

SirJohn Templeton

Broker recommendations by market cap

T2 LT TS B W WU W MWW W B WV LY

Source Libsrum December 2019
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Divisional Review
Strategic Equity continued

The Gresham House investment team s highly
experienced and has desp spaciafist public
and private small-cap expertise from a 20-
year team track record of utperformance in
SPE investing.

SFE is an alpha driven strategy, tergeting
significantly undervalued companies and
isuncorrelated to a market index. It is
implemented through a concentrated portfolic,
based on substantial research and a variety of
private equity and industrialist inputs.

Strategic Public Equity

Gresham House Strategic pic and Strategic
Public Equity LP

Greshan: House Stralegic plc (GHS)delivered
aNAV total return of 19.4% for the year to

31 December 2019, versus 17.7% and 18.1% for
Total return and FTSE

Al Share Total Return indices in the year
respactively’. GHS remains a top performer
since inception, the team has delivered a NAV
Total Return of 50.5% since taking onthe
mandate in August 2015%. It also reported a
16% increase in its proposed interim dividend,
within its interir ts to 30

Investments (ASi)announced in mid-2018,
relating to our SPE strategy, is progressing.
The JV seeks to leverage the proven expertise
and successful track record of Gresham
House's SPE investment team alongside ASf's
significant globat distribution and product
development capabilities.

Specialist smatl-cap manager Richard Staveley, |

founding parther of River & Mercantile and
former Majedie fund manager. joined the
investment team in September 2018, inan
important development of the SPE team’s
capacity and capability. Richard has over

20 years invesiment management experience,

SPE LP follows a very similar investment policy
10 GHS and is the third SPE LP managed by the
Grasham House team led by Tory Daiwood.

As &t 31 December 2019, the SPE LP portfolio
valuation indicated a 1.4« money mukiple on
cosl with the fund teing 73.8% drawn. The fund
hadits final clcse or: 15 February 2018 (excluging

)and total i tand at
£10.4 mitlion.
Growth In 2020
Thet tinue to work hard on delivering

2019*. 6HS was cited at number 101n lan Cowle’s
articte 2ist Century's Top 20 Investment Trusts
so far'in January 2020°.

Joint Venture with Aberdeen Standard
Investments

The planned Joint Venture{JV)between
Gresham Heuse and Aberdeen Standard

Vatue vs Growth

top quarils performance for GHS and SPE LP
alongsice developing opportunities o grow GHS
and the JV vith AS.
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GHS NAV Total Return
since inception

50.5% ,

SPE LP Money Multiple
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UK Micro Cap and UK Multi Cap Income

LF Gresham House UK Micro Cap Fund

l Strategle.
Report

correlation to its peers. It targets an attractive
annual yield as part of a high single digit total
return. As a multi-cap fund, it has a large and

u U Financlal ﬂ Aaditional
Governancs Sitemenis informatica
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Private Equity
Gresham House's Private Equity strategy
offers investors access to entrepreneurial,

The LF Gresham House UK Micro Cap

award-winning, high-
fund, seeking to deliver leng-term returns. The
fund has achieved consistent iow correlation

focusis on profitable, cash generative growth

toils peer group i p

dividends.

companies and fundamentals-based stock
picking. Using a simflar SPE philoscphy, the
fund takes advantage of inefficient markets,
with micro~cap companies remaining under
Th lisalso h

adynamic entrepreneuriai snvircnment provi
constant renewal of the spportunities available.

The team have driven the fund since its
inception in 2009 85 a top quartile 1A UK Smaller
Companies fund over the past five years,
targeting a total return of double digit annual
total returns over the market cycle. FE Trustnet
recentlylisted the LF Gresham House UK Micro
Cap Fund as second in a list of funds combining
top-decile returns and volatility in the 2010s and
cited the thorough research process and strong
stock sslection skills of the investment team®.

For the year to 31 December 2019, the UK Micro
Cap Fund slightly underperformed the 1A UK.
Equity Income sector, returning 20.4% versus
25.3%. However, over 10 years, the fund is
ranked 4th out of 44 funds and has delivered an
impressive cumulative returns total of 395.6%
versus 245.8% in the 1A UK Equity Income
sector®. Assets in the fund at 3t December 2018
were £238.2 million.

LF Gresham House UK Multi Cap Income Fund
The LF Gresham House UK tuiti Cap Income
Fund focuses on smail and mid-cap companies
and fundamentals-based stock-picking,
seeking to deliver attractive returns with a low

The LF Gresham House UK Multi Cap Income
Fund ranked st out of 84 funds in the UK Equity
Income sector over 2 years to 31 December 2018
and remains No.1in the sector since launchin
June 2017. Assets in the fund at 31 December
2019 were E48.3 million and it will pass its all-
important three-year anniversary in June 2020,
which should ensure it is investiole for those
wiho have held it on their watch fists.

LF Gresham House UK Smaller Fund

diverse universe and op: ith | high-growth, early-stage and lower mid-marke
abias towards small and mid-cap i privat i
which provides income diversification. The

Baronsmead VCTs

The two Baronsmead YCTs [VETs) joined the
Gresham House stable at the end of 2018,
when the Group took over their management
as part of the acquisition of Livingdridge VC
LLP. Baronsmead VCT vias established 25
years ago (November 1985)and was one of the
first VCTs to be launched. There are currently
two Barensmead YCTs, each with similar
investment objectives.

‘The Baronsmead VCTs are generalist YCTs
aiming to invest primarily in unquoted, AlM-traded

The LF Gresham House UK Smalier Companies
Fund launched in February 2019 with £1.0
million in seed assets and has now accumulated
a12-morith track record, Taking the same
fundamentals-based spproach to investing, the
rationate for launching this fund was to allow
the investment leam 1o continue to invest in
selected conviction stocks they had foilowed
but that had outgrown the investment criteria
of the UK Micro Cap Fund. The UK Smalier
Companies Fund returned 26.7% for the period
1February 2019 to 31 December 2019.

Growth in 2020

igh top quartile i
and the use of our strong distribution function,
the UK Micro Cap Fund is aiming to grow its
AUM closer to the capacity of the fund at
£350 million. The UK ¥ulti Cap Income Fundis
{ aiming to continue its growth in 2020 as it goes
| through the important three-year enniversary.

@nd other small-cap lis Top-up
fundraising for the tvso VCTs has been highly
successful since Gresham House tock on the
management of the YCTs, with £25 million raised
inunder ten days in the first quarter of the year and
2further £18 millior: being raised during the course
of D4, bringing the total funds raised n the year to
31 December 2019 to £44 miillion.

The team are working hard on an exciting
pipsling of new deal opportunities to invest the
new funds and maximise the potential returns
for clients.

LMs

Atan EGM in November 2019, shareholders

of LI18 voted to terminate the existing
management agreement with Gresham House
and for the company o become self-managed,
despite the majority of the non-coneert

party shereholdere and the independent
Board supporting the reappeintment of
Gresham House as the Investment Manager.

was formaliy

Returns and volatility three year June 2009 2018 T
terminated in January 2020, with the
s 1. management fee payeble for the notice pericd
.'L to May 2020 settled.
o0 4 5. 18] L Greahum House UK kero Cap Fund
bR B #rez s seiins Growth in 2020
z : . . Lo " The VCTs are aiming tc close their current

* Spurce L frusinet 31 ecember 2613

the very-tog af theie seci and sisk .

fundraising with an additionat £20-30 million by
the end of March 2020 and will iook to continue
growlng the VCTs in 2020 through strong
investment performance and potentially further
new share issues.
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yfunds an
+ have exceeded their target investment IRRs of 7%
: per annum, deliveringover 1% per annum.

i The opportunity
! We exusct global demand for timber to continue

Strategy
Commercial forestry is a real asset class that

the next 30 years, with giobal
» industriat roundwood timber consumption
+ predicted to more than double by 2050, We believe
i y i hind thi i

U Financial
vernan.e Statemenis

ionat
tic

UA::
nfe

" ks noted, the construction sector creates

demand for a wide range of timber praducts,
from high-value sawlogs, engineered wood
products, furniture and decking. The remainder
is utitised by the energy industry (for biomass)
and as paper and cardboard packaging.

The UK currently imports ¢.815 of its timber*
andis the largest consumer of wood pellets.

5 urbenisstion- the globalurb

10 both timber
Iandvalue grovth. Gresham House's UK 'ores(ry
P

is ferecast by the UN to rise by 57% over
the next thirty years, driven by both generat
i population growth and the move from rural

term returns. 0 o urban areas to ssek prosperity (jobs,
classes, benefiting f he 1 betterliving standards, better access

leams slgnlhcanl P with health edu::atlan and alonger

the the tre H lifespan). ion and rising GOP per

returns from the asset class. : cepitaincrease timber demand.

Commercial forestry investment p(ovldns P> E\.uncmy dscarbonisation - under the 2016

exposure (o timber prices, h i aris ies are required

House forecasts to continue torise in the
medium and long term. When grown and
managed well, forestry generates income from
timber sales, provides inflation protsction,
and, for those exposed to UK tasation is free of
Income Tax on timber harvesting activities and
Capitai Gains Ta« free an the grovth on value
of timber{growth in land values is potentiatly
subject to Capital Gzins Tax). In addition,
commercial forestry is 100% Inheritance Tax
exempt after a tvio-year qualifying period.

Allof the forests managed by Gresham

i tokeepglobalwarming to well below 2°C

7.3 million Lons per annum,
equivalent to 40% of EU consumption and 21%
of global demand .

Average annual returns from the IPD UK Annual
Forestry Indey were 9.2% over the past 26 years
to December 2017, comparing favourably with
more mainstream asset classes. The indexis
transitioning to a new provider and therefore no.
index was published for 31 December 2018,

We offeri tofor

try ys:

Limited Partnerships and Non-discretionary
accounts

t andif possible 1.5 °C above pre-ind 1
temperature levels. Most countries,

! including nearly the whole of the EU, are

H targeting 8 40% reduction in emi

The Forestry bus Limited
Partnership{LP)funds and non-discretionary
managed accounts for individuals and

by 2030 &nd to be completely carbon
reutral by 2050. Timber is the natursl and
sustainable low carbon substitute product
for buildings and baseload energy.

Housing shorage - housebuiiding,
independent of the addmural uses of timber,
continues to be il to globat

These assets are long term in
nature, reflecting the long-term capital growth
of forests and address clients'needs for income
from timber harvesting. This also ensures
Gresham House can earn management fees over
along period, providing sustainable revenues.

Feesare earnnﬂ from bo(h mana.,lr.q the
d fi

rinuseere ified as ID’%

forests i1} rom

timber

prier to harvesting

Following the acquisition of FiM Services
Limited (which wes founded in 1979)in 2018,
Gresham House became the UK's largest
commercial forestry asset manager, harvesling
approximately 10% of the UK's softwood

annually. This means we have deep internal

i averages
innear ,yallmayo. economies.

Global industrial rourdvrood timber

* consumption reached a new: high of 2.0bn

. cubic metres in 2018{the latest full year for

- which figures were produced). Over the past 20
years, it has riser: by 28%, with the oniy fall of

knowledge of the UK timber
industry. enabling us to maximise the price at
which we sell timber for our clients; institutions,
endoviments, tamily offices and private
investors. Qur forestry investments are backed
by owning the underlying freehatd land on which
commercial timber is grown and harvestes in
asustainable manner. A balanced portfolio can
provide a perpetuity style cash yield, which is
extremely attractive to investors.

2018 marved a significant period of growth and
integration for the Gresham House Forestry
team. £148 million of UK and Irish forestry
assets were acquired in the period, increasing
the area we menage to ¢.135,000 hectares,
worthin excess of £1.3 biliion, We were
delighted to be appeinted by AXA Investment
Managers - Real Assels to marage a 4,074
hectare foresuy porifolio n Irelond i Iay.

his brought an important i client
to our business and set plans in motion for the
development of an international forestry fund

platform. 4 fundrzise for the FIM Timberland LP

also saw over £35m raised (before fees)during
the second half of the year.

Forestry portiolios are each unigue by their natur:
but futlyinvested portiofios across Gresham

o gin
This demand increase comes at a time when

 even greater constraints are being piaced
on traditional sources of supply, through
reductions in illegal logging, driving timber

© prices higher. This has resulted in both greater

| revenu from timber harvesting and aiso

© higher land values as the land becomes more

* tinancially productive.

e UKin 20

and vafuation,
appropriate acquisition prices and providing
due diligence in the acquisition process on
behalf of clients.

Growth In 2020

‘The Forestry business aims 10 raise further

AUM though the LPs that it manages as wefl
o ehal of indivi A

and other funds that It manages or advises.
The business continues to operate both on and
off market transactions enabling a number

of pipeline transactions to be identified and
developed to deliver the needs of its funds

and other clients. After our success in the Irish
market in 201, we witl also continue ta work cn

developing ; esiry.

Emcuictty
Heat
A

Woad Patists.

Ugutd Biofusts

esl]
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Bivisional Review
Real Assets continued

Grasham House Energy Storage Fund plc (GRID)

House Renewable Energy VCT 2{VCTs), formerly

CRIDinvesisina f

operational ESS located in Great Bmam.
servicing the Mational Grid with a stable
electricity supply and addressing the

i i f

the Hazel Energy VCTs. These
VCTs were launched in 2610 to capitalise on
the opportunity created by the granting of UK
government incentives in the form of nfiation-

New Energy

Strategy
Trel\' e Energy sirategy supports the shift from

Following on from the successful £100 million

launch and IPQ in Movembsr 2018, a further £167

million was raised by GRID in 2019, making it

the largest fund of its kind in the UK. It targets
aNAV 18.0% per of

toan: gy

sustainzble long-ierm returns for investors.

Investments are focused on key transformative
technologies: solar, wind and energy storage,
and can be accessed through listed vehicles,
Altgrnative investment Funds (AIF) or direct
investrnent,

Returns are supported by strong asset backing,
asustainable income yield, and the potential for
capital grovah, The investment team have an

all fund expenses and before leverage) witha
minimum target dividend payment of 7.0p'(4.5p
in its first financial year).

The investment team built out projects
considerably over 2019, and the portfolio
now includes nine operational sites across
the UK with a total capacity of I74MW as at
31December 2013,

gy - Wind - The former FIi4 Wi

2LPvel was successfully converted into

Fresham House Wind Energy 1 pic inJung 2018,
i lebi

track dinclude resp
analysis-criven investment managers who
undersiand the potential of clean e—\e'gy Our

rehicle provided
10 enable further

finked Fe replaced
by Renewable Obligation Cerlificates for larger
installations) 1o suppert the deployment of
renewable energy generation, The combination
of fixed teriffs with little exposure to wholesale
market power prices end the contracted
nature of the cost base, ensures that these
assets generate stabie and predictable cash
flowss which in turn engble angd supporta
robust dividend stream of a similar profite. The
dividend stream is further enhanced by virtue of
being free of income tax for individuals.

The YCTs are currently fully invested and
own 3 portfolio of 14 renewable generation
assets, with an emphasis on ground mounted
solar, plus an additional two investments in
innovative clean energy businesses: Bio-bean
and Rezatec. Bio-bean recycles used coffee
qgrounds into efficient, usﬁamabte prauu:.s
trial

raised. Following this conversion, £19.4m was

trategi p for
lorg-term investors seeking investment raturns
supported by strong assets. a sustainable yield
through tegular income gistridutions, where
spolicable, and the potential for capital growrh,

The opportunity

Tha New Energy team has been investing in the

rapxdl y changing ennrgy iandscape, tsclrlmg
her

forwef a ceca'le They have harnessed their
technical and investment expnmse 1o produce
asrong track record of i ing i and

fees and costs}in 03 2018 and
has been deployed into a majority hoiding in the
Wathegar 2 wind farm, which s adjacent to one
of the funds existing assets.

New Energy - Solar - Further to fundraising
in 2018 for the FiM Solar Distribution LLP, the
majority of capital raised was deployed in
November into the acquisition of a 12MW battery-
ready’ solar farm, Bumpers. from Anesco. This
site Is expected to be operational in 01 2020.
1In2020, Ihe m»lesm\em team expects to meet

al areas of the new energy industry,
focused particularly on onshare wind, roofiop
and ground-mounted sofar, and battery storage,
seeking to deliver sustainable, attractive yields
for investors and preserve capital. By ersuring
good capital-backing, strong relation

th interest from clients for
further solar investment opportunities with the
tgunch of a further fundraising.

New Energy - Gresham House Renewable
Energy VCTI and VCT2
The New Energy team manages the Gresham

witht . best-pi
P daniTi

that minimises costs as wefl as the potential for
inefficiencies, the team has been free to apply its
core competences and expand during 2019.

The New Energy team has a proven tr
recard developing and gperating energy
storage and other renewable assets, havinq
previously developed or acquired over 174M
of Ener\;nyorage Systems (known as ESS)
250MW of p i
ground-mounted solar projects. The team
curvently manages approximately 195MW of
solar and wind energy projects.

House Energy YCT 1 and Gresham

Rise of renewables

fork andi

and Rezatec applies unigue machine learning
algorithms to earth observation datale.g.

5 ite imagery, topographyl to generste data
analytics products.

Growth in 2020

1n 2020 GRID hope 1o raise additional funds
via 8 series of placings in order 16 continus to
acquire new operationat projects and further
devzlop existing projects thal the team have
identified within their exclusivity pipeline.
GRID closed a successful placing for a further
£31 miflion in March 2020 and expests to add
afurther 160MW during 2020. In addition,
further solar expansion is expected to grov an
institutional grade solar fund.

Tvm
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l Stratogic
Report

! the continuing supply and demand imbalance

{ evident in the UK present an atiractive

opportunity? and the Gresham House team
seeks to hamess angoing secular trends as

l Fingaclal Additiona
Governansa Statements in‘ormatica

> Asset backing

> Replacement cost typically over 70% of
capital invested

the UK fe and

Housing & Infrastructure

Durinvestments ceatre on Investments at

Strategy the less-competitive end of this market -

Our Housing and gy aims | areasoft byinvestors - with

to deliver superior financial returns alongside | jnyestments below £50 million. This presents
p impact, fonati opportunities and in

throughi into these L

of the LN' market facing undersupply. These
sectors are viewed ically important

our view, this is a more fragmented space than
sraditionf larger infrastructure investmants, as

for the national,

focus on £100 mitlion

of the UK. Investments in this area generally
benelit from substantial asset-backing and can
provide investors with attractive long-term cash
flow vehich benefits from:

> The defensive nature of the undertying
assets

> Downside protection from the asset
backing

- Ansttractive income stream that is often
infiaticn-linked

W+

investments with a positive impact

plus

These are capital-interisive opportunities
which typically reauire a long-term investment
horizon and a significant upfront investment
of time to reatise best value in the long run.
The investment team's extensive indusiry
experience and network of contacts and
advisors positions us well to realise this long-
term value.

Britlsh Strategic Investment Fund (BSIF)
Strategy

There is currently £200 million of LP
.,amnnmems across the BSIF Slra(eqy, lmm

Our clients are primarily local
pension schemes and institutional investors,

(LGPS)and local author

British Strategic

for whorn we aim to provid ies to
investin local infrastructure in the UK, whilst

Ourinvestments aim to deliver a positive
environmenta and social impact by focusing on
areas offering the greatest potential including

Fund LP was
a12-year limited partnership, and in Seplember
2018 the Fund vas split into two "Sub-funds”
{Bresham House BS! Infrastructure LP and
Gresham House BSI Housing LP}, with the aim
of alloving LPs to allocate (o either one or both

itiall

waste recycling, L New
energy generation, and related infrastructure
and healthcare, while fooking to create jobs,

the benefit of investment activities, suchas
affordable housing.

The opportunity

We believe that the UK's housing and

i i re ata pi

of development, offering the opportunity

to generate income and capital grovth

whilst benefiting from asset-backing. UK
infrastructure requires further investment and
the Government has identified over £600bn’
of investment requirement over the coming
decade. The underlying demagraghics ang

gments of Housing and infrast

The BSIF Strategy focuses on several key
ia:

> Positive Social impact

> Investments are aligned vith our
positive social Impact criteria

= Quality income yield
- Cash flow to investors frorn long-term
and diversified income streams
= Infiation finkage and uncorrelated returns

> Target over 50% of revenues linked
or correlated to RP or regional House
Price Inflation

> Yietd pre: potential

- pggregation of investments provides
scale ang valuation uplift potential

> Managing risk/reward to allow greater vlue
capture

= e.g.limited construction risk allows
generation of superior returns

= Portfotio Construction

> Toachieve strong risk-adjusted returns
through diersification by sector and
reglon

The BSIF Strategy targets an 8-10% annusl net
return including an income yield of 5-6% per
annurn, alcnyside its stated objective to
deliver a positive social impact. Based on
current commitments s at the end of January
2020, the strategy is 63% committed and

40% deployed.

Demonstrating appetite from LGRS for less
competed, smalier-scale opportunities that
deliver both income and a positive social
impact, me BSIF Strategy has made seven

utilising
developmients to provide pioneering solutions
to modera day issues geared towards
sustainability. These investments include;
vertical farming (hydroponics), waste recycling,
and alfordable and sustainable housing, with
other areas of work in progress including in-
land squaculture.

Agenuine partnership approach is taken
through an established LP co-investment
platform and co-investment opportunities with
our clients are made available for the majority
of investments. Through the LP investment
sdviscry committee, invesiors have a forum to
actively engage vith the investment team.

Growth In 2020

The BSIF Strategy Housing and Infrastructure
sub funds are open to new investors untita
final close in H12020. We conlinue to see
increasing interest from new investors for this
differentiated strategy.

Hationzt
irg oot
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Risk management

Effective risk management

The Board is responsible for the effective
management of risks across the business.
Risks are integref to the business model of the
Group and the Board considers the effective
management of these risks as central to the

base. Through the behaviours and attitudes

of its staff, Gresham House can ensure thatit
creates, over time, a risk-aware culture, where
risk-based decisions are made deliberately and
there is a desire tolearn from mistakes and

cievement of its iong b
Gresham House follows a structured approach
to the management of risks. We o tnis using
acocumented risk management framework
that comprisss regular review of the Groups
ris< structurs, risk appetite and policies. Fisk
management al Gresham House is built on the
fol owing pilars:

w Governance and culture

Governance

Thz Board of Directors is responsible for the
overall management of risk within the Group.
Th s includes the identification,

drive in processes
and systems.

The Board recognises that an effective risk
culture is dependent on having a balanced and
sustaingble company cuiture, putting in place
astructured approzch to decision-making and
investing in Its pecple.

Risk identification and assessment is a two-
step process involving:

Risk identification
and prioritisation

control and monitoring of relevant risks across

f the strategic objectives
of the Group as a wihole and supporting

the CGroup. The Audit C i r
Greup-wide risks on a regular basis and

makes recommencations to the Board. The
Bosrd also allocates responsibilities for the
menagerment of identified risks. A strong risk
culiure is promoted throughout the Group with
e s to ke ibili

for reporting identified risks to senior
management.

The Risk Management Framework of Gresham
Ho.se is designed 1o ensure the prompt and
accurate identification, assessment and
management of internal and external risks, In
the first ling, risk management is embedded
intothe activities of each business area
and assigned to individual risk owners who
ensure that the risks as assigned to them
are effectively supervised and managed. In
the second ling, the Independent risk and

iance funcii ies out monitoring of
the effectiveness of controls in the first line and
regorts to the Board. It also supports the first
line In ensuring that the risks

busi and

- identification and assessment of the risk
events that might impede the achievement
of abjectives or delivery of business
processes.

Risks are identified at various levels of the
organisation including at Board level, Audit
Committee or Management Committee. Once
rigks have been identified, they are captured,
essigned and assessed as part of the risk
sssessment process. Some rigks are inherent
asaresultof i
that it undertakes - for exampte, market,
liquidity, operational, reputational and strategic
risks. However, the risk horizon is never static
and new risks do arise from either internal or
external factors. These risks are identified and
captured as emerging risks.

Given the number of risks that are relevant to
Gresham House, itis vital that we are able to
prioritiss the risks we face. Risk prioritisation

effectively managed.

Culture

The Board sels the right tone at the top by
supporting a sense of collective responsibili
for risk menagenient across the employse

o jing of risk exposures
relative to each other and the efficient
application of rescurces within the Group. The
risk assessment process delivers a defined
methodology in order to establish the impact
&nd likelihood of & risk to Gresham House.

@® Risk appetite, tolerance
@6@ and {imits

Gresham House accepts that risk is inherent
inits business activities and seeks lo maintain
arisk profile that defivers the best potential
grovathwithin an acceptale risk level. The
purpose of a risk management framework s to
support the creation of a risk aware culture by
ensuring that business decisions are made on
aninformed basis to reflect agreed business
strategy and risk appetite, tolerance and limits.

Risk tolerance represents the isvel of risk that
the Board considers acceplabie to e«pose the
organisation toin order to achieve its sirategic
objectives. As such, it defines the Group's
willingness to accept risk and the boundaries
for risk taking. The tolerance is quantified

and performance against those fimits is
tracked and controlled to ensure the business
operates within the agreed parameters. A
comgprehensive set of risk limits underfie the
risk tolerances - for ecample, invest
allocation limits, concentration limits, payment
authorities, etc.

Once risks have been identified and their

exposure assessed, consideration is given to the
controls and other mitigation strategies that can
be applied to manage the risks appropriately and

within the agreed isk toterance. Approaches
taken to manags those risks incluge:

Risk management
and controls

> Taking steps to reduce the fikelihocd
or impact of the risk through the use of
effective controls;

- Avoiding t

isk altogether;

+

Substituting the risk with a less risky
alternative such as through the use of
outsourced service providers;

= Mitigating the risk through contracts or
financial measures such as hedging or{re)
insurance: and

3 8 Bresham House plc
fnval Report and Accaunts 2019

+ Acceptingtheriskasbeingeitheran
opportunity worth pursuing or a threat with

impact and/or i
that no further action is needed or possibl

As part of the risk assessment process,
controls and mitigation strategies are
documented for each material risk with risk
owners taking cwnership of the maintenance
peration of designed mitig Is.

6® Risk reporting and

Risk reporting is intsgral to the Group's risk
management framework and takes place at
anumber of different leveis throughout the

' Strategic
Ropart

sufficient information to enable them to
© assess:

= The effectiveness of the control
environment.

. The Board and Audit Committee meets at least

: semi-annually to review and, where required.

* challenge the Group's management of risks

i and any significant changes to the profile of
S . L

: > Itanagement of risks in line with strategic
objectives and agreed risk tolerances: and

being taken to mitig

 or control key risk exposures. This also

- controls must be designed. Risks are thus

. requlafly tracked to ensure consistency with

business. It provides 3
the Board and relevant external parties with

Risk outlook
Principal risks and uncertalnties

includes the inclusion of any emerging or newly
identified risks for which suitable mitigation

U U Financlal UAﬂdExlonal
Govarnencs Statements Information

| Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment

| Process(ICAAP)

i The regulated entities viithin the Group undergo
. anannual capitat adequacy assessment

. exercise that ensures identified risks are

+ quantified and the adequate capital maintained
| to cover the identified risks. This eercise

: considers:

: = Current and forward-looking assessment
of the risks and financial position of the
entities over a multi-year horizon;

Applicabte financial and non-financial risks
and the effectiveness of internal controls
1o manage the likelihood andlor impact of
those risks; and

Capital requirements to ensure the financial
stability of the entities under base case and
i stressed scenarios.

The Group maintains a risk register which records all the key risks which are relevant to the Group. identified risks are assigned to risk cwners who
ensure that the mitigation controls remaln effective. The principal risks to which the Group is exposed and the current Board assessment of ach

risk is set out in the chart below:

IMPACT

3 4 5
LIKELIKDOD

© Strategic and Business Risks
© Regulatory and Legal Risks
€ Macroeconomic Risk

O Investment Risk

© Operationai Risk

© Financlal Risk

QO Before controts

@ ateer contrals

Gregham House plc 3 9
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Risk management

1. Strategic and business risks

Risk description

Strategy failure risk

The risk that the Board pursues a
strategy that fails to meet shareholder
okjectives,

Petentlal impact
Tris could lead to increased difficulties
with attracting new and existing
investor capital and loss of market
canfidence.

Loss of key personnel
risk

The Company’s development and
prospects are dependent upon the
service and performance of the
Directors and senior management.

The loss of the services of any of the
Directors or senior management could
cause disruption to the strategic
objectives and day-to-day operations of
the Group.

Potential impact
This could fead to roputational damage,
toss of key investors and reduced

revenues.

Acquisition ris

As the Group pursues an acquisition
growth strategy as well as organic
growth, there is the risk that the
synergies and other benefits envisaged
prior to the acquisition do not
materlalise. No acquisitions were made
in 2019 allowing the Group to focus on
embedding the new teams into the
ethos and eulture of Gresham House.

Potentlal impact
Loss of investor confidence, material
write downs of Group assets.

Mitigation approach

between the

Regular and open
shareholders.

of the Broup and

Responsibility for setting the business strategy of the Group resides with the
Boara. The Management Commmitzee is responsibe for delivering this strategy
and regularly reviewing performance against the strategic objectives.

Proactive engagement vith euisting and poteritial investors for all Group
progucts.

Clear, unambiguous and limely Issuance of product documentatior ta support
decision-making by investors.

The Board has constituted a Remuneration Committee which regularly reviews.
remuneration levels to ensure they remain competitive and align management
with the long-term success of the Company through deferred awards.

Minimum notice periods are included in key persons’ contracts of employment to
ensure any departures are sfficiently managed to minimise disruplion.

Successicn planning is in place to ensure there is cover for key roles in the event
of loss of services of any of the directors or senior management.

Acquisitions follow 8 structured process involving senior management and
consuliations with significant external stakeholders.

Dedicated resources assigned to design and implement integration plans for the |

acquired entities’ people and systems.

All acquisitions involve & thorough due diligence exercise involving professional
advisers as necessary to ensure minimal lgvels of uncertainty, cenciuding in an
approval requirsment from the Greshsrm House Investment Committee and the

Trend

©

4 O Gresham House plc
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2. Regulatory and governance risks

l Strategle H U Financlal additional
Roport Governance Swtemenis informativy

Risk description

Conduct risk

The rigk of poor outcomes to
stakeholders arlsing from defiberate
or negligent actions by the Group or its
employees.

Potential Impact
Regutatory consure, fines, and
reputational damage.

Breaches risk

The Group is subject to significant
and continuously updated tegal and
reguiatory requirements. There is
the risk that the Group breach

Mitigatlon approach Trend
Regular trai § t i
obligations. With the introduction of the Senior Managers and Certification Regime,
this has been further embedded through specific training and awareness of
individual and coltective responsibilities.

Th of ani i pi to regularly monitor

and identify any actual or polential breaches. @
A i licy is in place that the ion principles,
i risktaking and strix ppropriate bafance between fixed

ang variable pay.

A comprehensive Policy and Procedure Framework is in place (o guide empioyees’
activities.

Periodic training to staff is in place to ensure all staff are aware of the
i d their obligations in meeting those i

its obligations under the various
reguiations.

Patential impact
Regulatory censure, fines, and
reputational damage.

g y hori Is adepted to ensure the Group is adequately @
prepared for changing legislation and regulations.

External and internal legal advisers are engaged to support senior management
across al areas of the business.

3. Macroeconomic risk

Risk description

Macroeconomic risk

This is the risk of an adverse impact

on our revenue and profitabliity from

an economic downturn. The Group has
significant exposure to the UK economy.
The absence of a deal with the EU at the
end of the transition period may lead to a
1arge scale slow down in the UK economy
and consequent impact on the markets in
which the Group operates.

Potential impact
Slowdown in the growth of AUM leading
to reduced revenue and profitability.

k

As the global climate changes at an
accelerated pace, there is the risk that
fundamental assumptions on economic
growth rates change for the worse.

Climate change

Potential impact
Investment underperformance.

Mitigation approach Trend

The Group manages investments in reasonably uncorrelated assst classes such
as Forestry and Renewables which we expect to still be attractive to investors in
the event of an economic downturn.

The Group has a robust capital position which means a period of sustained
markel decline can be reasonably managed.

The Group has limited exposure to Europe as managed assets are primarily
domiciled in the UK. Marsting notifications will be used where possible in o
spplicable European jurisdictions. Alternative arrangements for operating within

the EU in 2 no-deal scenario wili be explored as required.

We continue to monitor and participate in public debate and requlatory
developments on climate change and approaches to managing the investment
risk.

The Group is signed up (o @ number of responsible investing protocols to o
ensure Its investments benefit from the changes brought about by climate
change, for example the Group is a signatary of the United Nations Principles for

Responsible Investment.

Gresham House plc: 4-]
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Risk management

4. Investment risk

Risk description

Investment risk

The risk that actual performance
by funds of the Group deviate from
expected performance due to
systematic and/or unsystematic
factors.

Petontlal impact
Less of nvestor confidence. reduced
AUM and profitability.

The Group also Invests in its own Private
Eguity funds and is therefore exposed
to the performance of these funds.

Mitigation approach

Dedicated fund and |n-les.m=nrmanagers!oreechof the Group's pmdunlsanu

rg-party mandales to ensure ! losely and
prozctively taken if necessary.

lnvesrmnnt rommll(ees made up of leading |no=-pznden( industry experts who
fienge for prog the funds.

Reqular i d external i y adverse trends in
performance are promptly identified and manages.

Appointment of lmer'za‘ aersnn" to bwatd seats in private |rvsslee mmpames
which wilt ensure the up ropriate i
performance of \hose enlmes

. Operational risk

Risk description

People Risk

The risk of operational or other
breaches arising from inadequate or
failed human resources.

Potential impact
Regulatory censure, fines, reputational
damage.

Failure of processes and
systems

The risk of significant failures to
internal processes and systems.

Patential impact
This could Iead to busmess continuity

M]hgauon approach

quular iomms for employss engagement has been established 1o ensure
5 are heard. Ar in place supportin-
ananyrnaus communications.

Recruitment of additional experienced resources at all fevals of the organisation.
Reqular training is provided to staff on key cperational processes and systems.

Periogic performance evaluation of all staff members.

Dedicated forum - the Operations Cum'mnee - Ior addressmc operational matters
with regutar reporting to the Board.

The Group i Whird parties in al
and carries out reqular due difigence on these third partiss.

Periodic business continuity testing to ensure resilience of the Group's and critical
third-party systems.

events, losses, of S03001 certificati ing ion and

clients or supptiers, and the Group.

damage.
Proactive engagement vn:h third parties supplying critical systems to ensure
prompl i of emerging issues.

i The Group its cybe: i to monitor those

Cyber risk systems for any breaches.

The risk that the Group's systems are . . N N

accessed by unauthorised persons and Dedicatedr: Pty Gme 9",'?’ nology Officer ght and

cllent data Is breached. or (he Broups thed

Potential impact

Reputational damage, fines from the
regulator, loss of client data, loss of
investor confidence.

have been run with members of staff to inform about cyber
security risks and their responsibilities for ensuring security of Group data.

Th table third pa
processes for ensuring the securlly of the Grcuns syslems

the Group's

4 2 Gresham House pl
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5. Operational risk {continued}

Risk description Mitigation approach

Engagement of suitable, authorised third parties to manage operationai assets of
Health a.nd meqmganaged funds. q
safety risk

{ app up wide i ing health and safety.

Due to the Group’s management of
alternative assets including forestry Safety iraining to Gperational staff i of clear
and energy, there is the risk of injury procedures. Q
or ifl health to employees arising in the

course of the execution of day-to-day
responsibiities.

Potentlal impact
Lass of key personnel, lawsuits and
reputational damage.

8. Financial risks

igation approach "Trend

Risk description

Capital and The anup ensures ig exceeds minimum levels of liquidity at all times to support
vap s ar working capital requirements.

liquidity risk
An ICAAP s prepared for regulated entities within the Group to assess capital

The risk of i ensure sufficient capitat i 1o cover those ri

fiquidity within the Group to meet its nor mal and stressed market conditions.

financial obligations as they fall due.
Liquigity th ith ad s putin e

Liquidity risk in relation to funds is place to ersure future cash flows are apnropna rely provided for.

the risk that redemptions or other

obfigations as they arise cannot be met. Liquidity is actively 2 across funds by ing the funds do not invest
outside of their mandate in unlisted zssets, do not hay AP to

ingle holda of cash.

Potentlalimpact
Reputationa) damage, loss of investor
confidence.

House ple 4 3
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Board of Directors

Experience and skills

4

Detalls of Directors’ emoluments
together with the Directors'
interests fn shares are provided In
the Remuneration Report. There
were no contracts of significance
inwhich the Directors had a
material interest.

o Audit Committee

Anthony Townsend

Anthony (Tony) Dalwood

Anthony was appointed as a

Director in December 2014 and
isamember of the Company's
Reniuneration Committee and

Chief {Ce0)

Tonyled the MBiand was
appointed 2s CEO in December
20, He is an sxperienced
investor and adviser to public

Kevin Acton
Chiet Financial Officer (CFO)

Kevin vsas appoinied as an
Executive Director in June 2018
and s the Company’s CFO. He
has over i7years of finance

Audit Committee and Chair
of the Company’s Momination
Committee. He has spent over
50years working in the City of
London and vas Chairman of

quit
and Chairman of the Investment
Committee. Tony established
VG Investment Managers

{a subsidiary of SYG Capital

the {

Compenies from 2003 102003,
Currently, he is Chairman of ;
BMO Global Smaller Companies

plc), previously gas CEO
and Chairman, and iaunched
Strategic Equity Capital plc.

plc and Finsbury Growth &
Income Trust plc and a Director
of Baronsmead Second Venture
Trust pic and Hansa Capital
Partners LLP.

Anthony vas a Director of Brit
Insurance Holdings glc from

p
include CEO of SVG Advisers
(formerly Schrogers Ventures
(LondonjLimited). a member of
the UK Invesiment Committee
of UBS Phillips & Grew Fund
Managerent(PDFM), a
Director of Schroders Private
Equity Funds and Chairman

Paneland

1999 t0 2008 2 ofthe
the company on the Councitof board mersber of the London
Lioyds of London from 2006 Pension Fund Authority. He

10 2608. Prior 1o this, he was
Managing irector of Finsbury
Asset Management Limized from
1988 t0 1998 anda Non-Executi

o Remuner;

0 Nomination Committee
@ resimentcommitee

&
@;3 Chair of Committee

Director of Worldwide Healthcare
Trust plc from 1996-2013.

00®

is also a Director of JPEL pic
and Granton Capital Limited,
amember of the CFA(UK), &
Board Governor of St Albans
School and an adviser 1o St.
Edrmunds College. Cambridge
Endowment Fund.

@

in private equity and asset
management.

Kevin joined the Company from
Oaktree Capital Management
where he was a Senlor Vice
President responsibls for
finance and operaticns in

the European principa! teem,
covering private equity and
debi opportunity funds. Prior
to joining Daktree, Kevinwas
Directer, Group Reporting and
Valuations for 3i Group plc.
Kevin qualified as & Chartered
Accountant with Deloitte and
isa feflow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of
England and Wales,

4 4 Gresham House plc.
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Richard Chadwick
Non-Executive Director

Richard is a Charizred
and was appoint

Simon Stilwell
Non-Executive Director

Simon joined the Company

as a Non-Executive Oirector of
the Company in June 2008. He
serves s the Company's Senior
Indspendent Director and is
aiso Chairman of the Audit
Commitiee and a member of
the ion Committee

asaN Director
in December 2017 and was
appointed Chairman of the

Committee

4

Rachel Beagles

Gareth Davis

Rachel joined the Company as
a Mon-Executive Director in
March 2018 and is @ member of
(he Audit, Remuneration and
Pl

Director

Gareth: joined the Company as

1 aMon-Executive Director in

W

October 2018, having previously
served in the Company’s

inDctober 2018. Heisalsoa

member of the Company's

Audit, Nominaticn and
Commmi

Fachelis currently Chair of
the iation of

y p.Heisalsoa
member of the Company’s Audit,
Nornination and Remuneration
Commi

Companit j Chair of

and Nomination Cemmittee.

Richard spent 27 years within
the J Sainsbury plc group of
companies where he gained
considerable evperience of
propesty development and
financing, having been Director
of Corporate Finance and of
Business Development, and a
Non-Executive Director of the
group’s preperty development
company.

G600

Simon has over 24 years'
erperience in the City and was,
untit 2015, Chief Executive

of Liberum, the investment
hank that he co-founded in
2007. Prior to Liberum, Simon
was head of sales for small
companies at Collins Stewart
plc and was also a Director at
Beeson Gregory Limited. Simon
is currently CEG of Bonhilt
Group plc, an All4 listed gigital
media and events business.

0300

Nev:lonBuiid Limited, the
private sale development
subsidiary of Newlon Heusing
Trust. She is also Senior
Independent Director of
Aberdeen New Indla Investment
Trust pic. She spent her
executive career In equity
research and sales and she was
Co-Head of the pan-European
banks equity research and cales
teamand a Managing Director at
Deutsche Bank's corporate and
investment banking division.
Since then she has worked

asa Mon-Eecutive Director

on the Boards of & number of
companies in the housing, asset
management and investment
company sectors.

000

Garethis currently Chair of DS
Smith pic and was appointed
Deputy Chairman of M&C Saatchi
with effect from 3 February
2020. He was previously Chair

of William Hil plc and Ferguson
ple. Gareth's executive career
was spent at Imperial Brands,
serving for 38 years. He became
CEQIn earl; 1886, leading the
de-merger from Hanson pic later
that year. During his tenure as
CED, Imperial grew to be one

of the vrorld's fargest tobacco
businesses, posting huge
shargholder returns.

On retirement in mid-2010,
Harvard Business Review cited
him as one of the Worid's Top 50
CEDs interms of value creation.

000
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| Corporate Governance - overview

‘hi‘n

Anthony Townsend
Chairman, Gresham House plc Board

l Corporate governance is at the heart

of this organisation to maintain integrity and

: deliver value for shareholders and clients.

\ Directors’ attendance at Board and Committee meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year and receives

accurate, timely and joninaft
appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties effectively. There were
ten Board meetings{four of which were Sub-Committee meetings),

‘ three meetings of the Audit Committee, one Nomination Committee

d of a quality

ting and four meetings of the

ommittee held
during the year and the attendance of the Directors was as follows:

=3

Otvetor Bof  Conmae  Conhme  Commhme
Anthony Townsend 5/8* 214 313 e
| Tony Dalwood 8/6 - - -
Kevin Acton 8/8 - - =
Richard Chadwick 6/6 ary 33 n
Rache! Beagles 6/6 4lt 3/3 n
Simon Stitwell 6/6 aret 373 n
Gareth Davis® n - - -

' Four
attended by the requisite number of Directors.
* Denotes Chair,

ctober

‘Where a Director is unable to attend a particular meeting, the

materials for the meeting are provided to them, their vievss are sought i

ided

inadvance briefing;

S

The Board recognises the importance of
d d i

with the Corporate Governance Code for

Small and Mid-Size Ouoted Companies{0CA
Corporate Governance Codel, as published by
the Quoted Companies Alliance (JCA). The (CA
Code was devised by the QCA in consultation
with a number of significant institutional

smalt company investors as an alternative
corporate governance code to the UK Corporate
Governance Code, applicable to, and more
suitable for, many All M companies.

The Board beligves that the OCA Code provides
the Gompany with a practical and rigorous
corporate governance fremework 1o support
the business and its success in the long-term.
Details of how Gresham House has epplied

the OCA Code are set cut in this report and on
our website at hitps://greshamhouse.com/

P
(CA-Disclosures-28.01.2020-Final.pd!

The Board

The Board currently comprises two Executive
and five Non-Executive Oirectors as described
on pages 44 to 45,

The Board is led by the Chairman who is
responsible for corporate governance asa
whole and snsuring the Board is effective

in directing the Company, The Board is
responsibie for the overall strategy and
management of the Group. There is 3 formal
schedute of matters specifically reserved
for Board decisions, Including investment
and performance objectives and policies,
financial reporting and control, the approval
of barrowings by the Group, any investments
or disposals over certain ihresholds and
sharehalder communications. The Board
cperates as a collective decision-making
forum. In the event that one or more Directors
cannot support a consensus decision, a vote
would be taken, and the views of the dissenting
Director recorded in the minutes. There were
no such dissentions during 2018. Procedures
are in place to enable individual Directors
toseekindependent advice at the expense

of the Company and appropriate cover is in
place, which insures Directors against certain
liabilities that they may incur i carrying out
their duties on behalf of the Compzny.

All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary who s
respensibie to the Board for ensuring that
Board governance procedures are followed
and supports the Chairmaniin addressing the
training and developraent needs of Directors.
Both the appointment and removal of the

4 8 Gresham House ple
Anriual Report and Accaunts 2019

Company Secretary is a matter for the Board
asawhoie, Richard Chadwick is the Senior
Independent Director, who is available to
the other Non-Executive Directors and
shareholders, should they wish to discuss
matters in an aiternative forum.

Independence of the directors

The QCA Code requires the Company to have

at least iwo independent Non-Executive
Directors. Injudging independence, the Board
takes into account whether or ot a Director

is independant of management and any
business or other rejationship that could affect
orinterfere with the exercise of objective
judgement by that Director, or
act in the best interests of the Company and
its subsidiaries. Using thess criteria, the Board

considers Anthony Townsend, Simon Stilwell,

Pegort

I U Financlal ﬂ Additionat
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Our Corporate Governance framework

THEBOARD

The Board has established three Committees to deal with specific
aspects of the Broup's affairs: the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has also established an Investment Commiltee, attended by
three Directors, the MD of the requlated business, and an e«ternal advisor.

Pichard Chadwick, Rechel
Davis to be ingependznt.

Tenure

All Directors are subject to re-election by
shareholders at the first AGM following their
appointment and, thereafter, are subject

to retirement by rotation and re-election

by shareholders in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Association, whereby
one third of the Directors retire every year,
or where their number is not & multiple of
three, then the number i atleast

abify to AUDIT NOMINATION REMUNERATION INVESTMENT
COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
RichardChaawick Aoty Tounsend Simanstival Tory Datwond
(Chaliman) {Cnalrman) {Chalrman) {Chairman}
Kavin hcton
Gareth vt
Simon Stiwet careth Omv — Rupert Robinson
Anthony Townsand simon Stiwoll sntoy Townsena | {simen St
1

@ Soepages47, 43-50 @ Seepage4?

he Board

one third retire i i

the foregoing, every Director shaflretire
who was not appainted at either of the two
previous Annual General Meatings and who has
served for more than two years since his/her

i orlast i Diractors

perfor and efficiency. In the d
stage, the Chairman discusses with each
Director their views about Board performance.
The findings of the evaluation process are then
recerded in a repert transmitted to the Board

are not appointed for specified terms nor have
any automatic right of resgpointment.

Kevin Acton and Arthony Townsend will be
retiring at the 2020 AGMin with

for ion. The most
recent Board evaluation was carried out in April
2018 and the next evaluation wili take place
during the course of 2020,

the Company’s Articles of Association. The
Board has carefully considered the position
of each of the Directors and considers their
contribution to be significant and effeclive:
accordingly, the Board recommends their re-
election. The Chairman also recommends the
election of Gareth Davis who was appointed as
aNon-Executive Director on 1 October 2019.

Board Evaluation

The Chairman has introduced a formal Board
evaluation process and is salisfied that each
Director continues w contribute effectively to
theirrele.

The Board evaluation process Is carried out
annually and consists of two stages. In the first
stage, atemplate is distributed to each Director

Audit

The Audit Commitiee is chaired by Richard

Chagwick and operates within defined terms

of reference. The Committee comprises

the five Non-Executive Directors of the

Company who each have relevant experience

to carry out their roles. The CEG and CFG

are also invited to sttend the meetings. The

responsibilities of the Audit Cormitige
N

@ oo @ goois

the Board and is scheduled to meet normally
atleast three times a year.

Further information can be found in the Audit
Committee Report on pages 49 10 50.

Nominatien Committee
The Company has established a Nomination
Committee which comprises alt the Non-
Executive Directors and is chaired by Anthony
Townsend, The Committee operates vithin
defined terms of reference and is responsible
for the revievs and recommendatior. of Board
and Committee memberships, succession
planning and Board appointments. No new
Non~Executive Director will be appoinied
without first being recommended by the
lominations Committee. When i
Board appointments and succession
planning, the Committee will have regard to

grity of P
annual and half yearly results, reviewing the
internal and financial controls applicable

10 the Group, approving the terms of
sppointment of the auditor together with
the audilors remuneration, and ensuring

and structure of the Board
and the balance of skills and experience of
the Directors. The experience and skills of
the Directors are set out on pages 44 to 45.
The Committee is satisfied that the Board
asawhote is comprised of members with
the iate balance of

that auditor objectivity and i
is safeguarded in the provision of non-audit
services by the auditor. It also provides a
forum through which the suditor may report to

skills and capabilities to discharge its duties
effectively and contribute to the Company's
sirategic objectives.
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Corporate Governance - overview

Remuneration Committee

Tre Remuneration Committee is also a
formaily constituted Committee of the Board
with defined terms of reference. It consists
of the five Non-Executive Directors under the
chairmanship of Simon Stillwell. The other
mambers of the committes are Anthony

<> Investments or disposals above 5% of NAY
require the recommendation of a majority of
the Investment Committee and the approval
of the Board.

The papers for and minutes from ths
Committs i

given the nature of the Group’s business and
assets and the overall size of the Group, the
systems and procedures currently employed
by the Group provide sufficient assurance
that a sound system of internal control, which
safequards shareholders’ investment and the

Group's assets, Is in place. An internal sudit

Townsend, Rachel Beagles, Richard Chadwick distributed to the Board. function ig therefore considered unnecessary.
and Gareth Davis. The CEG and CFO are aiso
invited to attend the meetings. The Committee | Advisery Group Culture and values
meets at least annually and is responsible for The Company has developed an Advisory Group | The Board ises the i of
reviewing the performance of the Executive of experienced business professionals 1o act its role in promoting and monitoring the

irect d setling the scal of | asadvisers, dealis and business Company’s desired culture and ensuring it
their ion and their sarvice They lable to Grovide is consistent with the Company’s long-term

The ittee is also il for our is ppraisals ic objectives. The Board

fot recommending the allocation of long-
termincentive arrangements to employees.

* for investee companies working
elongside the investmant Committee and

g the Group's network.

for gthe of
‘senior statf sits with the Executive Directors,
being mindful of the policies being set by the [ ! I

Remuneration Committee.

Further infoermation can be found in the
Remuneration Report on pages 5110 55.

investment Committee
The Investment Committee is chaired by Tony
Datwood, and the other members are Kevin
Acton, Simon Stitwell, Rupert Robinson and
Bruce Carnegie-Brown. The purpose of the
Investment Committee is to promote and
maintain a prudent and effective al i

The Board is responsible for the Groug's
system of internal control, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and
risk management, and for reviewing ite.

i The Board has i

awork environment based on the principles
of integrity. professionalism, honesty,
trustworthiness, and efficiency, and is
committed to enstre that internal policies and
procedures outfining the standards of conduct
for directors and employees sre at ail times
implemented.

are for di

procedures designed to imeet the particular
nieeds of the Group in managing the risks to
wihichit is exposed. These include

intaining policies and ; Ures (0
ensure that the ethical values Inspiring the
Company’s culture are recognised, respected,

anannual review of the significant risks faced
by the Group and an assessment of their
potentialimpact and likelihood of cecurrence.
The Board takes advice fi

ang

The Company has zlso appointed a compliance

function responsible for monitoring the

implementaticn of the Company’s policies and
wellas for i

capital across the Company's balance sheet
capital. The lnvestment Commitiee meets
when required. Al investment decisions require
the following approvals:

= fovestments or disposals below 2% of NAV
require the approval of the CEQ alone;

- Investments or disposais between 2% and
§% of NV require a majority approval of the

vihere considered necessary including where
® o8 o e ’

comglaints regarding the conduct of dirsctors

Y sig g
The Board is satisfied with the effectiveness
of internal controls but, by their very nature,
these procedures can provide reasonable,
but not ebsclute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Board has reviewed the need for an
internal audit function and has concluded that,

Investment Committee:
4 8 ‘Gresham House ple
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Corporate Governance - Audit Committee Report

Richard Chadwick
Chairman, Audit Committee

This fudit Committee report describes th key
role that the Augit Committee fulfils, sutlining
Key areas of judgement and considerations
taken throughout the year.

The Audit Committee is responsible for
considering and reporting any significant
issues that arise in refation to the audit of the
financial statements. The Audit Commitiee
confirms that there were no signiflcant issues
to report to shareholders in respect of the audit
of the financial statements for the year ended
31Cecember 2019,

The key areas of risk that have been idsntified
and considered by the Audit Committee in
relation to the business activities and financiat
statements of the Company are as foliows:

- Revenue recognition, management fees,
performance fees ang fundralsing fees

Group. The NAY is typically the last audited or
publicly available NAY announced by the Board of
these companiss and is therefore independently
approved. Limited partnerships and cther
es are typi

committed capital, or an independent valuation
where appropriate. Where there is a an interim
close ona Limited Partnership, the squalisation
precess for new Limited Partrers involves a

hr fees or priority ps
shares back to inception of the fund. In this
instance, the period the service relates tois
assessed and for past service provision the
cateh i i

l l Financial
Governance Statements

l Aaditionat
Informatica

d} Assets held for sale(IFRS §)and foss of
control - the sale of the DevCo Project
{*Red Scar'}during the pericd has been
treated as a loss of controf transaction
under IFRS 10 resulting in a gain on sale
belng presented net in the Statement on
Comprehensive Income. At year end. a
sale of an additional DevCo Project has

viith GRID and s
including price and conditions to compiete
the sale. it is expected that the sale process
willcomplete within a six to 12-month
time frame, as such it has been deemad

the new Limited Partner joins the fund.

Performance fees are recognised only when the
pi ied to receive the p
fee per the management contract. Thisis
onachievement of the hurdie rate and the
outcome is known. The performance fee
recognised for GHS plc was recognised in the.
year, relating to the NAY at 31 March 2619 and
was gaid in the year.

Fundraising fees are recognised asa
of i with

to treat this DevCo Project asa
disposat group held for sale under {FRS 5.

e} Borrowing costs(IAS 23)-the DevCo
Projects havs interest payments relating
to the amounts lent by GRID to fund the
acquisition of the battery assets at the
project company level. The DevCo Projects
have capitalised {inance costs per 16523
Borrowing Costs as the characteristics of
the deveiopmant of the projects{such as
not generating revenues until operational,
loans being procured for the sole purpose
of

being the key performance obligation.

Treatment of battery storage development
companles
The Group has i inthe

ping the projects and the projects
taking leng time to get ready for intended
sale}permit this. The capitatisation rate
used was the weighted averaga of the
borrowing costs applicable to all relevant

of battery storage projects{DevCo Projects),
which are part of the exclusive pipeline lo

be sold to Gresham House Energy Storage
Fund plc{GRID)when operational. The DevCo
Projects are held in separate SPVs, which the
Group entity Devco Limited owns between 60-
70% of the eqity in and the Group has also lent

during 2019,

Accounting for investment in assoclates -
Gresham House Strategic pic and Norlker
Power Limited

Gresham House Strategic plc (GHS)
The Board remains satisfied that the Group

= Treatment of battery storag funds for the of the projects. did not exercise contral ovar GHS {which has
compznies anindependent board with no company bost
oo ) There are four key considerationsn the et board with o Company boerd
> for entin 2 treatment of the pcibons e ot true o
Gresham House Strategic pic{GHS), Noriker | companies: 2 g es not give rise
Power Limiteg{Noriker) tocontrol)
> Consolidation assessment of funds 2) Control{IFRS 10}~ Deveo Limited holds the 1 o nermefecs, hecause of the clos refationship

managed and controlied by the Group

= Impairment review for Goodwill and
Management Concracts from previous
acquisitions

majority of the equity in the DevCo Projects

and has also loaned capital to fund the

development of the DevCo Projects. Deveo

Limited is considared in control of the DevCo
" fore h

between GHAM and GHS, the Board has
concluded that the Group does exercise
significant influence over GHS. As a result of
this, it remains appropriate to account for the

them in the Group financia! statements.

Broup's stake in GH: te of the
Group. The stake in GHS was acquired in August
2015, however, the requirement to account fer
BHS as an associate arose with effect from

> Valuation of contingent consideration
> First time adoption of IFRS 16 Leases b) - Associates(kS 28)- One of the DexCo
forasan
. Devco Lirmited holds only 24% of
fees and fundraising fees e equity andis not i ing position.
The revenue recognition of the Groupiis
©) Classification of the essets in each DevCo

driven by asset management fees, which
are recognised in fine with the invesiment

23 2015, the date the Company
ceased being an investing company and
became an operating company which restlied
ina reassessment of the accounting for all such
2quity i The Board concluded that

Project - The SPVs ar i ¥
TS oping

or advisory place
viith the appropriats funds. Thess are typicaily
based on the committed capital of Limited
Partnership funds, or Net Asset Values (NAV)
for listed venicles managed or advised by the

g
non-current assets under development
untitthess assets become operational. The
Broup has therefore classified these as non-
current assets, akin to tangible fixed assets.

the Company continues to have significant
infiuence over GHS.

Noriker Power Limited (Noriker)
On & June 2018, the Group acquired a 28%
investment in Moriker, the battery storage

Gresham House plc 4 9
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developer. The Broup does not provide
management services to Moriker, however with
a28% holding the Board has concluded that
itis able to exercise significant influence over
Mariker and as such shoutd be treated as an
associate of the Group.

Dividends from Associates

Equity Method Accounting viill be used to
account for the dividends received from
associates, in line with 1AS 28, We note that
ihis income does not qualify to be reported
as revenue under IFRS 15. We do, however
consider dividends from associates as part
of the Adjusted Opsrating Profit (non-GAAP
performance measure).

of
and controlled by the Group
The Group acis s investment manager and

found in the accounting policy section of the
financia! statements.

impairment review for Goodwill and
Management Contracts from previous
acquisitions

Per |AS 36 Impairment of Assets, the potential
impairment of Goodwill and I'Ianaqemenl
Contracts gencrated by pricr

The second part being the hurdie to deliver
revenues from Livingbritige VC of oetween
£30.8 million and £37.2 mitlion in the three
years to 31 December 2021. The fair value
has been based on a weighted probability
of outcomes over the three-year period and
discounted by 15%.

First ti doption of IFRS 16 Leases

reviewed. The WACC rates used for dxscounung
using CAPM model, accounting fer
ditferent risk profile of acquired contracts. No
terminal value was assigned for the revievs.

Goodwill Impairment Testing

The potential value of the acquired cash
generating unils based on discounted cash flow
of potential future performance of the acquired
contracls was assessed. It has been assumed
that the cash generating unit wiill cammue 0

IFRS 16 Leases came into force with effect
from1January 2019. All leases viithin the Group
have been assessed under IFRS 16 guidance
and classified accordingly. The main impact
has been the addition of office leases ta the:
baiance sheet as right of use assets, which
are then depreciated over their usefulfives.
The result of the adoption of the standard is
thai the rent charge for offices is no longer
reported vith operating expenses but is
effectively capzrahsad and recognised through

advlsormanumnerora!lerl‘.a(lve:r-vcs'rmem grow in line with based | the of the lease asset. Per IFRS 16
of these | onthe model. The andcosts | adoption quidance, the standard has not been

vehicles. unuerlFRsm were modelled usi i flow applied

Statements, the Boaxu isrequl ired o assess. model, vith the estimated value compared to

Having challenged management on the

vihether the Group agent, should g sheet and other
not i fund, or s principal, should Intangible assets and acquired assets. Where
the value estimated less other intangible and

consolidate a fund. The

idance refers o the

ib

ts is greater than the goodwilt
amount on the balance sheet, o |mpa\rmﬂnt

used, the Audit Committee
confirm that they are not aware of 2ny material
misstaternents, satisfied that the key areas

of risk and judgement have been addressed

{a) The scope of i
overthe mvesxee(paraqmpns aaz eng BE;S)»

(b) Therights hetd by other parti

ig There were no

mme fina M'ha\lhﬂ

against all gooowill ‘the
: Group as at 31 December 2019.

usedin
the vaiue of assets and lizbilities have been
properly appraised and are sufficiently robust.
infine with these discussed

B34-B67)- abitity of toremove

Review

the Group &s the manager or adviser.

E

The remuneration to whichitis Enu(l:d
in with the

contacts were revaiued using
discounted cash flow method to assess the
remaining value of the contract to the end of
its expected ife. This assumed no gmwth from

68-870) - are.

fund raisis d costs assumed ap

the management fees inline with market
praclice.

=

The decision-maker's exposure to
variability of returns from other interests
that it holds in the investee (paragraphs 871
and B72) - does the manager hold a direct
investment in the fund, from vhich it will
therefore receive a material exposure to
the variable returns of the fund, on top of
the management fee that it earns.

An sssessment of each fund has been
performed and concluded that Gresham
House Forestry Friends and Family Fund LP
should be consolidatedtin line with the prior
year), reflecting the Group's 21% investment
in the fund and the limited removal rights nI
the other investers. All cther fund:

wih business. The vaiuation
was compared to the carrying value of the

above,
10 the fif

e included in nore detail in the notes
ncial statements.

Non-audit services
Non-zudit services provised by the external
auditor are reviewed by the Audit Commitiee 1o
ensure that the independence and objectivity

management contracts at 31 December 2018
and the no indications of impairment.

Valuation of contingent consideration
The fair value of contingent consideration
payahie o the sellers of the Fliand the

ige VC has been estimated

of the evternal auditor is monitared by way
of and

pmsnuai threats to auditor independence.

15 of the fees paid to the auditor for audit
services, audit related services and other

\-Mh reference to the contractual requirements
asat 31 December 2016,

Inthe case of FIM4, 2n estimate of whether the
combined twe-year revenue target of £14.0
miiilion has been made and discounted back
from the payment date to the reporting date.
An additional amount is payable should the two-
year combined revenues exceed £18.0 million.

have concluded that the Group is acting as
an agent and therefore the Group should not
"onsohcale the funds, GHS and Nnmfer ha Ve

d and the G ina
position of significant cnmrol and thsse YLnds
have been treated

Thel idge YC contingent
isin two parts. The first being that the VT
boards do not give notice within tvo years of
the acquisition. There are no Indications to
date that notice will be given, so this has been
assumed to be true and the value payable

above. IMore detalls n the assessment can be

back to 31 December 2019.

non-augh services are shown in Note 3 of these

Having regard to &l the relevant factors, the
Audit Commitiee has racommended to the
Board that in the normal course of events
ang subject 16 shareholder approval at the
2020 AGM, BDO LLP, having indicated their
il et be i
auditer of the Company and Group for the
forthcoming year.

Gn behaif of the Board,

Richard Chadwick
Chalrman, Audit Committee
5March 2020
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Simon Stilwelll
Chairman, Remuneratlon Committee

Onbehalf of the Board, | am pleased to present
the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration Pepart,
which sets cut the remuneration policy and
remunerstion paid to the directors for the year.

Gresnam House had a strong year and
organically grevs AUM by 23% and its market
cap by ¢. 50%. It is vital to the long-term
success of the business that we align our
remuneraticn poficy to reflect not only the
wider AIM market but also the wider fund
management industry where we compets for
talent. The enhanced pay awards in 2019 reflect

incentive structures and awards are in line with
market practice.

Wo Director is permiitted to participate in
decision: ring their own i

The full Board of Directors are responsible for
deterraining the level of fees paid to the
Non-Executive Directors. Non-Executive
Directors aré not eligible for tong term
incenlive schemes.

Directors’ share interests

The beneficial interests of the Directors who
served during the year and their connected
persons in the ordinary share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2013 are set

l l Financlal ' Aadiionat
Goverance Staterments Informatlon

Tony Datwood snd Kevin Acton held in excess
of 200% of their basic salaries in either directly
held shares or in combination with exercisable
share awards {2018 LTIP).

Directors’service contracts are governed by
the following policies:

(a} The notice period required by either the
Company or the Direclor to terminate the
contract is 12 moniths for Tony Datwood, six
months for Kevin Acton and three months
for Anthony Townsend, Rachei Beagles,
Richard Chadwick. Garth Davis, and Simon
Stilwell;

(b} Inthe event that a Non-Executive Directer
is not re-elected by shareholders in
accordance with the Articies of Association
his/her appointment shall terminate with

ftect and the individual is

entitied to payment in lieu of notice being
the macimum notice period in his/her

{c) Inthe event of termination for events
as specified in the contract, including
negligence and incompetence in the
pervormance of his/her duties, misconduct

out below:

2018 2018

Numborof | Numberof

ahares chores

Anthony Townsend 34,855 34,855
Tony Dalwood 341,089 295,336 contract:

Kevin Acton 28,430 13,975

Rachel Beagles 10,876 10976

Richard Chadwick - -

Gareth Davis 16,400 -

Simon Stilweli 125000 25,000

f the rules of

the significant made by the
business inthe period.

The Remuneration Committee consists of the
five Non-Executive Diractors of the Company
under the chairmanship of Simon Stilwell.

he Commiltee meets at least bi-annually
andis responsible for delermining the terms
of service and remuneration of the Executive
Directors. The CEG and CFO are invited to
attend the meetings.

The Commi main roles and

tn additior, the foliowing Directors viho served
during the year held supporter warrants at
beginning of the ysar. Each supporter warrant
entitled the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share &t an exercise price of 323.27 pence,
evercisable at ny time between 1 December
2015 and 31 December 2019. All these warrants
were exercised in June 2019.

2008
Humber ot

are lo review the performance of the Executive
Directors and set the scafe and stru
of their remuneration and the basis of
service agreements with due regard to the
interests of shareholders and recognising
he continued developments in corporate
governance and best practice in executive
remuneration.

in determining the remuneration of E<ecutive
Directors. the Committee will seek to enable
the Company to attract and retain executivas
of the highest calibre. The Committee wilt
also make reccmmendeations to the full Board
ing the incentivisation of empl
through tong-term equity incentive schemes
and have consulted with external agvisors.
regularly during the year to ensure that

the FCA, Lhe Company may terminate
employment summarily without any
‘payment inlieu of notice; ang

(0) A discretionary bonus scheme was
introguced by the Company in 2015 ang
ail Executive Directors are eligible to
participate in the scheme.

Remuneratlon polley
The Remuneration Committee reviews the
Company’s remuneraticn philosaphy and
structure to ensure that the remuneration

Ins effective ing the
Company’s business objectives, in line vith
best practice, and fairly rewards individuals

superter
D s
Anthony Townsend -i 34,000
e
neir Tony Dalwood | -1 21500
Further details of iPPOrter warrant

can be found in Note 26 ta these financial
statemen:

The Remuneration Committee have set the
policy that the Executive Directors should hold
aminimum of 200% of their basic salaries in
the Company’s shares or share-based awards
that are exercisable at he discretion of the
Executive Directors. Thisis viewad as akey

anda

forth ibution thar they make to the
business. having regard to the size and
complexity of the Group's operations and the
need to retain, motivate and attract employees.
of the highest calibre.

The Reruneration Committee saeks to align
base salary and total remuneratioh of the
Executive Directors with the wider ssset
management industry. Remuneration is

1 rewards available for

driver of alignment with
target that should be reached over a three-
year period or five years for newly appointed
Executive Directors. At 31 December 2018, both

equivatent roles in a suirable comparator group
with the aim of paying neither sigriificantly
above nor below the median for each element
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of ion. The Committee as id
general pay and employment conditions of all
employees within the Group and is sensitive to
pravailing employment market conditions and
gevernance trends in thelr wider assessment.

Tre Committee engaged PwC to perform

2 benchmarking survey in early 2015 for

ths senior management team, including
th2 Evecutive Directors across the main
companents of tha remuneration packages.
When measured against similar roles in AlM
market

of Executive Directors or employees. &
contribution to pension or equivalent schemes.
remains an ot all Inthe

In total, the Company proposes that the
total ordinary sharas issued and issuable
n ion of the above incentive

instance an empioyes ‘opts cut’ of the scheme,
arrangements are in place to ensure the
Company makes appropriate contributions.

Annual bonus

The Company operates a discretionary bonus
scheme which provides for 2 performance-
related bonus based on the Group's results
enﬁ, in certain cases, the resuit of the relevant

managers, the Board considers that the senior
managsment team are fairly remunerated
considering the in-year growthin pm(llabnhly ur
the business and the market capital

the dramatic growth achizved overall since the
nesy team was sppointed in 2014,

Asa proportion of the Executive Directers’
remuneration s linved to the Company’s
performance which is in large part

by the price of its ordinary shares over a given
pericd of time, future share price increases will
have a cerresponding elfect on the Executive
Directors’ pay outcomes, subject to the terms
of each of the relevant schemes under which
such remuneration is determined.

The tetal rermunsration package finks corporate
ividual pertormance wi
ba ance between short and lang-:em\

for which they may be responsible.
The individual bunus ranges for the Executive

ar and pursuant to TCi

of supporter warrants wilt not exceed 20% of
the Company's total issued share capital as
cuttined in the admission document dated

4 November 2015.

Long termincentive plans
2016LTIP

0n 28 July 2016, the Company implemanted
the 2016 long term incentive plan(2016 LTIP)

Directors are ished by the

toalign with the t

Committee and the level of bonus payments are
driven by the overall busiress performance and
determined by the Remuneration Committee
wiith a vigw to raximising shareholder value
and meeting Gther Group abjectives.

The Chairman and the Non-Executive
Directors are not efigible to participate in this
bonus scheme.

Bonus share matching plan
The Company introduced in 2016 a share
matching plan tinked to the discretionary
annual bonus scheme to encourage

toinvest in the I
of the Company.

g

Subject 10 Remuneration Committee approval,

elements, and lixed and b
The policy it i ¢

nd entitled to a
b be i not

to meet the Company’s strategic objectives,
such that 3 significant portion of totat
remuneration is performance related. The
current remuneration of Executive Dirgctors
comprises the foilowing five components:

> basic salary:

- gension arrangements(only basic salary is
pensionablel;

- annual borus;
> bonus share matching plan; and

> long term incentive plens.

Baslc salary
Basic salary represents a value which reflects
the Remuneration Committee’s assessment of
the market rate for relevant pusitions and the
individual Director's experience and value (o
the business.

Pensions
The Company provides for the autc-enrolment
into & pension scheme for the benefit

defer arid reinvest up to 100% of their annual
bonus into ordinary shares in the Company
which wilt be released to them after three
years, together with any additional matching
shares{on a one for one basis), subject to the
performance criteria sel out below. (n 2019,
the Remuneraticn Committee approved the
reinvestment of up to 50% of annual boruses
into ordinary shares by management ang
employees{2018: 106%).

lr the event lhal the COmpﬂY\/aChIEIES growth
id- equal to

7% per ahnum compounded gror -rm from the

date of deferral, the partici

These ar reward

the participants if shareholder value Is created.

For the purposes of the pian, *shareholger
valug” broadty means the differance between
the market capitalisation of the Company at the
point in time that any sssessment is mad and
the sumof:

(i) the market capitalisatior of the Company
s)at | December 2014 for first awards made
to management who joined the Company
before 30 September 2015; and b) at the
date of award inali other cases; and

{ii) the aggregate value at the subscription
price}of all ordinary shares issued
thereafter and up to the point in time that
any assessment is made, in each case .
adjusted for dividends and capital returas 1o
shareholders and/or issue of new shares.

The bensficiaries of the plan willin aggregate
be emmed m an amount of up to 20% 4 of
5 defined

over the evercise period, subject to the
performance criteria set out betov. Individual
participation in the sharehoider vaiug created is

ined by the ion Committee in
respect of the Executive Directors.

There are certgin hurdles the Company's shere
price has o achieve before an award vests.

In the event that the Company achieves an

50% of the matching shares. in the event
that the Company's share price outperforms
the FTSE Ali Share index from the date of
deferral, the participant wili recaive 50% of the
matching shares.

In the event these performance congitions
are nol met. the participants will receive
only the ordinary shares acquired with the
deferred bonus.

average mid ket closing price equal to
compound grovith at 7% per nnum for a period
of 10 consecutive dealing days after | December
2016 for firsi awards 1o management who
joined the Company before 30 September 2015
and from the second anniversary of the date

of award in all other cases, 50% of the award
wiltvest.

Inthe event that the share price of the
Company outperforms the FTSE All Share index.

5 2 Gresham House plc
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2016, and from the second anniversary of the
date of the award in all other cases, 50% of the
award will vest,

Each aveard requires a minimur tarm of
emgloyment of three years and

irtee recognise that
they are unable to issue & similar style long-
termincentive scheme to the 2016 LTIP until
the expiry of the 2016 LTIP on 31 December
2022, The fact that the 206 LTIP is now
exerclsable by the management team has led
the Ci ittee to i &

made 6 current management and new joiners
at the Company's discretion and is settied in
equity of the Company.

As 3t 31 December 2019, under the rules

of the 2016 LTIP, the value created by the
management team since 1 December 2014
was £73.3 miliion, based on a closing market
value of the Company of £170.1 million (share
price of £6.10). The 2016 LTIP share of this
is estimated at £12.1 miilion, which will be
settled in equity orcssh at me Company's
discretion wh

u U Financlsl U Aaditionsi
Governanco Srtatements Informaticn

Under the 2018 LTIP. 274,728 deferred shares
were awarded to the management team. with a
fair value at award of £1.5 million.

Performance Fees and Carrled Interest
For a selection of funds managed by the Group,
Performance Fees and Carried Interest are

further LTPs to align th team
with sharehoiders in this intervening period.
The foliowing schemes have been considered
and awarded to the management team as an
interim solution te this situation.

Performance Share Plan - 2018 LTiP and
2009LTIP
The 2018 LTIP was issued under the

paid to the and team
as along-term incentive, These are only paid
when clients have received s preferred return
hurdle over the long term and take the form of 2
percentage of the profits generated for clients,
ranging from 10-20%.

Gresham House Strategic plc (GHS)has
a performance fee arrangement with its

Share Plan, which was i
toelign the management team and wider
members of the business for the next three

team. The vesting date for *h'-‘ 2016 LTIP has
passed and alf hurdles having been achieved.
The management team ale to exercise their
avards up to 31 December 2022, for those
joining the Company before 30 September 20i5
and 31 December 2023 for those joining after
30 September 2015.

The 2016 LTIP incentivises the management
team to enhance shareholdsr vaiue through
ashare in the velue created. Thisis viewed as
an effective method of remuneration for !he

years with . The Performance
Share Plan is a deferred share award, which
vests in threa years'time from award subject
to management remaining employed by the
Company at this date. There is no staggered
vesting period and vesting is at the end date in
three years' time.

The quantum of the award was considered and
agreed by the Remuneration Committee for
both the 2018 LTIP and 2018 LTIP awards

manager, Gresham House Asset
Management (GHAM), which subject to GHS
achieving 8 7% NAY growth return turdle, vl
trigger a share of 15% of the gain above this
hurdie being paid to GHAM, which, subject fo
‘approval from the Remuneration Commitice
each year. has In turr agreed to pay this lo the
and
directly on GHS. The NAV of GHS as at 31 March
2019 was above the hurdle rate for the first time
since GHAM started managing GHS in 2015,
The total Performance Fee payable was £1.8
milfion, of which £1.7 million has been paig to
the investment and management team, less
al[owahfe required and approved deductions as

Under the 2018 LTIP, 447, f shares

management teams of high growth

arded to the team

which afigns them closely
and other stakenolgers in the Company. The

and witha fair value at award of
£2.1millicn.

bythe ion Committee.
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Directors’ emoluments (audited)
The Directors who served in the year received the following emoluments:

Baskc Cash Goterrod

salory Bonsfits Bonuses . bonuses™  Pensions 20199
Year ended 31 Decomber 2019 £0%0 €000 €000 €00 £000 £000
Executive:
Teny Dalwood®? 258 3 225 225 26 737
Kevin Acton® 206 2 250 - 20 478
Non-Executive:
Anthony Townsend 60 - - - - €0
Rache! Beagles 35 - - - - 3
Richard Chadwick . 4o - b - - 40
Gereth Davis ™ 8 - - - - - 8
Simon Stilwell 40 - - - - 40
Total ] 847 5 475 225 46 13
(il Payments have been made iniieu of contribution towards pension scheme.
(i) Gareth Davis joined the Beard on 10ctober 2018
{iith Deferred bonuses are the amounts of cash bonus awarded, which the E<ecutive Directors h lected to reinvest in the Company's ordinary

shares through the Bonus Share Matching plan. This will e awarded shortly after 5 March 2020 when these resulls have been announced and the
Company is no longer in possession of inside informaticn.

{iv} Share-based payments reflect share awards that have been exercised in the year. No share aviards were exercised by the Directors in the year.

(v} Perfermance Fees received in the year relating to long-1 P areinciuded in the Fae ion betovr.

gasic Casn Deferred

saiary Benstits Boruses bonyses® Pensions 2015
e endeu 3t Uscermbe: 2018 £000 £000 £059 500 £500 £000
Expcutive:
Toy Dalwood? 250 3 101 101 25 480
Kevin Acton 200 2 80 30 20 332
Non-Executive:
Anthony Townsend 50 - - - - 50
Rachel Beagles 2 - - - - 25
Richard Chadwick 30 - = - - 30
Simon Stilwell 3G - - - - 30
Tozal 585 5 18 131 45 847

(i) Payments have been made in lieu of contribution tovards pensicn scheme.

{il) Deferred bonuses are the amounts of cash benus awarded, which the Executive Directors elected to reinvest in the Compary's ordinary shares
through the Bonus Share Matching plan.

{iii} Share-based payment: share awargs that have be ised in the year. No share awards were evercised by the Di inthe year.
5 4 Gresham House plc
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Long plans and share Executive Directors
The Executive Directors held the following ordinary shares in the Company and have the following equity awards outstanding as at 31 December 2019
{number of ordinary sharesk

Bonus. Banus. Bonus.
Onginary Shuse nars Srers
shares 208 Matehing 4 Mstching®d Matehing ] 2013
Humser of ordlnary shares' held® LTI 20 2017 2618 LTIF LT Totat
Awarded 2016 2017 2018 2019 2018 2019
Vesting date Exercisablg™ 2020 2021 2022 2021 2022
Tony Dalwood 295.336 530,508 32,851 - - 108.434 68,943 1035870
Kevin Acton 26,430 257333 13,237 4,869 6,737 67.470 55,154 a.230
{i) includes shares held directly, by tamily members and deferred P der the Bonus Share Matching plan.
(i} 2016 LTIP the number of shi ivable as a result of the value creaied for sharehoiders over the period of the 2016 LTIP, based on
the share price as at 31 December 2018 of £6.10.
{iii) Exercisabie by Tony Oaivwood up to 5t December 2022 and Kevin Acton up to 31 December 2023. .

{iv) Banus Share Matching 2016, 2017 and 2018 are the result of the Executives electing to relnvest theit cash bonus into Gresham Houss plc shares,
which subject to achieving hurdles could result in the number of shares above being awarded on the vesting date. The 2016 Bonus Share Maiching
award has achieved the hurdies as at 24 February 2020, the matching shares, net of any tax liability will be issued vhen the Company is no longer
in possession of inside information. The 2017 Benus Share 1atching award of 26,777 ordinary shares and 2018 Bonus Share Matching award of
22,736 erdinary shares for Tony Dalwood has been issued and is subject to claw back, should the return hurdles not be met. The Bonus Share
Matching 2018 award viill be awarded shortly after 5 March 2020 when these results have bsen announced and the Company is no longer in
possession of inside informatien.

{v) These share awards are before tax,

Performance Fees

Asnoted ebove, GHS paid its first Performance Fee to GHAM based on its NAY at 31 March 2018, This reflected the long-term value created by the
team over a four-year period and £366,329 was paid to Tony Dalwood and £48,840 to Kevin Acton in propertions determined by the Remuneration
Committee. These amounts are shewn before allowabie, required and approved i ined by th ion Commi

were applied 1o all employees.

On behatf of the Board,

Simon Stilwell
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
§ iarch 2020
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Directors' Report

The Directors present their report and the
aldited financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 Gecember 2015,

Results and dividends

The Group Statement of Comprehensive
Inome is set out on page 70 ang shows the
resulis for the ycar ended 31 December 2018.

Tre Directors recommend that the Company
pay afinal dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019 of 4.5 pence per share 1o be
paid on 22 May 2020(2018: 3.0 pence).

Principal activities, review of business and
future developments

Tra review of the businass and a summary

of future developments are included in the
Crairman's statement on pages 710 8 and the
Ctief Executive’s report on pages 81012,

Princlpal risks and uncertalnties

The principal risks and uncertainties affecting
the Group are 2xplained in the Principal Risks
and Uncertainties section on pages 42 to 48.

Directors

The present Directors are listed on pages 49 1o
50 together with brisf biographicl details. The
Directors who served during the period under
review were:-

Anthony Townsend Non-Exesutive Chairman

TowOalwood  CEO
Kevin Acton CcFo
RacheiBeagles  Non-Executive

 Artictes of Association, maintained a direciors’

and officers'Jiability insurance policy on bealf
s, indernnitying them in respect

" shareholders on strategy and the Group's

pertormance. The Company also has an
on-gaing programme of individual meetings

which may b

with )

with the activiti the
Company. This policy does rot provide cover
for fraudulent or dishonest actions by the
Directors.

Share capital and voting rights
As at 1January 201§ and 3i December 2019

. there wers 24,872,613 and 27,824,222 ordinary
. shares in issue respectively with a nominal
 value of 25 pence sach. The ordinary sheres are

guoted on the Alternative Investment Market of
the London Stocy Exchange.

Details of substaniiaf shareholdings and control

can be found in

¢ table below. The voting

. rights of sharehoiders are as follows:

. Each shareholder has the right to:

- Participate in distributions of profitsin
progertion to the nominal capital paid up on
the shares heid;

: -> Cne vote ona show of hands, andona

poll ane vote per share held, at a General
Meering of the Company. A member entitied
0 more than one vote need not cast alf
votes the same way;

: 2 Adividend, subject to the discretion of the

Directors of the Company, apportioned and
paid proportionately 1o the amourits paid up
on the shares; and

+

In the event of a wsinding up of the Company
iqui may, with the sanction of &

Gareth Davis Non-E;

(appointed 1 Getober 2019)
Richard Chagwich Mon-Executive
Simon Stitwell Non-Executive
In accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association. Kevin Acton and Anthony
Townsend will stand for re-election and Gareth
Davis will stand for election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Board confirms that the performance

of vach of the Directors seeking re-election

or election continues to be effective and
demenstrates commitment to the role, and the
Board believes that it is therefore in the best
interests of shareholders that the Directors be
re-elected or elected.

Directors' indemnity
The Company has, as permitted by the
Companies Act 2006 and the Company’s

special resolution end any other sanction
required by lav, Givide among the membere
inspecie the whole or any part of the assets
of the Company.

Relations with Shareholders
The Board recognises the importance of
regular and effective communication vith

. shareholders, particularly the need for open

1 prefiminary and half-year results
presentations.

A i following thy

* of any general meeting. the results of the
* meeting are released through a regulatory

news service and a copy of the announcements

* placed on the Sharehclder Information section

of ihe Company's web: Inthe gvent that
asignificant proportion of votes was cast
against any resolution at a General Meeting, an
explanation of the actions proposed to be taken
inresponse would be outlined.

The Shareholder Information section of the
Company’s website includes historic Annual
Reports(together with notices of meetings)
and other governance refated material, such
as investor presentations and marketing
maierials.

Substantlal interests

As at 31 December 2019 the following
substantial interests representing 3% or more
of the total voting rights of the Company have
been notified to the Company:

Number ot
shares

The Royal County of
Berkshire Pension Fund 4,427,544

Liontrust Investment

& s
g |biiy

Partners LLP 25076%6  9.0%
Majedie Asset

Management Limited 1817306 5.8%
Richard Crosbie Dawson 1468837  5.3%
Aberdeen Standard

investments 1361881 4.9%
Schroder Investment

Management 987000  3.5%
LMS Capital plc 984320 3.5%
& .

onthe Ci gy.
Managzment has regular dialogue with the
Company’s major shareholders and ensures

! that their views are communicated fully to

the Board.

Gther forms of ication i i

Wealth Management 880,029  3.2%

" Companles Act 2006 disclosures

Schedule 7 of the Large and Medium Sized
Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)

annual and interim financial statements,

+ announcements released 1o the London

Stock Exchange, the Annual General Meeting
nd regular face to face meetings with major
sharenolders ang management. These

. meetings allow the CEO and the CFO to update

2008 require Directors to disciose
the foilgwing information. The Company is
not required to, but chooses to disciose the

" following for good practice:

- The structure of the Company's capital is
summarised in Notes 25and 26. The holders

5 6 Gresham House plc
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of orginary share: j to receive

acted to prepare the Perent Company
i ith those

the Company’s reports and inis, to
attend and speak at General Meetings of the
Company, to appoint proxies and exercise
voting rights. There are no restrictions on
“soting rights that the Company is aware

of, nor any sgreement between holders of
securities that result in restrictions an the
transfer of securities or on voting rights;

v

There exist no securities carrying special
rights with regard to the control of the
Company;

> The ing the

standards. Under company lavs the Directors
must nol approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true.
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and the Company and of the profit or loss of the
Group &nd the Company for that period,

in preparing these financial statements the
Directors are required to:

- Select suitable accounting policies and then

and replacsment of Girgctors are contained
inthe Company’s Articles of Association and
the Companies Act 2006;

- Noagreements exist (o which the Company

is 3 parly that may affect its control
following a takeover bid: and

v

There are no agreements in place between
the Company and its Directors providing for
compensetion for loss of office in the event
of the Company being taken over.

Directors” duties - compliance with section
172 of the Companies Act 2008

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2008
requires directors 1o promote the success of
the Company for the benefit of the members
as & whole and in doing so have regard 1o

the interasts of stakeholders including
shareholders, clients, employees, reguiators
and the wider society in which it operates.

On pages 13 to 14, we have sat cut now we have
engaged with our hey stakeholders and how the
Board has considered their interests guring the
yeer.

Financlal risk management objectives
The Group’s financial tisk management
objectives can be found in Note 310f the
financial statements.

Statement of Directors responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annuat Report and the financial statements in

pplicable law and

Company lav: requires the Directors to prepare
financial stataments for each financial year.
Under that law the Directors have elected to
prepare the Group and Company financial

apply them

1%

Make judgements and accounting estimates
that are rezsonable and prudent:

L

State whether the financial statements have

l U Financiat U Additionat
Govenance Statemenis information

of the financiat
contained therein.

Auditor's right to information

So faras each of the Directors is aware, there
isno relevant audit information {as defined

by Section 418 of the Companies Act 2008 of
which the Company's auditor is unaviare, and
each Director has laken all the steps that he or
she ought to have taken as a Director in orger 1o
make himself or herself aware of any relevant
audit information anc to establish that the
Company's auditor is sware of that information.
Post balance sheet events

Details of events that have taken place after the
period end can be found in Note 34.

been prepared in ith IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union, subject
to any material departures dicclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

+

Prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless itis
inappropriate to presume that the Company
and the Group will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping
agdequate accounting records that are
sufficient 10 show and explain the Group's
transactions, to disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial pesition of
the Company and to enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the.
Companies Act 2008. They are slso responsible
for safequarding the assets of the Company
and the Group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud
and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the
Directors are alss responsible for preparing

a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and Corporate
Governance Statement that comply with that
law and those reguiations.

‘Website publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the
Annual Report and the financial statemerits
are made available on the Company’s website.
Financial statements are published cn the
Company’s website in accordance with
legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements, which may vary from legisiation

F J dopted
by the European Union and the rules of the
L ¥ Exchange for iestrading

sacurities on the Alternative lnvestment Market

in other jurisdictions. The

and inteyrity of the Company's website

is the responsibility of the Directors. The
Directors responsibility also extends to the

After making enquiries, the Directors have
formed a judgement that at the time of
approving the financlel statements, there is

a ion that th

agequate resources o continue its operational
euistence for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, the Directors continue to adopt &
going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Share quote

The Group's ordinary shares are quoted on the
Alternative Investment Market of the London
Stock Exchange.

Share capital
Changes to share capital during the period are
shown in Note 25 1o the financial statements.

By Order of the Board,

Sm

Samee Khan

Chief Legal Officer and Company Secretary
5 March 2020

5 Mew Street Square
London EC4A 3TW
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Independent Auditor's Report

Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members ot Gresham House plc

Wz have audited the financial statements of
Gresham House pic(the ‘Parent Company')and
jts subsidiaries the Group) for the year ended
31 December 2018 which comprise the Group
statement of comprehensive income, the
Group and Company statements of changes
in equity, the Group and Company statement
of financial position, the Group and Company
statements of cash flows and notes to the

= the Parent Company financial statements
have been properly preparedin accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006;
and

- thefinancial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requiremenits of the Campanies Act 2006.

- thg Directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of
the financial statements is not appropriate:
or

5 theDirectors have not disclosed in the
financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the Group's or the Parent
Company's ability to continue to adopt the
going concerr basis of accounting for a
period of at teast tweive months from the
date when the financial statemenis are

forissue.

lugi mmaryof | Basis for opinion
significant accounting polici We conuucleu our audit in accordance with
1 Auditing [UK)I
The financial reporting that has {UUK)}and appiicable law. Our
b lied in the preparaticn of the Group under those e further described
financial statements is applicable lavs and in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
Inzernational Financial Reporting Standards of the financiai statements section of our

{IFRSs)as adopted by the European Union

ard, asret,aroslheFarentce'nparyﬂnanclal
as applied he

provisions of the Companies Act 2008.

In our opinion:

- thefinancial atrue and fair

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that,
in our professional judgment, were of most

regort. We are i of the B

the Parent Company in accordance \'nh the
sthical requirements that are refevant to our
audil of the financial statements in the UK,

our augit of the financial
statements of the current period and include
the most significant assessed risks of materiai
mlssla(err‘enl (uhemer or not due to fraud)
ifi Gi which had the

inctuding the FRCs as applied
tolisted entities, and we have fulfilled our other

grﬂaleﬂ ehecwn the overali audit strategy,

sthical

view of the slate of the Greup's end of the
Parent Company’s affairs &s at 31 December
2018 and of the Group's foss for the et
then ended

. We believe that th!: audi‘
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to pravide a basis for our aplnicn.

Concluslons relating to golng concern
We hee nothing Lo report in respect of the

i resources in the audit: and
directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial stalements as a
whote, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Strategic

I Flnaneia) l 4a
Report Governance Statements

Key audit matter How we addressed the key audit matter in the audit

incorrect of revenue - pi fee and We rccalculaled the performance and management fee in accordance

management fee with i incluging tracing
timat pages 7376, accrued amounts pa!d based on WAV to the latest valuation reports,

NotesTand 2) -ounts and signed financial

Gresham House plc maneges numerous funds from which it coflect
performance and menagement fees. The inputs and calculations vary
significantly across the population of funds and include performance
fees that are subject to the hurdie conditions that depend on market
performance of the net assst value (the "NAY") being met in some
instances.

Revenue an certain contracis is recognised based on the value of
T of total i toafund. There is the

We have also traced a sample of revenue recognised 10 invoice and cash
receipts from clients.

For performance fees where vanab‘e consideration is applicable,
we have identified th obtaining
assessment and tesied the estimation of revenue that will not be
sub;ec( toa swthcant revnrs::l in the following year. For eample,
the and re- Derfor'neu
managemenrs caleulation to verify the accuracy, cut-off &1

ability to manipulate the resuits through tr
of revenue based on overstatement of the NAY of assets under
management.

2 ised inadvance of per
being satisfied or uncertainty Grer revenue recognisedf variable.

The caiculation cf revenue was identified as a key audit malter because
itis a complex area which requires significant judgement, and it is
considered to be the area which had the greatest effect on our audit

Il f resource: and comg our
audit uf the Group.

of the revenue in terms for IFRS 15.

‘We have assessed whether the disclosures made relating to revenue
are appropriate and inline with the applicable accounting policies and
principles.

Key observations:

Our testing of the recagnition of revenue did not identify any material
misstatement.

= the Group financiai statements have been following matters in relation to which the ISAs
properiy prepared is withIFRSs | {UK}requil 10 report 10 you where:
as adopted by the Eurcpean Union;

f 8 Gresham House plc.
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Independent Auditor's Report{continued)

Our application of materlality

‘We apply the concept of materiality at

both planning and performing our audit, in
evaluating the effect of misstatements cn the
audit and in forming our opinion. Materiaiity is
assessed on both quentitative and qualitative
grounds. We consider materiality to be

overall controf enviranment and history of
misstatements.

Materiality in respect of the audit of the Parent
Company has been set at £475,000{2018:
£237,500) using 95% of Group Materiality.

C 9

the i by which

individually or in aggregate, could reassnably
be expected to infiuence the econamic
decisions of the users of the financia!
statements. This can include qualitative
aspects due to the nature of the item,

We determined the materiality for the Group
financiel statements as a whole to be £500,000
{2018: £250,000), which was sst at planning
and deemed appropriate throughout the sudit
using 1.5% of total revenue (2013: 1.8% of total
revenue). This provides a basis for determining
the nature and extant of our risk assessment
procedures, identifying and assessing the risk
of material misstatement and determining the
nature and extent of further audit procedures.

‘We determined that total revenue would be

the most appropriate basis for determining

the overall materiality for the current year of

the Group. This is because the Group s still

continuing to Gevelop its asset management
sines: i ing. A

9.
management business, the key driver of the
business is profitability, generating returns
for its shareholders and in doing so increasing
sharehclder wealth. Hovsever, the Group has
ot yet matured their business and is not
generating a consistent and sustained profit.
On this basis a revenue basis continues to be
taken as the key benchmark,

Performance and component materiatity

ity aliocated to

Other information
The Directors are responsible for the other
i ion. The other inf i TBrises

the information included in the Report and
Accounts, other than the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the
olher information and, except 1o the extent

the two other significant who
contributed more than 15% of the totat
Statement of comprehensive income and
Statement of financial position individually,
&l of which was audited by the group audit

otherwise expl inour report, we do
ot express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In conngction with our audit of the financial

team. The materiality for these

were £205,000 and £320,000 respectively. For
all other components the group audit team
performed a deskiop reviev.

Reporting threshold

‘We agreed with the Augit Committee that we
“would report all individual audit differences in
excess of £10.000(2018: £5.000}:0'the Audit
Committee and any other differences that, in
our view, warranted reporting on gualitative
grounds.

We evaluate any

our ibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financia! statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwisa appears to be materially misstated.
If we identify such materiat inconsistencies
©or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there
isamaterial misstaternent in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the
other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
i of this other infermation, we are

against both the quantitative measures of
miateriality discussed above and in the light of
other relevant qualitative considerations.

An overview of the scope of our audit

‘We tailored the scope of our audit Lo ensure
that we performed sufficient work o be able
to give an opinion on the financial statements

required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companles Act 2008

In our opinion, based on th
the course of the audit:

work undertaken in

asavhole. taking ino account the

structure of the Group, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in
which the Group operates. We considered that

> thei ion given in the strategic report
and the Dirgctors’report for the financial
year for which the financial staiements are
prepared s consistent with the financial

the Group has thr ignitican:
the Parent Company. Gresham House Asset

Inorder toreduce to an w levet
that the probability that any misstatements
excesd materiality, we use alower materiaity

} Limited House
Holdings Limited. The significant components
were subject to full scope augits. Al vork was

levet,

undertaken by the Group audit team. For all

the extent of testing required. Performan:

i a1 £375,000{2018:
£187,500), being 75%{2018: 75%) of the overall
materiality lavels, based on our risk assessment
together with our assessment of the Group's

other ignificant the Group
audit team has performed a desktop rev

and

+

the strategic report and the Directors’
report have been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

80 oy
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Matters on which we are requlred to report
by exception
Inthelight of the and

internal control as the Di

u u Finanelal U Aogitionat
Governance Statements information

& furtner iption of our ibilities for

s necessary Lo enable the preparation of
i i that are free fi t

of the Group and the Parent Company and
its environmerd obtained in the course of
the audit, ve have not identified materia!
misstatements in the strategic report or the
Directors report.

‘We have nothing to report in respect of the
following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2005 requires us 10 report tc
you'if, in our opinion:

> adequate accounting records have not
beenkept, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's and the Parent Company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Diractors either intend
to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

visited by us; of

+

the Parent Company financial statements
are not i [ with the {

Auditor’s i for the audit of
the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonzble
assurance about whether the financlal

records and returns; or

¥

certain disclosures of Directors’
remuneration specified by law are not
made: o

¥

we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our sudit.

Responsibilities of Directors
55 explained more fully in the Statement

of Birectors' responsibilities the Directors

are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such

awhole arg free fi ial
misstatement, whather due te fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report thet includes
Gur opinion. Reascriable assurance is a high
level of sssurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
(UK)will atways detect a material misstatement
whenit evists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually o
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these finansial
statements.

the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Councifs viebsi

wererlrc.org.uklauditorsrespensibilities.
description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report
This report is made solely to the Parent
Company’s members, as a body, in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
20086. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Parent Company's
members those matters we are required

to state to them in an auditer's report and

| for no other purpose. To the fullest extent

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiiity to anyone othar than the Parent
Company and the Parent Company’s members
as abody, for cur audit work, for this report, or
for the opinians we have formed.

Charles Ellis

(Senlor Statutory Auditor)
For end on behalf of BUO LLP
Statutory Auditor

Londsn, UK

5 March 2020
BOO LLPis alimited ability partnership

registered in Englang and Wales
{with registered number OC305127).
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

2019 2018
Netes £000 £000
income 1
Assst management income 228 B
Dividendand interest income 278 47
Other operating income 7 734
Performance fees and carrled interest 1,944 -
Total Income 33,527 16,498
Operating costs
Administrative overheads 31 _as0) 114508
i bef (603} o)
Finance cosis 6 (390)! (42
Exceptionalitems 5 aosnl oo
Net operating lass after exceptional items (2086)] (2153
Gains and losses on investments
Share of associates’ profitsfliosses) B 248 118
Gains and losses on invesiments held st fair value i 3,048 27}
Movement in fair valus of contingent consideration {2,085) (208}
Movement in value of deferred receivable - 40
Operating loss before taxation (827)! (875)
Tasation 8 23! 215
1 (850)° (657}
Profit f 71 55 | "
Loss and total comprehensive income (785)! 1646}
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (850) (898}
Non-conirotiing interest 55 53
(785): (646}
Basic and diluted loss per ordinary share (pence) 9 32! (3.8)
Basic adjusted profit per ordinary share (pence) s | 389 | 17.2
Diluted adjusted profit per ordinary share (pence) gl 3431 15

6 2 Gresham House ple:
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Statements of Changes in Equity
‘fear ended 31 December

' Stretegic.
Peport

' Governance

I Financlot
Statements

I Acditionat
informatica

Group
2019
Equity
Orcinary Share attributable Son-
share Share warrant Retalnod toequity | contraliing Totot
caphal premium reserve tesarves [ shareholders squity
Notes €000 £000 €000 £050 £000
Belance at 31 December 2018 8.2i18 57,901 58 15,026 78,213 527 78,740
Adjustments for changes in
accounting policy 7 - - - 3 [ - 8
Balance at 31 December 2018
after adjustment 6.2i8 57,901 58 15,042 78,218 527 78,748
Loss and total comprehensive
Income for the year - - - (850} {850) 88 (785)
Contributions by and distributlons
to owners
Share-based payments 27 8 189 - 642 839 - 839
Issue of shares 5 70 1,152 (58) - 1,824 - 824
Dividends paid 10 - - - (785) (785): - (785)
Total contributions by and
to owners 738 1,36 158) (153) 1868 - 1,868
Baiance at 31 Jecember 2015 6,958 69,242 - 14,039 ' 80,237 582 80,818
Group
2018
Equity
Oroiary snare attributoble Son
share Share warant Retainoa tooquity | conralling Total
capial premium reserve regerves | shoreholdors rest aquity
Notes £00¢ £600 000 £000 €000 €000 €000
Balance at 31 December 2017 3136 9,648 319 16,268 28,370 & 28,847
Loss and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - (699) (898} 53 (848)
Contributions by and distributions
toowners
Transfer of non-controfling
interest deficit - - - 3 3 (3) -
Share-based payments 27 - - - 464 484 - 464
Issue of shares 25 3084 48,252 (261) - 1. 51075 - 51075
Total contributions by and
to owner: 3084 48,252 (281) 467 51,542 (3) 51,839
Balance at 31 December 2018 6,218 57,901 58 15,038 78,213 527 79,740 |
Gresham House plc.
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Statements of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December

Company
2018
Ordinary Share
chara Shate viartant Retained Total
caplt promim ceserva reserres equity
tiotes £905 3 £600 9 €900
Bajance et 31 December 2018 8,218 §7.901 58 13,38 [ 5T !
for changes i ing policy 7 - - - 3 [
Balance at 31 December 2018 after adjustment 6218 §7.801 58 13.400 715771
Loss and total comprehensive Income for the year - - (226) (226);
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Issue of shares 25 738 034l (58) - 12,02
Dividends paid 1B - - - (7¢5) (785)
Total contributions by and distributions to owners 738 n3a (58) 75l mzze
Balance at 31 Decerber 2019 6,956 68,242 - 12,379 L 88577 |
Company
2018
Ondinary Share
chare Share varrant Petained Toto!
caphal premium reserve resorsss equity
Hotes €000 £000 £000 £o00 £000
Ba ance at 31 December 2017 3134 9.849 319 15,488 28,57
Loss and total comprehensive income for the year - - - {2.075) {2,075)
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Iss e of shares 25 3.084 48,252 (261 - 51,075
il to owners 3.084 48,252 (281) -1 51,075
Balance a1 31 December 2018 6218 £7.901 58 33§ 7isn
6 4 Gresham House plc.
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As at 31 December
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Group. Company
2019 2018 2018 2016
Notes £000 E00G £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
investments - securities n 95621 6834 7550 4,970
Tangible fixed assets 2 o3 322 610 126
investment in subsidiaries 5 - - 79.872 79872
Investment in associates 6 9,88 10,198 65 -
intangible assels 13| 58545 65,411 386 197
Long-term receivables - 78 - 78
78,165 83355 | 88483 | 85243
Current assets
Trade receivables 7 5,334 2628 - -
Accrued income and prepaid expenses 8 7,200 2613 158 26
Deferred receivable - 1033 - -
Gther current assets 19 1420 147 3,988 151
Deferred tax 22 [3H - 278 -
Cash and cash equivalents 18,632 13,958 1,840 6,148
Non-current assets held for sale
Assets of a disposal group held for sale. 1 . 12,188 -1 - - -
on. held for sale [ 21,703 5363 | 7,885
1 _26352{ 105056 b 868481 90,928
Current llabilities
Trade and other payables 20 15,210 4085 283 152
Short-term borrowings 2 - 2,000 5,986 7,385
Uiabilitles of a disposal group classified as held for sale
Liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale i1 9718 - - -
24,928 6085 8,269 7517
Total assets less current Habliities 88,424 28,974 88,577 85.41
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tavation 2 2,632 2,944 - -
Long-term borrowings 23 - 7840 - 7.840
Other creditors 2% 5,873 8,447 - -
8,605 19,231 - -
Netassets 80.818 79,740 88,577 757
Capltal and reserves
Ordinary share capital 2 6,956 828 5,956 6218
Share premium 2| 9262 57900 | 69,242 57,901
Share warrent reserve 28 - .58 - 58
Retained reserves 28 14,039 15,036 12,373 13,396
Equity attributable to equity shareholders 1 90,237 78213 88,577 l 75N
N 2 562 527 - -
Total equity mewl 79740} sssml  7sn
Baslc net asset value per ordinary share (pence) 23 32434 385 | 3831 3.9
Diluted net asset value per ordinary share (pence) 2 2] gw0n )| . zs2el  gees
The foss after tex for the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019 v/as £226,000. The financial proved and 5 for
issue by the Board and were signed on its behalf on 5 March 2020,
Kevin Acton
Chlef Finanelal Officer
Gresham House plc
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Group Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December

201 208
Hates €000 000

Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash generated fromin gperations. 30 9,646 1,25¢
Corgporation tax paid (178) (348)
Interest paid on loans (265) -
Nat cash flow from operating activities 9,203 305

Cash flow from investing activitles
Acquisition of Fi1 Services Limited . - (10.828)
Deterred consideration paid - (1.027)
Investment in associates (65) (1.879)
Dividends received from asscciates s pill
Purchase of management contracts ~ Livingbridge VC - (23,000}
Purchase of invesiments. {2,48) {5,166}
Sale of investments 318 1.260
Sale of investment preperties - 1.85
Deferred proceeds received on sale of investment properties 1,033 2,700
Investment in DevCo Projects {1,510) -
Purchase of fixed assets (289) (185}
Sale of fixed assets 40 48
Purchase of intangibie assets (302) (123)
(2.785)! _ (36.085)

Cash flow from financing activities
Regayment of lsans {10,000): -
Receipt of loans (net of fees paid) - 9,834
Share issue proceeds 8,485 26727
Share issue costs 8} {1,048}
Share warrants exercised 4,859 3.84
Share-based payments settied (833) -
Dividends paid {785) -
Cagital element of fease payments (662) -
(844) 39,354
increase in cash and cash equivalents 5474 4,173
Cash ang cash equivalents al start of year ‘13,958 5785
Cash and cash equivalents al end of year 19,432 13.958

6 6 Gresham House plc
Annusl Report and Accounts 2019
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For the year ended 31 December
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201 2018
Notes €000 £000

Cash flow from operating activities
et cash generated from/{utilised inloperations 30 ne (1.449)
Interest paid on loans " (255) -
Net cash flow from operating activities 137 {1,449}

Cash flow from investing activitles
Purchase of investments 218 (5166
Sale of investments g 881
Investment in subsidiary - {35,807)
Investment in associate (65) -
Purchase of fived assets {267) (53)
Sale of fived assets 15 -
Purchase of intengible assets (302) 87)
{2,449) {40,412)

Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of loans (10,000) -
Receipt of loans(net of fees paid} - 9,834
N ipts f (1,588) 217
Share issue proceeds 8,485 26,727
Shareissue costs {8) (1.048)
Share warrants exercised 4,859 3.841
Dividends paid (785) -
Capital element of fease payments (585) -
{1.622) 41,525
Decrease In cash and cash equivalents {4,208) {238}
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 6,148 6.484
Cash and cash equi end of year 4960 | 6,148

Gresham House plc
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Principal Accounting Policies
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The Group’s principat policies are as follows:
Basls of preparation

lc is a publi by shares i in the United Kingdom under the Companies Act and registered
in England. The address of the registered affice 5’5 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3TW.

The financial statements of the Group and the Company have E with Finencial Reporting Standards
{IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 appiicable to companies reporting under IFRS. The
financial statements are presented in sterling, which is also the Group’s functional currency.

The Greup has consi financial r d ongoing i contracts. As &, the Directors believe thar
the Group is well placed to manage i isk: The Dir a that the Group has adequate
rescurces tinue in g for the future. Thus, the Directs tinue to adopt ing basis of

in preparing the financial
The tollowing new effective for peri ginning 1 January 2019 were adopted during the year:

IFRS 16 Leases - Under {FRS 16 there is no distinction between finance and operating leases, with il leases, subject to options to excluge
Igases with & duration of less than 12 months and Isases of low value assets, included on the Statement of Financial Position by recognition
of aright of use asset and a lease liability. This impacts the accounting policy for leases and the new palicy is shown in Note 7. On transition
the Group decided to use the option not e restate prior periods, but to i iability at the date of initial application, based

on discounted future cash flows, along with a right of use asset at @ carrying amount as if the Standard had been applied since the
commencemeni date of the lease, but d i at the i rate al the date of i i The financial impacts of
this are shovnin tote 7.

Other new accounting standards applicabte for the first time in this reporting pericd have no material impact on the Group's results.

Basls of consolidation
Subsidiaries
\Where the Company has control over an investee, it s classified as  subsidiary. The Company controls an investee If all three of the fallowing
elements re present: power over the investee; exposure Lo variable returns from the investee; and the ability of the investor Lo use its
power (o alfect those variable returns. Control is indicate that there may be 2 change in any
of these elements of control. The i financial i the fi the Company and i
undﬂnaklnqs made UD to the year end as if they formed a single entity. Ail inira-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
on The i method of ing is used to account for business combinations by the Group. Refer to Note r}
iv)for further details on whether the Grous controls funds that it also manages.

whenever facts and cit

Associates

Where the Group has significant infiuence. it nas the power over{but not control of the financial and operating policy decisions of ancther
entity, it is classified iats initially ised in the D(Fmancral Position at cost. Subse.uenuy,
associates are accounled for using the equity method, where the Group's share of p i fits and i and other

income inthe Group Stats t of C Incorne. Dividends d or receivable iate ised as 3

reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Profits and losses arising on transactions tetween the Group and its asseciates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’
interests In the associate. The investor's share in the associate’s profits and iosses resulting from these transactions is efiminated egainst the.
carrying value of the assoc

Where there is an indication of impai that the i inan associate has been impaired, i of the vill
be tested for i inthe same way as oth inancial assets.

of of [
As permitted by secticn 408 of Act 2008, the Ci y has not presented
of the Company's results for the year are set out in note 28, the loss for the year being £226,000(2018: £2.075,000),

s ovn of C Income. Getails

Segment reporting
Operating segments are identified on lhe basis of internal reports aboul components of the Group that are reqularly reviewed by the Board in
order to allocale resources to the segments and to assess their performance.

roup's reportable segmenits, which are those reported to the Board are Real Assets, Strategic Equity and Central.
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Revenue recagnition
The fixed element of asset contracts i dat the fair value of the consideration received o receivable,
is stated net of value added tax and is earned within the United Kingdom. The fixed ion element of asset contracts
s recognised evenly cver the cuntracted period, as the contracts require the Group to perform an indeterminate number of individual asset
services over the d 1. Performance fees are recognised as revenue only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the'amount of cumuiative revenue recognised vill not occur. The potential volatility of performance fee
revenue means that it Is generally only recognlsed when the measures on which it is based have finally been determingd. Cash payments in
relation te fived and varlable reverues earned are generally received shortly after the relevant quarter end.

Other revenue recognition

(i) Dividend and interestincome
Income from listed securities is «hen the right to receive the dividend has b
re ised when it is probable that the econcmic benelits will flow to the Group and the of
Interest income Is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding.

. Interest receivable is
be reiably

{l)  Otherincome
Other income earned by the Group is recognised to the xtent that it is probable that the economic benefits vill flow to the Group and
that revenue can be reliably measured in line with any contractual arrangements in place.

Expenses
Aliexpenses and interest payable are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Tangible fixed assets

hel f tangible fixed 1S i cost less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation.

The carrying amount of tanglole fixed assets is reviewed annually by the Directors Lo ensure it is not in excess of Ine recoverable amount
from th The smount d on the basls of th ted net cas: flows vhich vill be received from the assets’
employment and subsequent disposal.

The deprecieble amount of all tengible fived assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis cver their estimated useful fives to the Group
commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use, and are depreciated at the following rate:

Office equipment 5%

oior vehicles 25%
Leaseholdproperty 1%
Rightof useassats  20%-50%
Taxation

The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income because It excludes Iters of income or expense that sre taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are not taxable or deductible. The Group's Habllity for current tax is caiculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the Statement of Financial Position date.

Deferred s the tax expectad tobe payable or i between th jing amounte of assets and liabilities in the
g ing tax bases used in the computation of tavabie profit and is accounted for Using the statement
of financial positi .D ised for all1axable temporary differences and deferred ta assets are

recognised to the extent U\al itis probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each Statement of Financial Position date and reduced to the extent that itis no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to 8pply in the period when the liability is settled, or the asset realised. Deferred
taxis charged or crecited in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, except vhen it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in

which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
Leases
Alease is defined as a contract that conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration. At the commencement date of alease a right of use asset and a lease liability are recognised in the financial statements.

Gresham House plc B 9
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
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The tease liability Is initially measursd at the present value of expected future lease payments discounted at the interest rate implicitin the
iease or, if that be i 1he lessee’s if borrowing rate. the lease lisbility y the fease
payments made, offset by interest on the liability, and may be toreflect any of expected p: toreflect any
lease modifications.

The right of use asset is initially measured at the amount of the initiat lease Kability plus: any lease payments made on or before the
commencement date less incentives received; eny incremental costs of obtaining the lease: and, if any, the costs of decommissioning the
asset and any restoration work to return ihe asset to the condition required under the terms of the lease.

Subsequently the right of use asset is valued using ihe cost model. The asset is amortised on a straight-line bas\s over the expectea term
of the lease, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability, ang is shown net of the nd any i
provisions.

Leases for low value assets and short-term leases are expensed 10 operating profit on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Investments
Inline with IFRS 9: Fi ial financial 5 rfsnwalue(hrough profit ang 10“5!"/TPLYE! mcnpnonars those that
are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. bout these financial assel lty on & fair
value basis to the Group's key The equity i ich do not meet the definitions of ate or subsidiary remain
held at feir value through profit and loss.
() Assets held for sale

Non-t curven( a:sezsl‘e!d for sale d at the lover of carryi t and fair value i ts U where the

hS of IFRS 5 apply) and lassified as such if their carryi L wifl be recovered through & sale
rather than through continui property that is held for sale is measured at feir value in accordance with
paragraph 5 of IFRSS.

This Is the case when the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such assets snd the sale is considered to be highly probable. A sale is considered to be highly probable if the sppropriate
level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset and a further active programme to locate a buyver and complete the plan has
been initiated. Further, the asset has to be marketed for sale at a price thal is reasonable in refation to its current fair value. in addition,
the sale i cted to qualify for it ale within one year from the date that it is classified as held for sale.

(i) Securities
Purchases and sales of listed investments are mr.oansen onthe xradp date, the date on which the Group commit to purchase or sell
thei £ | asheld at fair value and are measured at subsequent reporting
dates &t fair value, which is either the market bid price or the last d di the ion of th ] hich
thei iivestment is quoted. Fair values for unquoted investments, or for invesiments for which there is only an inactive market, are
by taking int t the ional Private Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidefines.

{iii)  Loansand receivables
Unguoted foan stock, loan it in projects and the deferred receivable are ali classified at amortised cost under
IFRS g refiecting their held to collect business model. Lnquoted loan stock is classified as loans and receivables in accordance with FRS
gif it meets the business model and cash characteristics tests. The business madel and cash characteristics tests require the objective
of owning the financial asset to collect the contractual cash fiows of intarest and principal over the life of the asset, rather than selling
prior to contractual maturity. The financial assets are held at amortised cost, less any loss alloviance, which is measured using the
expscted credit loss impait maodel. Th: es the in both the amortised cost relating to the interest inceme and in
respect of loss aliowances and these are reflected in the Stalement of Comprehensive Income.

Exceptional items
The Group presents as exceptional lems on the face of the C Statsment of C Income those materiat items of income
d expense which, e of the expected i of the events giving rise to them, merit separate presentation 1o allow
o better the el of financial performance in the year 5o as to facilitate comparison with prior years and to

assess better trends in financial performance.

Intangible assets

{i)  Goodwilt

Goodwiill, rep ing f the cost of over the fair value of the X jentil s and
liabilities acquired, is capitalised in the Statement of Financial Position. Following i nalvgcognmon qoodwll1sslaleda.cosuessany
accumulated impairment losses.
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Boogwill will be reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired.

() tracts and

I ts, such as tract i client @3 part of a business combination or separately, are
capitalised where it is probable that future economic benefits attributadle to the assets will flow to the Group and the fair value of the
assets can be measurad reliably.

Theyare recorded mlualI/ at fair value and then amortised, if appropriate, over their useful lives. The fair value at the date of acquisition
fiow the valuation of the net residual income stream arising from

il maceanhedate of isition. The tracts and client

relztionships are included in the Statement of Financial Position as intangible assets. Intangible assets with a finite fife have no residual

value and are amortised on a straight-line basis over their expected useful lives as follows:

h tracts

> Client relationships arising on cquisition - five years

> b contracts arising isiti to 25 years depending on the specific contract details
(lil) Website and client portal
Costs assoc: the of the Group's website and client portal
are amortised over the estimated useful life of four years,

in the Statement of Financial Position and

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values will be reviewad st each reporting date and adjusted if approprisie.

At each period end date, reviews ied out of the carrying intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication thal the assets have suffered an impairment foss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
valug in use and fair value less costs to sefl, of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent, it any, of the impairment loss.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (CBU)is estimated to be less than itsnet carryrng smount, the net carrying
amaunt of the asset or CGU is reduced to its Mount. lessesare inthe Statement of
Comprehensive Income. The Group assesses at the end of esch reporting pericd whethar there i any indication that an impirment
loss recognised in prior periods may no tenger exist o may har d. If any such i the

of that assel. In whether there is any indication that an impairment Ioss recnqmsed in prior pericds for an
asset may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Group iders, 25 a minimum, the i

(a} Whether the asset’s market value has increased significantly during the period;

(b) Whether any significant changes with a favourable effect on the enlu/hav aken placedurlng the period, or will take place in
the near future, in the technological, market, economic or legal inwhich the entit orinthe market to
which the asset is dedicated; and

(e} Whether market interest rates or other market rates of return on investments have decreased during the pericd, and those
decreases are lixely to affect the discount rate used in calculating the asset’s value in use and increase the asset's recoverable
amount materially.

(m) Financlal instruments

Financial s and fil onthe C: i of
10 the contractuzl provisions of the instrument.

sthen the Group party

Financial assets and fabilities are offset, and the net amount reportad in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position when there is
alegally enforceable right to settie on a net basis or realise the asset and liabifity simuftaneously and where the Group intends to net settle.

(0] dee and other receivables
in nalure de and  and carried at the lower of their invoiced value and
amount. £ j credit losses are inrespect of eachuade recewable a'vd remeasured at eachi report date based
onthe expected credit losses st that time. The expe dit losses ix by reference to past default
experience and sn analysis of the debtor’s current financial position. adjusted for factors that are specific (o the debtor, general economic.
conditiors of the industry and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.

(i}  Cashandcashequivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash squivalents are short-term, highly fiquid investments that are readily
convertible to knovn amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Gresham House pic
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)
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(i) Non-current rel:elvxbles
Deferred L ised at thy

alue of those receipts.

(lv) Oividends payable
Allividends are recognised in the period in which they are approved by shareholders.

(v} Bankborrowings
Allbank loans are initilly recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration received, less ssue costs where applicable. A(tcr
initial i ing loans and i at amortised cost. i I
by taking Into account any disceunt of premium d 10 the Statement of C
Income as incurred.

interest costs onl

(vi) Trade and other payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated a: their nominal value, Other payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at
their nominal vaiue as any discounting of expected cash flows is considered to be immaterial.

{vii) Borrowing costs

Unless capltalised under 1AS 23, Borrowing Costs, all i gnised in the C S(a:emenl of Ct

Income in the period in which they are incurred. F ges, including premi id on i di

issue costs and discounts velaleu to borrowings, are accounted for on an sccruals bas‘ is and charged to me Cansol»da ed Statement of
[ 2 using the effective interest method.

(viil) Contingent consideration
Contingent il icn arises when
Xample contract, i
amount due to present value at that date.

of all or any part of the cost of a business combination or other acquisition. for
. 1t is stated at fair value at the date of acquisition, which is determined by discounting the

Estimates are required in respect of th ot
to formulae agreed at the time of the busi; ination, and narmally
Directors review the amount of i i likely to b

the level of future prolns of the scquired business. i
spplicable inancial Reporting Standard:

payable on whichi i di
10 the future earnings of the acquired business. The
ble al each pericd end date, the major assumption being
is cii i to its fair value in

Pensions
Payments to personal pension schemes for employees are charged against profits in the year in which they are incurred.

Share-based payments
The Group issued equity-settled share-based payments to certain Directors and Eq led share-based payment
d at fair sing the effect of t based vesting conditions)at the date of qrem The fair valus detarmined at the grant

dte of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-fine basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
the shares that will eventually vest and acjusted for the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Fair value i d using a Black-Schol ion pricing model. The exp

d life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate. for the effect of cxercise ictic ] i i

A tiability equal to the portion of the goads or services received is recognised at the current fai value determined at each period end date for
cash-settied share-basad payments.

Non-controlling Interests.
N ing interests in the net assets of i idiaries are i from the Group's equity therein in
with IFRS 10. Nor-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and for
isiti = po! t 3 October 2010 following adopt! f1AS 27, C i and Separate Firancial Statements{Revised 2008}, the non-
' share of ch: i since the date of the combination.

Prior to the adoption of 14S 27(Revised i i to interestsi f thy ling i ' share
in equity were allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the non- controlling interests have a binding obligation
and are able to make an additional investment to cover such losses. Whan the subsidiary reports profits, the trolling
interests do not participate until the Group has recovered sil of the losses of the non-controlling interests it previously reported.
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Business combinations
The Group recognises business combinations when |t corsvders thatit b abusiness, which could be an entity or
separale business within an entity (for ! 1t nmnng the team to service mosecomraccs} The fair
vatue of the jred, and the liabilit 4 from the busi bi dat The fair vatue of the

consideration paid to the sellers of the business is as;esse:l with particutar reference to the classification of payments tc employees that
could be fon rather ion for & business.

Critical i and
The ion of f
assumptions that affect the reported

principles requires the use of estimates and
ts of assets and fiabilities At zr\n date cf the financial d the reparted amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimaty haseu on s best f the amount,
avent or actions, actual results may ultimately differ from th i that have significant risk of
causinga i ji ta the carryi of ts and liabilities within the next financial year are those used to determine:

(i) Revenue it fees.

fees and fund-
{i}  Treatment of battery storage development companies
fiii) ing for i in fiam House Strategic plc(GHS) and Noriker Power Limited iker)

(i) Consolication ssssssment of funds managed and controlled by the Group

) i review for ill and i Contracts

(vi)  Valuation of contingent consideration

{uil)  Firsttime adoption of IFRS 16 Leases.

M R ion, per and fees
The revenue recognition of the Group is driven by asset management fees. which ars recognised in fine with the investment
or agvisory in place with the iate funds. These are typically based on the committed capital of Limited
Partnership funds, of Net Asset Yalues(NAY)for listed venicles managed of advised by the Group. The HAY Is typically the lsst audited or
by the Board of thes jies and is therefore i approved.

publicly ole NAY

Limited partnerships and other fund management fees are typically based on committed capital, o an independent valuation where
sppropriate. Where there is an interim close on a Limited Partnership, the equalisation process for new Limited Partners involves catch-
up management fees or priority profit shares back to inception of the fund. In this instance, the period the service relates to is assessed
and for past service provision D feeis gnised when the new Limited Partner joins the fund.

Performance fees are recognised cnly when the Group is entitled to receive the performance fee per the management contract. Thisis

on achievement of the hurdle rate and ths outcome is knovmn. The g fee for GHS pic was inthe year,
relating to the NAY at 31 March 2019 and vas paid in the year.
feesar i with being the key 1 . The

relates to new share offers in ZOIS by lhc VCTS manageo by the Group.

(i)
The Group has nvested n the development of baitery storage prejects (DevCo Projacts), which are part of the exclusive pipeling to be
sold to Gresharn House Energy Storage Fund pic{GRID; The DevCo Project: held in separate SPYs, which the
Group entity DevCo Limited owns between 80-70% of the squity in and the Group has also lent funds for the development of the projects.

There are four key i ions in th treatment of the

(a)  Control{IFRS 10)- Bevco Limited holds the majority of the equity m the DevCo Projects and has also loaned capitat to fund zhs
development of the DevCo Projects. Devee Limited | trot of the DevCo Projacts and therefore h:
them in the Group financial statements.

{b) Associates{IAS 28)- One of the DevCo Projects(Blggerbrook}is accounted for ag an assaciate as Devee Limited holds only 24%
of the equity and is not in a controlfing position.

(e} Classification of the assets in each DevCo Project - The SPVs are developing battery storags facilities which are ciassified as
non-current assets under development until these assets become operational. The Group has therefore classified these as non-
current assets, akin to tangible fired assets.
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()

(iv)

(d} Assets held for sale {IFRS 5)and loss of control - the sale of the DevCo Project{'Red Scar}during the period has been treated as
aloss of control transaction under IFRS 10 resulting in & gain on sale being pr d net in the St
Income. At year end. a sale of an additional DevCo Project has b d with GRID and is |ncludmg price and
conditions to complete the sale. it is expected that the sale process will complete within a six to 12-month time frame, as such it
has been deemed appropriate tc ireat this DevCo Project a5 a dispesal group held for sale under IFRS 5.

{e)  Borrowing costs(IAS 23)- the DevCo Projects have interest payments relating to the amounts lent by GRID to fund the scquisition
of the battery assets at lhe project company level. The DevCo Projects have capitalised finance costs per 1AS 23 Borrowing
Costs as the i the of ther asnot unti loan:
being procured for the scle  purpose of developing the projects and the projects taking long time to get ready for intended sale)
permit this. The rate used was the weighted of the borrowing costs applicabie 1o all relevant borrowings
outstanding during 2018,

for in Gresham House Strategle plc (GHS) Power )
GHS is managed by GHAM and the C 23% of the ortinzry ital as 2t 31 December 201, The Directors consider
that the Cornpany exercises significant influence ovr GHS. but not control, mmuqh' holding and the i
egresment in place with GHAM. GHS therefore 5 tobe clzssifisd

Noriker is 28% cwned by the Group and is not an entity managed by GHAM. There are no specific additional rights that the Group have
as investors in Noriker, however with a 28% holding, the Board considers this a position of significant influence and has concluded that
Moriker should be treated as an associate.

These are inciuded in the table in th i below for
of fund d and controlled by the Group
Wh ing whether the G funds thal are managed on behalf of third parties, the Group is required (o assess whether

ithas power over these funds: exposure, of fights, to variable returns from its involvement with the fund; and has the ability to use its
power over the funds toaffect the amount of the Group . This can elso be consi hen the Group is actingin its capacity as
agent or principal. An agent is acting on behalf of third-party investars. wihereas a principal is acting for its ovn benefit.

IFRS 10 provides guidance for igeris e of whether are acting as agent or principai, and therefore
whether the Group should censolidate the funds that it manages or not. The key considerations when assessing this are decision making
authority of the fund manager, rights held by third pérties, remuneration and exposure 10 returns. The following providss further detail
on the Directers' assessment of control over the funds that are managed by Gresham House Asset i1anagement Limited {GHAM), the FCA
requlated entity within the Group.

The loliowing table summarises the assessment of whether the Company of its subsidiaries are acting as agent o principat:

74

Romovat Gresham
Manager/ rightaof House agont/

Fund Adviser Investors holding Principat
SPELP Yes Substantive  Marhet norm 0% Agent No consolidation
GHFFLP Yes Substantive  Market norm 0% Agent Mo consolidation
GHFFFLP Yes No Market norm % Principal _Consolidate
GHS Yes Market norm 23% fgent Assgciate
Noriker No n/a nfa 28% Agent hssociste
GRID. Yes Substantive  Market norm 25% Agent Investment
BSIF Yes Substantive  Market norm 0% Agent No consoligation
Baronsmead Y/CTs Yes Substantive  Marketnorm 0% Agent No consolidation
Gresham House Renewable Energy VCTs  Yes Substantive  Market norm 0% Agent Mo consolidation
Micro Cap Fund Yes Substantive  Markel norn 0% Agent No consolidation
Multi Cap Income Fund Yes Substantive  Markel norm 0% Agent Mo consolidation
Forestry LP Funds Yes Substantive  Market norm % Agent Mo consoli
New Energy LP Funds Yes Substantive  Marketnorm 0% Agent Mo consglidation
. ' v ingiracr, viness N totetof 26% In GRIDIZ0I8:5.0%1
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Gresham House Strategic Public Equity LP(SPE LP)is managed by BHAM, a subsidiary of Gresham House pic. GHAM in its role as
investment adviser is exposed Lo variabie returns through its management fee. however the Company is not directly ivested in SPE
LP. The limited partners of SPE LP have the ability to remove the manager without cause, ane year after the final close of SPE LP on
«obtaining limited partner i The Directors’ indicates that GHAM is acting as agent for SPE LP and therefore
should not consolidate SPE LP.

Gresharn House Forestry Fund LP{GHFF LP)is managed by GHAM. GHAM is exposed 1o variable returns through its management fee and
acquisition fees, as well as the Company’s limited partnership interest in Gresham House Forestry Friends and Family LP(GHF FF LP) a
vehicle which in turnis a limited partner in GHFF LP.

The limited partners of GHFF LP have the ability to remove the manager without cause, one year after the final ciose of GHFF LP on
obtaining limited partner special consent. There are 3 number of limited partners that viould he required te co-ordinate to remove the
manager. The Directors assessment of this right indicates that the manager s acting as agent for GHFF LP and therefore should not
consolidate GHFF LP.

The Directors’ assessment of GHF FF LP, however, indicates that it is in a controlling position with a 1%
consolidate this in the Group financial statemenis.

oiding and therefore should

British St Il Fung (BSIF)Strategy. which comprises the two sub-funds, Gresham House BSI
Infrastructure LP and Gresham House BSI Housing LP, is managed by GHAM. The manager is exposed to variable returns through ts
management fee. Neither the Company, nor any of its id i invested in the BSIF gy therefore are not
exposed to the variable retuns as an investor. The limited pariners of the BSIF Strateyy also have the ability to remove the manager
without cause, one year after the final close of the BSIF sub-funds with a special resolution. The Directors’ assessment of this right
and the fact that the Company is not invested in the BSIF Strategy indlcates that the manager is acting as agent for BSIF and therefore
shouid not consolidate the BSIF Strategy.

Gresham House Energy Storage Fund pic {GRID)is managed by GHAI and the Company has a direct and indirect investment in GRID
1otaliing 2.5%. The assessment of whether GHAM is scting as agent o principal requires assessing the other entities and individuals that
are connected to Gresham House and their investmenit in GRID. BSIF has a 10% investment in GRID, however the assessment of whether
BSIF is conirelled by GHAM concluded that GHAM does not contro! BSIF and therefore shoutd not be included in the prepertion of GRID
that is under the control of GHAM.

The remaining funds of the VCTs, R \bie Energy VCTs, the LF Grasham House UK Micro Cap Fund{Micro
Cap Fund)and the LF Bresham House UK Multi Caa Income Fund (it Cap Income Fund) are managed by GHAM, however are not invested
inoy the Group. The Board has therefore concluded that the Grol d gent and not i these funds.

for Contracts from previ

Per 1AS 36 Impail of Assets. the polential of Goodviill and [ by prior
is reviewed. The ‘WACC rates used for discounting were derived using CAPM mods!, accounting for ditferent risk profile of acquired
contracts. No terminal value was assigned for the review.

(a)  Goodwill Impairment Testing

The potential value of the acquired cash ing unit: i cash flow of putentiat futurs performance of the acquired
contracts vias assessed It has been assumed that the cash generating unit wiil continue Lo grow in fine with reasonable assumptions
based on histt i d the busls del. The e modelled using a discounted cash flow model,

with the estimated value it on the Stat L of Financial Posilil d other intangible assets and acquired
assets. Where the value estimated less other intangible and tangibil 15 is greater than the goodwill amount on the Statement of
Financial Position, no impairment is i The were no indicati fi i against all goodwiili bal f the Group as at

31 December 2019.

(b)  Management Contracts Impalrment Review

The management contacts were revalued using a discounted cash flow method 10 assess the remaining value of the contract to the
end of its expectes life. This assumed with no growth from fund raising and costs assumed appropriate in a no growth business, The
valuation vias compared to the carrying value of the management contracts at 31 December 2013 and there were no indications of
impairment.
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Principal Accounting Policies (continued)

(s)

(vi)

(vii)

Valuation of contingent consideration
The fair value of contingent consideration payable to the seilers of the FiM and the Livingbridge VC businesses has been estimated with
reference to the coniractual requirements as at 31 December 2013.

Inthe case of FIM. an estimate of whether the combined two-year revenue target of £14.0 miltion has been made and discounted
back from the payment date to the reporting date. An additional amount is payable should the two-year combined revenues esceed
£18.0 mitfion.

The Livingbridge VC contingent consideration is in two parts. The first being that the VCT boards do not give notice within tvio years
of the acquisition. There are no indicaiions to date that notice will be given, so this has been assumed to be true and the value payable
discounted back to 31 Becember 2018.

The second part being the hurdle ta deliver revenues from Livingbridge YC of between £30.9 million and £37.2 million in the three years
to 31 December 2021, The fair value has been based un avweighted probability of oulcomes over the three-year period and discounted
by 15%.

First time adoption of IFRS 16 Leases

{FRS 16 Leases came into force with effect from 1 January 2019. Allleases within th p have b d under IFRS 16 guid

and classified accordingly. The main impact has been the addition of office leases to the Statement of Financial Position as right of use
assets, which are then deprecialed over their useful lives. The result of the adoption of the standard is that the rent charge for offices is
no longer reported with i is effectively capitali o ised through the deg Per
IFRS 1€ adoption guidance, the standard has not been applied retrospectively.

Critical ingj inch

the present valus of the obligation to make lease payments and a refated right of use
asset. This i ing an ag i di unt rate.

Foreign currency

d fiabilities in forei ies are translated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the Statement of Financiat Position

9
date. Transactions in foreign currencies aré translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of transaction. Exchange

are taken in arriving at the operating result.
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Notes to the Accounts

1 INCOME
—_-Zm 2018
€900 £000
Asset management income:
Asset management income 31226 3.7
31226 1B
Dividend and interest income
Dividend income - Listed UX 168, g
Interest receivable: Banks 52 8
Other . 60 22
i 278 47
Other operating Income h
Arrangement fees 3 -
Consultancy fees receivable 5 2
Other income & 722
8 734
Performance fees .
Performance fees 1844 -
1844 -
Totalincome 33,527 14.498
Total income comprises
Asset management income 31,226 BNy
Dividends 186 9
Interest n 38
Other operating income 7 T34
Performance fees 1,844 -
33527 14,498

Qther income in 2018 included a make whole fee received in the year of £620,000, which related to the sale of the battery storage project ESS2

Holdco Limited to GRID. This transaction was completed in the year and the full contingent fee recognised at that date.

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Board and management tearm of the Company have organised and repcrted the performance of the business by Real Assats, Strategic Equity and

Central segments. These have evolved as the business has grov:n to become the speciaiist asset manager that it is today.
Real Assets includes the Forestry, Nevs Energy and Housing and Infrastructure divisicns.

Strategic Equity includes Public Equity and Private Equity divisions.

Centralincludes the general income created and costs incurred by the central functions of the business that are not directly linked to Reat Assets or

Strategic Equity.

Ali activity and revenue are derived from operations within the United Kingdom.

Greshom House ple
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED}
For the year ended 31 December 2019

Centrat  Consolidated
£00 €600

Core income i
Assst management income: | 1s282 12,844 - 31,226 |
Interestincome | @ 2 w1 n2|
Dividend income 0 2 - 166
Other operating income ! 47 1% 18 78
Dividend income from associates i 1151 72 - 1323 §
Totel core Incorme {1881 13,180 65 32,806
Segment expenses | wew  (ss72)  (8338) (22.220),
Finance costs i - - (380) (380
Adjusted operating profit/loss] ! 1,763 7,208 (8,864) 10,287 |
Net performance fees | - 200 - 200 ¢
Net realised gains on investments ! 1332 - - 1332 ¢
Adjusted opersting profit including performsnce fees and realised 1 !

gains on investments ) 13,075 7,408 8.684) 818 5

Exceptional items

Oepreciation and amortisation

Loss on disposat of tangibls fixed assets
Share of associate's profit/{ioss)*

hare-based payments relating
9

Profits oninvestments at fair value

Movament in fair value of contingent consideration

Loss bsfore taxation from continuing operations

“Shareat o, £1.322.600.
7 8 Gresham House pic
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2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Reat Strategic

husots Equlty Conral  Consoiidatos

£600 £000 cogs EU00
Core Income
Assel management income 1,102 2815 - 1377
Interest income & 22 10 38
Dividend income 9 - - 9
Other operaling income - 100 634 734
Dividend income from associates' - 21 - piil
Total core income nn7 2,948 644 14,703
Segment expenses {3,504} (2,587} (5,527} (n,618)
Finance costs - - (42} (42)
Adjusted operating profitdloss)™ 7613 361 (4,925} 3.048
Exceptional items (2.001)
Depreciation and amortisation (2.926)
Profit cn disposal of 1angibie fived assets 23
Share of associste’s profit* 1507
Share-based payments relating to acquisitions @7
Losses on investments at fai value 27
Movement in fair value of contingent consideration 208)
Movement in fair value of deferred recsivable 40
Loss before tayation from continuing operations (675)

£2n500.
detais.

During the year the Group had one customer accounting for more than 10% of the Group's revenue, totalling £4,610,000(2018: one customer,

totalling £1,575,000).
Other information
31December 2019
[ T Thew strategie Legacy ]
U Assets Equity Property Central  Consolldoted |
I £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 |
Segment assets 4633 BA24 o1 13688 124352 |
Segment fiabilities L 23m (7028 (34) (14103 (33533
| 3383 57,218 57 ) sogis |
Capital expenditure | - - - 610 610 |
Depreciation ang amortisation ! 2742 4,865 - 820 8527 |
Non-cash expenses other than depreciation ’ n2 - - 1844 2156 |
Goodwill included within segment assets : 11,888 12,167 - - 24,063 |
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING (CONTINUED)

31December 2018
Real Suztegic Legacy
ssseis Eauity Proerty Contiat  Gonsoiidated
o0 £000 B0 000
Segment assets 40,223 48,736 2174 12,883 105,056
Segment fiabilities (6.808) {5.313) (43) (13,052} {25318}
33,315 44,483 2,131 (189) 79,740
Capita! expenditure 7% - - 54 132
Depreciation and amortisation 1845 958 - 100 2803
N i hi P 218 - - 494 n
Goot cluded in segment assets 11,896 12187 - - 24,083
3 OPERATINGCOSTS
Administrative overheads comprise the following:
200 200
onn £000
Directors’ inkind and sh; d payments) 1,809 842
Auditor's remuneration” 178 140
Amortisation 7668} 278
Depreciation ) 138
LossAprofition disposal of assets. 43 {23)
Weges and salaries. 12310 5,610
Sczial security costs. 1,988 844
Share-based payments 1844 4sh
Other operating costs 7,478 3,705
. 34,130 14,608
Statf costs (including Directors’
Weges, salaries and fees 14,072 5332
Sazial security costs 1,886 B4Y
Pension costs 538 297
16,597 7673
= Amore detailed analysis of suditor’s remuneration is as follows:
2015 2018
£000 000
Audit fees - Company and consolidated financiai statements 40 40
Audit fees - audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 138 e
Autitor's other fees - relating to acquisitions and included in - 25
178 165

The Directors consider the auditor was best placed 16 provide thes

services to ensure that Independznce is maintained.

2 other services. The Audit Committee reviews the nature and extent of non-audit

The average number of persons employed by the Group, including the Executive Directors, was 87(2018: 55). The Company has no employees.
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Anruasl Repart and Accounts 201

' Strategic I l Financlat l Acgitionat
Peport Governance Statements information.

4 DIRECTORS'EMOLUMENTS -
Th the Directs disclosed in the ion Report on pages 57t 62.

The i idered to be the s only key personnel. Nationat Insurance Contributions in respect of the
Directors for the year were £198,000{2018: £132,000).

5 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

A)  FIMSERVICES LIMITED .

0n 21 May 2018, shareholders approved the acquisition of FIM Services Limited (FIM)at a general meeting. The Group acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of FIt, a company registered in England whose principal activity is the management of forestry and other renewable energy assets.

At 31 Dscember 2017, FiM managed 83,000 hectares of forestry and 127MW of renswable energy generating assets in onshore wind farms and ground-

mounted solar parks for clignts through long p ps, LLP slr and managed accounts for high net worth individuals.
The fair value of the identifi assel: ired, and the i ion paid under IFRS 3 are as follows:
’ Mot baok

vatue  Adjustments Falr value

€000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets : 185 - 165
investments 818 (318) 560
Cash 6.024 - 6,024
Trade and other receivables 921 - 921
Trede and other payables . (1,674) - 1.674)
Fund and ciient menagement contracts . - 18,600 18,600
Deferred tax liadility - {3.162) {3.162)
Goodwill - 8878 8,878
Total identifiable net sssets 6,853 23,798 30.652
Under the terms of the isiti . the fair value of th i paid to the vendors of FIM was:

£000

Cash . 16,852
Shares - 2,380,244 shares in Gresham House plc valued at 445.0 pence per share on 21 May 2018 10,637
Tolal initial consideration 27.488
Contingent consideration 3163
Total consideration 30.852

The consideration shares were admitted to trading on AM on 22 May 2018.

Contingent conslderation

Contingent consideration totatling £4 million will be payabie in cash when the revenues from the combined forestry businesses (FIM and existing
Gresham House Forestry)over tvo years isition are gf ¢ than E14 million. For than this there is a sliding scale which
reguces to il d i i th ed re less than £13 million.

Current forecasts are that the £14 million hurdle will be achieved and that the additi i ion will be paid in full,

A further contingent ionis pay hould t bined di f greater than £18 million over the same two-year

period, above which 33% will be payabls to the sellers. The estimated fair valus of the further contingent consideration is £1million (2018: Enill. based
on actual revenues generated to date and e«pected earnings in the remaining period to 20 iay 2020.

The fair value of the contings ideration has been estimated at the date of acquisition using forecast details for the combined business and
discounting this at 11.0%. This is cash settled and will therefore b ised as a liability on the batance sheet and the fsir value sssessed each
reparting period. The fair value 2t the time of acquisition was calculated 6s £3,163,000.
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Notes to the Accounts(continued)

5  BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Revenue and profits of FIM
FIM was acquired on 21 May 2018. The Group the foliowing amounts in respect of FI for the 32-week period ended 31 December 2018:
€000
Revenue 5.284
Profit before tac 3,197
Prior to acqGuisition by the Group, FiM had a 30 September year end. The results for the most recent audited reporting pericd pnur to acquisition were
10 30 September 2017, Had FiM been part of the Group for the enti ting period the folicwing sums would have been
€000
Revenue 6.275
Profit before tax 3,295
Gooduwiill
Gogdviill srises due o the excess of the fair vaiue of the consideration payable over Ih‘- latr valug of the net assets acquired. Itis mainly atiributable 1o

the skills 6f the team acquired, the syrergies expected to be achieved from i th potential. Goodwill
on the FIM acquisition is not deductible for tax purpeses. Goodwill has been revieved for impairment, and no impairment has been recognised as at
31 December 2018.

Fair value

The fair value of the management contracts has been estimated using a discounted cash flow model. The estimated cash flows have been valued at
adiscount of 11.0%. This resulted in fair value of management contracts being recognised totalling £18,600,000 at acquisition. The net book vatue of
the management contracts has been reviewed for impairment and no impalrrment has been recognised as at 31 December 2018,

B) LIVINGBRIDGEVCLLP

The Company acquired the fund and i busi f Livi idge VC LLP{Livir ve), a!e;qu JK manager of VCT funds
end open-gnded investment funds, on 50 Movember 2018. Livingbridge YC was part of the larger Livingbridge LLP pr quity asset

business. The acquisition of Livingbridge YC included the novation and acguisition of investrment advisory contracts for Baronsmead VCT plc,
Baronsmead Second VCT ple, Livingbridge (now LF Gresham House)UX Micro Cap Fund and Livingbridge {now LF Gresham House} U¥ Multi Cap
Inceme Fund and the hiring of the Livingbridge VC team.

The fair valus of the identifiable net asset: ired, and the paid under IFRS 3 are as follows:

Falrvauo

£000

Managsmant contracts 22,880
Gooowilt 12,167
Total identifiable net assets 35.027
Goodwiil
Gooowill erises due 10 the excess of the fair value of the consideration payable over the fair value of the net asseis acquired. it is mainly attributable
to the skills of the team acquired, the synergies expected to be achieved from the i and the busin potential. Goodwill h:

been reviewed

r impairment, and no impairment has been recognised as at 31 December 2019,

d profits of L ve
The actual revenues and profits that have been generated since the acquisition of Livingbridge VG on 33 November 2018 to 31 December 2018 ware:
€000
Revenues n2
Profit before tax 495

The disclosure of hypathetical revenues and profits of Livingbridge VC for the year ended 31 December 20181 nol considered relevant due to the
naturs of the The entire Li LLP busii not acquired and there will be reverues and expenses not relevant to the
business acquired.
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5 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (CONTINUED)

Fair value
The fair value of the b i i i cash . The estimated cash flows have been vaiued at
adiscount of 16.0%. This resulted in fair value of managemem con\racts heing recognised totalling £22,860,000 st acquisition. The net book value of
the management contracts has been reviewed for i and has been recognised as at 31 December 2019,
Exceptional tems
I ael &
Acquisition costs:
FiM Services Limited 2 770
Livingbridge VC 10 856
Hazel Capital LLP - 8
Jeint Yenture i 251
263 1,697
PRestructuring costs 848 304
Exceptionat iegal fees 154 -
b oesl 2,001
s i i and not part of the ) olb tivity.
B  FINANCECOSTS -
r—'_zms] 20
€000 £000
Interest payable on bank loans 188 35
Finance fees 188 7
Interest payable on leases 33 -

360 | 2

See Note 23 for detsils of borrowings.

7 IFRSIBLEASES
iFRS 16 Leases replaces IAS 17 Leases and s effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Group has thersfore adopted the
standard from 1 Jenuary 2013.

The oniy impact on the Gmup rolates o leases for use o offce space at various Iocations. These wers earlier classified as operating leases under 1AS
17, hi d to operating line basis over the lease term. As reguired by IFRS 16. as a lessee, the Group has

i Haili ing the present value of the obligation to make lease payments, and a related right-of-use (ROU) asset inline with
the process explained under the statement of compliance.

The rate implicit in the leases are not evident and so the entities’incremental borrowing rates have been used. The incremental rate referred to by
IFRS 1B indicates the rate of interest that a lessee vwould have to pay to bnrm.v over a similar term, and with asi imitar security. the funds necessary to
obtain an assel of a similar value to the ROU asset in a similar economic The weighted borrowing rate used on the
date of initial application of the leases is 3.25%.

Aset
1Januery

019

£000

ROU asset cost 1,302
ROU asset accumulated depreciation (231
Lease liability (1.065)
Retained reserves” (2]
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Notes to the Accounts(continued)

7  IFRST6LEASES{CONTINUED)

Yoar ended
31Bocombar
2010
£000
Deprecialion expense 665
Interest expense 33

Cash cutflow related to IFRS 16 leases 591

* reprasenting .he netimpact of recognising the leases under IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2018 as the Group chose to not restate prior periods as a maiter
of practical . The impact on retained reserves was immaterial.

The aggregate leasg liability recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at 1 January 2019 and the Group's operating lease commitment at
31 December 2018 can be reconciied as follows:

| Y™y |

Operating lease commitment at 31 December 2018 015 1

Effect of discounting those leases at an annual rate of 3.25% *(8);
Leases recognised in the current year 156

1065 |

Please see Note 31 Financial Instruments for the maturity profile of leases.
The Group has elected not to apply IFRS 16 to:

(a)  Low valueleases for various IT equipment leased across the business. The maximum third-parly new item price of any excluded equipment is
less than £3,000. The total amount of lease payments for the year ended 31 December 2019 relaling to thess leases was £15,000: ang

(b} that expired in 2018. The totat amount of lease payments for the year ended 31 December 2019 relating tc this lease
was £33,000.

Itis also noted that:

(&) Theimpact of lease fiabikity 2nd ROU asset on deferred taves is expecied to be immaterial;

(b)  Therewer Y | residual vaiue
assets and lease liabii

that impacted the initia! recognition value for ROU

{c)  There were n purchase options for leased assets that was made available o or requested by the Group: and

(d}  Lease values do not inciuds it lties as the busi intends to use the properties to the end of leass terms.
8  TAXATION

I 209 2018

£300 £050
(a) Analysis of credit in period:
UK Corporation tax at 19% (2018: 19%) 680.. -
Underprovision in prior year 268 -
Deferred tax (925) (218)
Tota! tay charge/icredit) .23 (218)
(b) Factors atfecting tax credit for perlod:
Loss on ordinary activities before tax multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2018: 19%} (157 (i86)
Taxeffect of:
Dividend income not tasable - {42)
Amortisation not taxsble : 85 335
Expenses disallowed = 388
Gther gains and losses not taxable 228 (248)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tar losses 1,259) (484}
Prior year 268 -
Actual tax charge/icreait) i 23 1218)
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8 TAXATION(CDNTINUED)

The Group texlosses of £10.3 miltion (2018: £11.6 million) available against future ration lax lial
deferred taxation asset of £1.5 million{2018: £2.0 million)in respact of some of these losses has not been ised in these fi
itis not considered sufficiently probable that the Group will generate sutficient laxable profits from the same trade to recover these smounts in full.
The Company recognised & deferred tax asset of £0.3 million(2018: £nil)in the current year.

es. & potential

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basicand diluted loss per share

2018 2018
Totaf net {oss attributable to equity holders of the parent [£G00) (850} (€39)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period 26,470,021 | 17762370
8asic and diluted loss per share attributable to equity holders of the parent(pence} 1 - (3.2) (3.8)
3,491,093(2018: 2,434,245) shares were deemed to have been issued at nil i i aresult of the warrant:

granted and stiares vhich could be issued under the bonus share matching plan and long term incentive pians which, as required under 1AS 33,
Earnings per Share, have not been recognised as they would reduce the loss per share {see Note 26).

(b) Adjusted earnings per share

Adjusted earnings per share i G on adjusted operating profit, which is stated ing il t but bef iati tisation,
share-basad payments refating t { rofits and I on disposat of tangible fixed ts, net performance fees, net development gains.
and wcen(lonamem te provide the non-GAAP measure of the performance a5 an asset maniager. This includes dividand and income received
fromii iates. This metric wa: rewsedm?ﬂ 9 1o reflect the activity of the core asset management business separa;elyfrum
performance fees and realised gains on i the metricn 1 pt fees, variabk

1o gains on j i based payments relating to acquisitions.

Adjusted profit for calcutating adjusted earnings per share:

_zmq 20
£000 €000
Wet operating loss after exceptional tems . (2086)) (2153
Add back:
Exceptional operating expensas 1083 2001
Depreciation 2nd amorlisation : 8,484 2,925
Lossfiprofit) on disposal of tangible fixed assels 43 23)
Dividend income received from associates 1323 2
Het performance faes (200) -
Varible compensati torealised gains on 1037 -
payments relating quisitic " se3 87
Adjusted profit attributable to equity holders of the parent 102871 3068
Adjusted profit per share (pence) - basic 388 1 17.2
Adjusted profit per share (pence} - diluted 1 363 | 154

10 DIVIDENDS
The Company paid £795 ing the year which final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018. Mo dividends were paid during
the previous year.

Set out below is the total dividend paysble in respect of the financial year, which is the basis on which the requirements of Section nss Corporation
Tay Act 2010 are considered.

w8
£000
Proposed finat dividend for the year ended 31 Becember 205 of 4.5 pence(2018: 3.0 pence) ger share. 1 1252 | 745

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Mesting and has not been included as  fiability in these
financial statements.
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

N INVESTMENTS - SECURITIES
Investments have been classified as foliovss:

Group Company
2018 201 2018 208
£000 £000 £000 £000
Nen-current assets 8821 6334 7,550 4,370
Other debtors due within one year - Investment in development projects (see Note 19} 1,208 1,280 1208 1,280
0820l sz 8,758 6,260
Afurther analysis of total investments is as follows:
Group Company
o - A
Listed securities - on the London Stock Exchange 5624 | 4,273 5,624 4,273
Securities dealt in under AIM 531 288 53 288
Securities dealt in under NEY. Exchange 0 26 0 26
Undisted securities 4,684 3537 2593 1673
Closing value at 31 December 10,828 B.124 8.758 6,280
Investments valued at fair value through profit and loss 8,914 6,51 6,843 4,847
Losns and receivables carried at amortised cost 1,915 1613 1815 1,813
10,828 8,124 8,758 6,260
Group Company
209 201 2019 g 208
£000 £000 £000 £000
Opaning cost 0,789 4,869 8,020 | 3019
unrealised losses (1,645) (1.880) [ (1,808}
Opening value 8124 2,989 6.260 1310
Vovernents in the year:
Pu-chases at cost 3212 6,981 3272 6,482
Saies - proceeds (319) (1575) (318} (987}
Sales - realised gains and (losses) on sales (299) {€06) (299} (584)
Net unrealised gains and (losses) 978 235 kyl 48
of subsidiary (827) - (927) -
Clesing value 10,828 8124 8,758 6,260
Clesing cost 486 9.768 8,747 8,020
Clcsing net unrealised Josses {667) (1.645) (889) (1.760)
Clcsing value 10,828 8124 8,758 5,260
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n - SECURI
Bains and losses on investments held at fair value:
. Group Company
208 208 2019 2008
£000 £000 £000 £000
Het realised gains and{iossas) on disposal (299) (508) (289) (584)
Metunrealised gains and (losses) 978 235 m 49
Profit on disposal of subsidiary undertaking 2,369 - - -
Net gainsflosses) on investments 3048 2n) 472 | {535)
Ananalysis of investments is as foilows:
Group Company
2019 2008 zmj 2018
£000 £000 €000 £000
Equity investments 8914 6,501 6,843 4,667
Unquoted loan stock . 1815 1813 1,915 1613
10828 8.124 8,758 6.260
Further information on the measurement of fair value can be found in Note 32.
12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Group - 2018
Offico Motor  Lensahold Right ot
equipment vehicles proporty  usoassets Total
€000 €000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
As ai | January 191 297 4 - 492
IFRS 18 restatement - - - 1302 1,302
Additions 01 186 - 42 309
Disposals during the year (32} 074) - - (208)
As at 31 December 280 289 & 1344 1,897
Depreciation
As at tJanuary 56 01 3 - 180
IFRS 1B restatement - - - kel 231
Charge for the year 67 83 1 665 a8
Disposals during the year {27) (88) - - (123)
As at 31 December 86 88 4 896 1,084
Met book value as at 31 December 164 200 - 448 813 |
Gresham House ple
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

12 TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS{CONTINUED)
Group - 2018

Qifice Molor  Leasehoid
equipment vehicles property Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
Asat1January 7 221 10 303
Additions 59 i - 32
Adgitions threugh business combinations. €60 105 - 185
Digposals during the year - {102) {6) 108}
As at 31 December 8 297 4 482
Depreciation
Asat 1January % ot 2 107
Charge for the year 42 85 1 138"
Disposals during the year - (85) - {e5)
As at 31 December 56 101 3 160
Net book vaiue as at 31 December 135 196 i 332
Company
200 2018
r offcs Hotor  Rightotuso office
equipmont Vehiclos sssots Total | equipmert
€000 £000 000 £000
Cost
Asat Y January e - - s B
IFRS 16 restatement - - 9 881 -
Additions 107 284 - 381 e
Disposals guring the year (32) {489) - (m)’ -
As st 31 December. { 253 235 981 1,478 i 178
Depreciation
Asat 1 January 52 - - 52 3
IFPS 16 restatement - - 57 157 -
Charge for the year 84 42 589 895 39
Disposals during the year (2n {8) - {35) -
As at 3t Gecember. 83 34 746 869 52
Net book value as at 31 December 164 201 245 810 126

8 8 Gresham House plc
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209 2018
‘Wabaito Wabsite
&eliont Cusiomer &ctient
Goodwil relatlonships  Contracts portal Totel | Goodwi relstionships  Contracts portal Total
£000 £000 £000 €000 [ £000 £000 €000 £000 £000
Cost
Asat tJanuary 24,063 3,072 43,784 288 185 3.218 3072 2304 218 8813
Additions through business
combinations - - - - - 20.845 - 41,460 - 62,305
Other additions - - - 302 302 - - - 67 87
Asal 31 Decembsr 24,063 3.072 43.764 588 N.487 24,083 3072 43,764 286 7185
Amortisation
Asat1January - 1843 3342 88 5,274 - 1228 1,238 21 2,486
Charge for the year - 614 6,941 n 7688 - &4 2,108 B8 2.788
Asat 31 December - 2,457 10,283 202 12,942 - 1,843 3.342 88 5,274
Net book value as at
31 December 24,063 815 33.481 388 58,545 24,063 1229 40,422 187 85811
Remaining amortisation nla 1year 1-24 1-4 nla  2yesrs  05-25 1-4
period years years years years

The website and client portat

were undertaken by the Company.

The ions used to fair value the 3 rates, growth rates and cash flow models are described in more detail in the
critical ing esti 4 jud section of th ing policies.
Goodill has been assessed for each for impail as at 31 December 2018. This assessment includes an analysis of the expected

cash flows from the specific

based

planned revenues. & discount

b

fied to the cash flows 1o ¢

whether goodwill shoutd be impaired.

No reasonably possible change in any of the variables used in the goodsill

tests would give rise to an

d other growth factors as well as the associated cost of delivering the
ine an estimate of the fair value of the business, which is used to assess
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Notes to the Accounts(continued)

14  DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

The Group has invested in the development of battery storage projects(DevCo Projects), which are part of the exclusive pipeline to be sold to
Bresham House Energy Storage Fund plc{GRID) when operational. The DevCo Projects are held in separate SPYs, which the Grous

Limited owns between 60-70% of the equity in and the Group has also lent funds for the development of the projects.

Tha sate of the DevCo Projects has been agreed with GRID and is documented, including price and conditions to complete the sale. It is expected that
the sals process will complete within a si« to 12-month time frame, as such it has been deemed appropriate to treat the DevCo Projects as assets held

for saie under IFRS 5. Specifically, they are classitied as a disposal group” held for sale, whose value will be primarity recovered by sale.

Deveo

The liabilities of those SF ich have be i by the Group are:
Group
2018 2018
£000 £000
ts of @ disposal group heid for sale 12,188 -
Liabilities of 3 disposal group classified as held for sale (8,718) -
2,470 -
Thz Greup's Interest in other DevCo Projects can be summarised as foilows:
Group
| 201 2018
£000 £006
Loans and receivables bought forward 1,280 -
Additions - net of abort costs 251 1290
f subsidiary undertaking® {2,583): -
Loans and receivables carried forvard 1,208 1.280
ring he Limied,
conssidation of those entitlos.
The Group's total eposure to DevCo Projects is:
Groun
2010 2010
€000 £000
Net assets and liabilities of a disposal group held for sale 2470 -
Loans and receivables 1,208 1,280
3678 1,290

During the year the Group acquired and disposed of HC ESS4 Limited, with net proceeds of £2,260,000 due, realising a galn on disposat of £2,369,000.
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15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
Gompany
2019 2008
€000 £000
Subsidiary undertakings )
At1danuary 78,872 18,265
Additions - 61,607
At 31 December 78,872 79.872
The subsidiary undertakings of Gresham House pic are as follows:
Hatd by
Heldby othorGroup
Company  companies
% % _Countryo!
Acqceo Store Limited - 109 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Aitchesse Limited - 100 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Chartermet Limited - 95 5MNew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, Englend
Oeacon Commercial Development and Finance Limited - 100 S Hew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Deacon Knowsley Limited - 86 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
FIM Energy Limites - 100 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
FIM Forest Funds Genera! Partner Limited - 100 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
FiM initiat Partner Limited - 100 & New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
FIM Solar Distributicn Designated Member t Limited - 100§ New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, Englana
FIM Solar Distributicn Designated Member 2 Limited - 100 5Hew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
FIM Services Limited - 100 5tew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
FIM Timberland General Partner Limited - 100 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
FIM Windfarms General Partner 2 Limited - 100 5New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
FIM Windtarms General Partner 3 Limited - 100 5Mew Sireet Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
FIM Windfarms{SC) Generai Partner Limited - 100 15 Athli Crescent, Eginburgh, EH3 8HA, Scotland
Gresham House Asset Management Limited - 100 5 New Street Squars, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Capital Partners Limited - 100 5 Mew Street Squars, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Devco Limited - 100 5New Street Square. London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House EIS Limited - 100 5Mew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Energy Storage Limited - 100 5NMNew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Finance Limited - 100 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham Kouse Forestry Limited - 100  Riverview House, Friarton Road, Perth, PH2 BDF, Scotland
Gresham House Forestry Friends and Family LP N4 - Riverview House, Friarton Road, Perth, PH2 80F, Scotland
Gresham House(General Partner) Limited - 100 Riverview House, Friarton Road, Perth, PH2 80F, Scotland
Gresham House GP LLP - 100 Riverview House, Friarton Road, Perth, PH2 80F, Scotland
Gresham House Holdings Limited 10 - 5New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Housirng Limited - 100 5New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Infrastructure Limited - 100 5New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Investment Mznagement Limited - 100 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Investment Management (Guernsey) Limited - 100 Dorey Court, Admiral Park, St Peter Port, GY12HT, Guernsey
Gresham House Investors Limited - 109 5 Mew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House New Energy Limited - 100 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresharm House (Mominees) Limited - 160 5MNew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Private Cagitai Solutions Limited - 100 5Mew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Private Equity Limited - 100 5New Street Square, London EC4A ITW, England

House pl 9 ']
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Hotd by

Heldby  other Group

Company  companies
%

% _Country of Incorporation ond reglstered offica
Gresham Heuse Private Wealth Limited - 100§ Mew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Real Assets Limited - 100 & Mew Street Square, London EC4AITW, England
Gresham House Renewable Infrastructure Limited - 100 5New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Company Secretarial i Limited - 100 &New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Company Secretarial 2 Limited - 100 & New Street Square, London EC4A ITW, England
Gresham House Services Limited - 100 & New Street Square. London EC4A 3TW. England
Gresham House Smaller Companies Limited - 100 5New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House SPE Limited - 100 & Neuw Street Square, London EC4A ITW, England
Gresham: House Special Situations Limited - 100 5New Street Square, Lenden EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House Yalue Limited - 100 §New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Gresham House YCT Limited - 100 5New Street Square. London EC4A 3TW, England
HC ESS5 Limited - &7 Octagon Point, 5 Cheapside, London EC2V BAA, England

HC ESS7 Limited - &7 Octagon Paint, 5 Cheapside, London EC2V BAA, Englang
Knavesley Industriat Property Limited - 100 5New Street Square. London EC4A 3TW, England
New Capital Developments Limited - 95 5New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
New Capital Holdings Limited - 95 5 New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Newton Estate Limited - 100 5 New Sireet Square, London EC4A 3TW, Engiand
Security Change Limited - 100 SNew Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England
Wolden Estates Limiled - 100 S New Street Square, London EC4A 3TW, England

18 INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Groun

208 2018

€000 £000

Dpening Investment in associates 10,188 6,462
Adgitions 65 2228
‘Share of associates’ profit 248 1718
Oividends received from asscciates {1,323) (2nj
Closing investment in associales 8,186 10,158

The above balance consists of the Group's holdings in Gresham House Strategic pic(GHS), Moriker Power Limited (Noriker) and Biggerbrook Limited
(Biggerbrook).

The Board believe that Gresham House pic eercises significant influence over GHS, but not control, through its 22.8% equity investment as weli as
thg investment management egreement between GHAM and GHS.

The latest published financial infermation of GHS was the unaudited interim results for the six months to 30 September 2018. The assets and liabilities.
al that date are shown below:

[.-—----IHIT 2018
£000 £000
Non-current assets 39,128 32,938
Current assets 5,520 14036
Current fisbilities (155} (2,080}
Net asseis 44,493 44882
The GH i ited stat income noted realised lised gains fi d on

t of P il
Investments at fair value through profit and less of £374,000 and revenues of £489,000 for the six months ended 30 September 20i9.
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18 IN
The registered office of GHS is 77 Kingsway, London, WC2B 8SP.

The Board believe that Gresham House plc exercises significant influence cver Noriker, but not control, through its 28.0% equity investment.

The registered of fice of Noriker is Railway House, Bruton Way, Gloucester, GL1 106

The Board believe that Gresham House pic exercises significant influence cver Biggerbrook, but not control, through its 21.8% equity investment.

The registered office of Biggerbrook is Octagon Peint, 5 Cheapside, London, EC2Y 6AA.

17 TRADERECEIVABLES

Group Company
[ 2019 2018 2010
£000 £000 €000

20
£008

Amounts receivable within one year:
Trade receivables 5,334 2,528 -
Less allowance for credit lcsses - - -

5.334 2,828 - -
Asat 31 December 2018, trade receivables of £82,000(2018: £61,000)were past due but not impaired. The ageing analysls of these trade receivables
is as follows:
roup Company

2018 2018 2010 201
£oop £000 €000 €000
1-3 months 53 26 §. - -
3-8 months 10 8 - -
More than 6 months 19 29 - -
82 | o ] - -

As at 31 December 2019 there were isit inst [rade ivabies {2018: £nil).

The expected credit losses are estimated using a provisicn matrix by reference to past default experience and an analysis of the debtor’s current
financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific o the debtor, general i conditions of the industry a of both the

current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. The Group has therefore not recognised a loss allowance because
historical experience has indicaled that the risk profile of trade raceivables is deemed fow.

Group balances are not deemed to be impaired and whi credit fosses fult of these balances is expected.
18 ACCRUED INCOME AND PREPAID EXPENSES

Groun Company
200 201 200 208
£000 00y €000 €006
Acerued income: 3,880 2,079 - -
Other debtors 2,582 - - -
Prepaid e<penses 758 534 159 26
] 7.200 261 | 150 0 %
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts owed by Group undertakings - - 2,780 2
Loan Recei i j Note 1) 1208 1.290 1,208 1200
Corporation tex 22 18i - -
1420 V4TH 3,988 151
20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company
2013 208 20m8
E000 £900 £000
Trade creditors 489 1212 - -
IF2S 16 lease creditor 321 - 263 -
Other creditors 1228 560 23 W
Accruals 7730 2313 w 138
Corporation tax payable 801 - - -
Contingent consideration (Note 26) 4,661 - - -
5210 4.085 283 | 152
21 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
Group Company
2018 2016 209 ] ki
£000 £000 £000 £000
Bankloans in current liabilities [Note 23) - 2,000 l - 2,000
Amounts owed to Group tndertakings - - 5,986 5365
-1 20001 ss8s 2,365
22  DEFERRED TAXATION
Under i i 12(Income Tares)provislon is made for the deferred tax iabillty asscciated with f

contracts recognised as part of the 100% i f FIM. This ¢
and year end, with th theing
deferred tax liabiiity was £2,632,000(2018: £2,944,060).

at 17% of the fair value of the management
inthe Income statement. As at 31 December 2019 the

the managemef

ontracts at

The Group has recognised & deferred tax asset of £613,000{2018: £nil)in refation between th il ints of assets and liabl
inthe fi i and thg i i

]
taicbases used in the computation of texable profit and is accounted for using the statement of
financial position liabifity method. The Company has recognised £276,000(2018: £nilin respect of these differences.

23 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

Group Company

201 208 20

£000 £000 £000 £000

Bank loans - 7840 - 7840
- 7,840 - 7.840

Gn 8 November 201€, the Company signed a £10.0 millicn banking facifities agreement with Banco Santander SA {the facilities). The facilities were
secured with fived and floating charges over the Company’s assets, cross guarantees provided by Gresham House Asset Management Limited,
CGresham House Holdings Limited, Gresham House Forestry Limited and FIM Services Limited.

Z

The facilities consisted of a £6.0 million three-year term loan along with a £4.0 milfion three-year revolving credit facility. Both faci
full and cancelled on 17 July 2078.

e were repaid in

The interest payable on the facilities was LIBOR pius 3.26%.
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24  NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES - OTHER CREDITORS

Graup Company

2009 2010 2018 2018

£000 E£000 £000 £000
Contingent consideration 5,848 8447 - -
IFRS 16 lease creditor 124 - - -

5,873 B.447 - -
Contingent consideration
FIM
The inger i ion payable to the f FIM is based on the combined F y divi revenue of between £13.0 million
and E14.0 million over the two years from acquisition on 22 May 2018. M i i ion will be payable belovs £13.0 miilion, a sliding scale

from £13.0 million to £14.0 miliion to receive from zero to £4.0 million,

A further contingent consideration is payable should the combined divisions deliver revenues of greater than £18.0 million over the same two-year
period, above which 33% will be payable to the sellers. The estimated fair value of the further contingent consideration is £1.0 miltion(2018: Enill.
Dbased tual 1o date pected earnings in the remaining pericd to 20 May 2020.

As at 31 December 2019 it was estimated that the fair value of the contii i il be £4.7 milli applying a discount of 11% for the
time value of money and the inherent risk associated with the forestry management contracts.

Livingbridge VC
The Livingbridge VC conting ideration hasb ined in two parts.

The first being that the YCT Boards do not give notice to GHAM within two years of the acquisition. Shoutd this be the case, then a payment of

£5.0 million will be made to the sellers of Li ridge VC. There indications to date that notice will be given, so this has been assumed to be
true and the fair value payable discounted back to 31 December 2013 at a rate of 15%. The 15% rate refiects the weighted average cost of capital for
the Group, with a risk premium added to reflect the nature of the underlying equity-based cont f the Livingbridge YC business.

‘The second part of the contingent consideration being the hurdie to deliver revenues from the Livingbridge VC business of between £36.9 million
and £37.2 million in the three years to 31 December 2021, The mavimum amount payable on achieving the £37.2 million hurdie is £2.5 million and the
minimum payable is zero if the £30.9 million hurdle is not achieved. The fair value has been based on a weighted probability of outcomes over the
three-year period and discounted by 15% as per zbove.

The fair value of the contingent consideration payable to the Livingbridge YC seliers as at 31 December 2019 was £5.8 million.
25 SHARECAPITAL
i 2008 208
€000 £000

1 essel 628

Allotted: Ordinary - 27,824,222(2018: 24,872,613} fully paid shares of 26 pence each

During the year the Company issued the following nevs ordinary shares:

5 107,225 shares on 27 March 2019t a price of 445,33 pence per share d jer the Compenys
matching plan;

= 1,309,598 shares on 30 June 2013 at a price of 488 pence per share to Aberdeen Standard Investments:
- 31604 shares on 20 August 2019 at a price of £22.5 pence per share under tha 2018 long term incentive plan: and

- Additionally, 1,503,182 shareholder and supporter warrants were exercised during the year at a price of 323.27 pence.
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26 SHARE WARRANTS

20m 02
‘Sharahotder Supporter Total | Snareholder Supporier ws Totat

Group warrants warrents warrants. viarianis vaanenis warrants wairents

Balance as at 1January 874,485 769,000 1,843,485 107,812 850,000 809,90 2,831,720

‘Warrants exercised during the year (734,182) (769,000} (1503182} (157,327} (81,000)  {809,308) (1.188,235)

Warrants lapsed during the year (83,840) - 83,940): - - - -

Asat 31 December 1 56363 - 56,363 | 874,485 758,000 - 1643485

Shareholder warrants

On1December 2014, the Company issuad 1,073,904 Warrants to ing at the cl f busi 28 November

2014 on a 1:5 basis, such warrants having been admitced to trading on AIM. freely atanytime

between | January 2015 and 31 December 2019 at an exercise price of 323.27 pence per ordinary share and are subject to the terms of the shareholder
warrant instrument dated 7 October 2014, Shareholder warrants not exercised by 3i December 2019 lapsed.

Supporter warrants

Gn1December 2014, the Company Issued 850,000 supporter warrants (o the naw Directors and certain members of the lnvestment Cormittee and
Advisory Group at a price of 7.5 pence per warrant. Supporier warrants have the same warrants save that (i) they are
not freety being 1o certain family members, lrusts or companies connected with the relevant
warrant holder)and accordingly not quoted on Al (ii) are not exercisable untii | December 2015; and (iif) are subject to the terms of the supporter
warrent instrument dated 7 October 2014. All Supporter warrants were exercised in 2018.

LMS warrants

0On 14 October 2016, the Company issued 09,508 LMS warrants to LMS Capital plc(LMS). The Li1S warrants entitle LMS to exercise one LIS warrant
for one ordinary share in the Company from 14 October 2016 to 30 June 2018 at an exercise price of 323.27 pence per ordinary share. LMS paid a
vaarrant purchase price of 28 pence per LMS warrant, totalling £255,000. The LMS wa not e of the Board of the
Company hast iged end were issued in ith the L arrant i dated 14 October 2016,

During the year, 734,182 shareholder warrants and 769,000 Supporter warrants wer

new ordinary (2018: 17327 jarrants, 81,000 supporter d 909,908 Lt 1s). Notice
wastant holders by 31 December 2018 for 56,363 shareholder warrants, of v/hich 55,302 have b ised, with th
erastants 10 be swercised shortly, The remaining 83,910 shareholder warrants fapsed on 31 December 2019,

fing |n the Issue of 1.503.182
Y

27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
2016 Long term incentive plan
Fottoving approvai from shareholders at the General Meeting of the Company on 20 November 2015, the Directors implemented a long term incentive

plan(2016 LTIP}to incentivise the teamas align their interests with those of shareholders on 28 July 2016 through enhancing
shareholder value.
Forthe £ the 2016 LTIP, s or value' is betwaen the market capitalisation of the Company at the po ime that any

assessment is made and the sum of:

(i} The market capitalisation of the Company a)at | December 2014 for first awards made to management who joined the Company before
30 September 20i5{old joiners)and b)at the date of award in all other cases{new joiners) and

{i}  Theaggregate value(at the subscription price}of all ordinery shares issued thereafter and up to the point in lime that any assessment is made,

in each case adjusted for dividends and capital returns. d/or issue of
The iari the 2018 LTIP. willin egate be entitled o an tof upto 20.0% of i i d over the exercise pencd
subject to performance criteria set out below. Individual participation in the il d will b ined by the

Comnittee.

There will be certain hurdles the Company's share price has to achieve befors an sward vests.

in the event that the Company achis 1 ig- i ice equal to growth at 7% per annum for a pericd of i0
copsecutive dealing days in the period after 1 December 2018 ror first awards to management who joined the Company before 30 September 2015 and
from the second anniversary of the date of award in all other cases, 50% of the award wiil vest.

In the event that the share price of the Company outperforms the FTSE All Share Index in the period after  December 2016, and from the second
anniversary of the date of the award in ali other cases, 50% of the award shall vest.
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27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)
Each avsard vill require a minimum term of of three
Companys discretion.

#ili be mage to current management and new joiners at the

IFRS 2: Share-Based Payments sets out the criteria for an equity-settled share-based payment, which has market performance conditions. The 2016
LTIP meets these criteria and should therefore be recognised at award as fair value and amortised over the vesting period of o years. There isno
amount payable by the beneficiaries on exercise. The lable below details the number of shares issued In the year:

201

lﬁ Shoros AShares Totol

oldjolners _nowlotnara BSharos C Shares oShares Lmip

Balance as et | January 808 82 208 104 - 1312

Issued in the year - - - - 180 180
Evercised during the year (38) (48) - d - {84},
As at 31 Becember 870 48 208 104 180 1,408 !
Exercisable at year end 870 48 208 104 - 1228 |
Honths to vesting - - - - 2% {

208

AShares Ashares Tota!

oldjoiners___nswrjoiners BShares Csnares LP

Balance as at 1January soe 82 208 - 1.208

Issued in the year - - - 104 104

As a1 31 December 908 92 208 104 132

Exercisable at year end 908 92 - = 1.000

Months to vesting - - 8 2

84 A Shares were exercised during the year and at the Company's discretion were settled in cash. The difference between the fair valug recognised
over the vesting period and the fair value at the date of exercise was recognised in retained reserves.

Falr value

The fair value of the award at the date of the award has been determined using an expected returns model, which is based on a number of scenarios
and probabilities of the Company’s performance for the period when the awards may be exercised. The assumptions i the model have estimated
the sharenolder value created and applied msnoums for fiquidity ana likelihood 0( exercise by participants. The weighted average valuation of the
Company has been used to calculate the exp ted 6 value of the plan. For the D shares issued during
the year the fair value of the plan at award wes £100,765(£559.81 per share), which will be amertised over the two-year vesting period.

2018 Long term incentive plan

The Committs i i anewlong term ir in 2018{2018 LTiP). The 2016 L TIP became
exercisable during 2018 and as such the Remuneration Committee introduced the 2018 LTIP to align the g team and vider

the business for the next three years with shareholders.

The 2018 LTIP is a deferred share award, which vests in three years from the date of award subject to management remaining employed by the
Compary as at the vesting date. There is no staggered vesting period, vesting is at the end date in three years'time.

During the year ended 3i December 2018, 488,174 deferred shares were awarded under the 2013 LTIP 10 the management team and employees, vitha
fair value at award of £2.1million.

Ouring the year ended 31 December 2019, §8,353 ordinary shares were issued under the 2018 LTIP wilh a fair value al exercise of £0.4 milfion,

Gresham House ple g 7
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27  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINVED)
2018 Long term Incentive plan
The ion Ce i

new long term i it n 20192019 LTIP).

Urder the 2018 LTIP, 274,728 deferred shares were awarded to the management team., with a fair value at award of £1.5 million. These awards vest
inzhree years from the date of award subject to management remaining employad by the Company as &t the vesting date and achievement of
ditions. There is jgered vesting period, vesting is at the end date in three yaars' time.

Inhe event that the Company achi average mi closing price equal lo compound gro:vth at 7% per annum over the three year period
frcm award, or the growth in Adjusted Eamings Per Share h h of 7% per annum or more, 50% of the award will vest.

ir the event that the share price of the Company outperforms the FTSE All Share Index from the third anniversary of the date of the award in ail other
cases, 50% of the award wil vest.

The fair value of the 2019 LTiP was measured as the share price at the date of award. The impact of the volatility in the share price has been deemed
10 & immaterial.

208LTIP 20011 Totel
Batance as at 31 December 2017 - - -
Issued in the year 488,174 - 488,174
Baiance as at 31 December 2018 488,174 - 488,174
issued in the year - 274,728 274.728
Exzrcised in the year (89.353) - (59,353}
Balance as at 31 December 2019 428.821 274,728 703549
year end - - -
9y team long term incentive pt
Tha Renevabile Energy management team, which joined as part of the acquisition of the asset b f Haze! Capitai LLP, has a

lorg termincsntive plan in ptace, which granted the team a total of 1,000 A Shares in Gresham House New Energy Limited on 31 October 2017. The
vesting date of the A Shares is 31 December 2020, at which point the holders are entitied to receive either Gresham House plc shares, or cash at the
Company's discretion in exchange for their A Shares. Under the guidance in IFRS 2:41, it has been considered that the A Share settlement should be
treated as an equw’l‘rsettlea‘ instrument,

Tha value of the A Shares at vesting is based on & calculation. which is based on the average profit: ated by the New Energy divisicn between
3t October 2017 and 31 December 2020,

The fair value of th determis ing pected which is based er of i ; the
Nes: Energy divisions performance for the period from 31 October 2017 to 31 December 2020. The assumptions in the model have estimated the
average profits over the pericd and applied discounts for liquidity and controi and consequently the value of the A Shares. The fair vaiue of the A
Shares at award vias E276,00G{£276 per share), which will be amortised over the three-year and two-month vesting pariod.

Livingbridge VC Long term Incentive plan
The Livingbridge VG long term incentive plan is an equity settled incentive scheme. The recipients of the scheme will receive up to £2.5 million
inzggregate in Gresham House plc shares based on the three-year period 1o 31 December 2021, There s a hurdle to dsliver revenues from the
Livingbridge VC business of between £30.9 million and £37.2 million in the three years Lo 31 December 2021, The maximum amount payadie on
schievingthe £37.2 milion hurdie is £2.5 milion and the minimur payabe is zero if the £30.8 million hurdie is not achieved.

Bonus share matching ptan
The Company i in 2016 a share matching plan linked to the discretionary an
to invest in the tong term grovith of the Company.

Subject to ion Ct ittee approval, and titled to a y be il not i deferand
reinvest up to 100% of their annual bonus into ordinary shares which will be released to them after three years togather with any additional matching
shares subject to performance criteria set out betow. In 2013 the icn Committes approved the rei of up t0 50% of annual
bonuses into ordinary shares by management ang employees(2018: 100%).
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27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

i the event that the Company achieves a mig-market closing price equal to 7% per annum compound growth from the dale of deferral, the
participants will receive 50% of the matching shares benefit. In the event that the Company’s share price outperforms the FTSE All Share Index from
the date of deferral, the participants willrecelve 50% of the matching shares.

Shares will be awarded in the ratio one share for each share invested. In the event that this performance condition is not met, the participants will
receive only the ordinary shares acquired with the deferred bonus.

The bonus shares [o be awarded after the three-year period and subject to performance conditions have been fair valued using a Monte Carlo
simulation. The key variables include the risk-free rate of 8.32% and votatility of the Company share price of 16%. The fair value of the matching
shares relating 1o the 2018 bonuses is £50,325(£0.98 per shere)and will be amortised over the three-year vesting period.

Save as you earn (SAYE) scheme

in 2018 the Remuneration Committee approved a SAYE scheme for the benefit of all employees of the Group whereby employees can save up to
£500 per month over a three-year period. At the end of the three-year period the have an option 1o purchase Company atthe
agreed exercise price or receive their savings in cash, The exercise price for the 2012 scheme is 373 pence (2018: 325 pence). A maximum of 106,266
shares are under option for the 2018 SAYE scheme and a maximum of 68,707 shares are under optior: for the 2018 SAYE scheme.

28 RESERVES
2018 208
Shore Shore Share. Share
premium warrant Ratolned premium warrant Ratalned
‘account roservo’  roserves account reserve reserves
£000 £000 £000 £080
Group
Balance as at 1 January 57,901 58 15.038 9,649 319 15,268
for changesin ing policy(Note 7) - - s - - -
Loss and total comprehensive income .- - (850) - - (699)
Transfer of non-cantrolling interest deficit - - - - - 3
Issue of shares nisz (58) -1 weas2 (261} -
Share-based payments 189 - 642 - - 454
Dividends paid - - (785) - - -
As at 31 December 89,242 - 14,038 57,901 58 15,036
2019 2018
Shara Share Srare. Share
promium warront Retalnod premium wairant Retalned
account resorve raseorvos account resersn reservos
E£000 £000 £'000 E000 £000 £000
Company
Batance as at 1January 57,901 58 13384 9,649 319 15,468
i for changesin y(Note 7) - - [ - - -
Loss and total comprehensive income - - (226) - - (2,075}
issue of shares N34 (58) -l w2 (261) -
Dividends paid - - (785} - - -
hsat 31 December 89,242 - 12,378 57.901 58 13,394
wnreanmiiciomezrs 99



Notes to the Accounts (continued)

28 RESERVES{CONTINUED)

2018 2018
£000 £000
Non-controfling interests:
Balance 2s at tJanuary 527 47
Interest in trading result for the year (4)) -
Interestin investments - securilies 59 53
Transfer deficit balance - 3)
582 527
The following describes the naiure and purpase of each reserve within equity: N
Raservo 50
Share premiumaccount  Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value.
Share warrant reserve Share vhich been received but which are not exercised yet.
Retained earnings All other net gains and losses and ith 4. divids i isgwhe
29 NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
2008 208
Basic
£quity attributable to holders of the parent (£060) 1 80,237 8213
Number of ordinary shares in issue at the end of the perlog 27,824,222 | 24,872,613
Basic net asset value per share{pence) 3243 3185
sl 200
Dituted
Equity attribulable to holders of the parent (£000) 80,237 79.213
Ad usted number of ordinary shares in issue at the end of the period 31.315.083 | 27.306,858
Difuted net asset value per share (pence) 28821 2931

Dituted net asset value per share is based on the number of shares in issue ai the year end together with 3,491,505 shares Geemed to have been
issued al nil considerati result of and supporter hares which could be issued under the bonus share maiching plan
andongterm ncentive plans.

£000
Th2 movement during the year of the assets attributable ¢ ordinary shares were as follows:

Total net assets attributable at 1 January 2018 79,23

Ad ustments for changes in accounting policy (Note 7} 6

Total recognised fosses for the year (850)
Share-based payments 839

Issue of shares 824

Dividends paid (785)
Tolal net assets attributable at 31 Dscember 2619 26,237
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30 RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO OPERATING CASH FLOWS

Groun Compary
2018 2018 2079 2018

000 £000 ‘€000 £000

Net operaling loss after exceptional ltems (2,058) (2,183} {974) (1791}
Profit from discontinued operations 55 u - -
Movement in fair value of investment property - 1 - -
Interest payable 21 3% n 35
Depreciation 818 138 685 32
LossAprafit)an disposal of tangible fixed assets 43 (23) 36 -
Amortisation 7.668 2,788 s 68
Share-based payments, 1.844 464 - -
8,581 1,261 8 (1,856)

! i i i 78 {78) 78 (78)
(increase)decrease in current assets (4,638) (.227) (133) 183
increase in current liabilities 5,815 1,285 92 92
2,648 1258 nel (40l

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group consists of the Company and subsidiary undertakings whose principal activities are asset management and forestry management.

The Group's financial i which are held in veith the Broup’s objecti d policies, comprise:

(i) securities consisting of listed and unlisted equity sheres

(i) asecondary portfotio of listed and unfisted fived income securities

(i} cash, liquid rescurces and short-term debtors and creditors that arise directly from it i tivii
(iv}  short-term and tang-term borrowings

Asat 31 December 2019 the following categories of financiat instruments viere held by:

Group
2019 200
N Assots Aszels
attalrvaluo at e valus
“Amortisod  throughprotit | Loansand  throughprofit
cost orloss | recelables or!

£000 £020 £000 £000

Financial assets per o i
Investments - securities 1815 8,814 1613 6,51
Trade and olher receivables - current and non-current 5,334 - 2,628 1033
Accrued income B.442 - 2206 -
Cash and cash equivalents 18,432 - 13,958 -
[ aom |l 20605 7844
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Notes to the Accounts (continued)

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONTINUED} 31 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
2008 Market price risk arises from uncertainty about the future prices of financial instruments held within the Group's portfolio. it represents the potential
Lsblitios loss that the Group might suffer through holding market positions in the face of market Their inequity and ficed int
Giher at falr value stocks of unquoted companles are not traded and as such the prices in than those of iidely trad ities.
financlal  theough profit
e i Unquoted investments are valued as per accounting policy(jiin these financial statements. Reqular reviews of the financial results, combined with
of close contect with the of thesei id ient i ion to support these valuations.
Trade and other payables - short-term* 10,549 4,661 4085 - Credit risk
Bankoans - short and long-term - - 9.840 - Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will {ail to discharge an obligaticn or commitment that it has entered into with the Group.
Other cregitors - long-term 124 6,849 - 8,447 i .
The Group's masimum exposure to credit risk is:
10,673 w50l 13925 8.447
208 2018
- . £ and is ine! withis £000 £000
£908.000(2018: £389,000) of PAYE and VAT payable is included within trade and other payables. L €000
Loanstock investments 1,815 1613
Company Deferred receivable - short and fong-term - 1033
209 1 Trsde and other receivables - short-term . 5334 2,628
‘Assot hssets .
ot P Accrued income 8,442 2,206
Amortised  through protit Losnsand  through profit Cash and cash equi 19,431 13.958
cost. orioss receivabies orloss.
£000° £000 £X 33322 21438
Financlal assets per Statement of Financlal Position
! . itie: 1015 8843 1513 W57 The Group has an exposure to credii risk in respect of both loan stock investments and other loans, most of which have no security attached to them,
nvesiments - securities g et 0 o or where they 6o, such security will rank after any bank debt. The Company’s exposure to credit risk i< restricted to investments, cash and cash
Acerued income 37 - 104 - equivalents, other loans, amounts owed by Group undertakings and accrued income totaliing £6,795,000{2018: £8,086,000).
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 2780 - 221 -
. e i i S vi s default the Group deposits its &
Cash and cash equivalents 1840 - 618 N Cash and cash equivalents consist of cashin hand and balances with banks. To reduce the fisk of party he Group ts surplus
funds in approved high-quality banks.
6.872 6,843 | 8.086 4,847
The following table shows the ity of the loan stock i and other loans referred to above:
2019 2018 - 2018 2008
Lisblitios Liabiies £000
Other ot falr valuo Other at fair value ! Kl
financial  through profit financial  through profit Loan stock investments
Habilties: orioss Jibillies orloss Repayable within: - 1year 1648 1,280
£000 E£000 £003 £000
-2 years 267 -
Financlal liablilitles per Statement of Financtal Position
~ 2-3years - 287
Trade and other payables - short-term 40 - 152 -
X 3-4years - %
Trads and other payables - long-term 243 - - -
4-5years - -
Other ioans ~ short and iong-term 5,986 - 5365 -
1915 1613
Bank foans - short and long-term: - - 9,840 -
5288 - 15,357 - As at 31 December 2019 foan stock investments totalling £858,000(2018: £810.000) were impaired and provided for.
The carrying value of loans and . A other i o gl  materiaily different to their fair values. The Groug's activities epose As at 31 December 2018 other loans totalling £54.000 (2018: £54,000)vere impaired and provided for.
it 1o various types of risk that iated with the ial markets in which it invests. The main risks to which the Group is There ially a risk whereby fails to defiver securities which the Company has paid for of pay for securities which the Company
evposed are market price risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and fiquidity risk. The nature and evtent of the financial instruments outstanding at the has detivered. This risk is considered to be small as where the transaction is in respect of quoted i the Company itha
Staiement of Financial Position date and the risk management policies employed by the Group are summarised belovs. high credit quality and where the lransaction is in respect of unguoted s these are icil to ensure that payment
. matches delivery.
Market price risk
Market price riskis the risk that changes in market prices will adversely affect the Grougis income du to a decline in the undertying vaiue of assets Interest rate risk . o .
under management, resulting in lower fees. The Grobp' fired and floating interest rate securities, Its equlty. reference equity and loans and net revenu may be affected by
interest rate in smali relatively high-risk hare sensitive to interest rate fluctuations.
The objective of market price risk management is to manage and control market price exposure, while optimising the return on risk. The Group The Group's assets include fixed and floating rate interest instruments as detaited belove. The Group is exposed to interest rate movements onits
manage qic equity funds. F t fees are not linked directly to market prices. floating rate iabilities.
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Notes to the Accounts(continued)

31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The interest rate exposure protile of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 2018 were:

Non-interost-
bearing
assets/ Fixed  Flontingrate Fixedrate  Floating rate
ilabilities rote ossets assets Hablilties Nabilities. Net total
£000 £000 - £000 £000 £000 £000
Group .
Asat 31 December 2019
Investments - securities 8,814 1815 - - - 10,828
Cash - - 18,432 - - 19,432
Trade and other receivables 5,334 - - - - 5,334
Accrued income 8,442 - - - - B, 442
Craditors
- fatling due within 1year {10,228) - - (321) - {10,549}
~falling due after i year - - - {124) - (124)
1 w482 1915 19,432 {445) - 31,364 |
Non-interest-
bearing
assets/ Flred  Floatingrate Fioating rete
Habilities rale assets assets Net totet
£000 £000 £000 £000 £008 £000
Asat 31 December 2018
Investments - securities 6.51 1813 - - - 8124
Cash - - 13,858 - - 13,958
Trade and other receivables 2,628 - - - - 2,628
Accrued income 2,206 - - - - 2,206
Craditors
- falling due within 1 ysar {4.083) - - 2) (2,000) (6,085)
- falling due after year - - - - (7.840) {7.840)
7.282 1,13 13,958 (2) {9,840} 12,891

Nen-interest-bearing assets comprise the portf

o of ardinary shares, dealing securities and non

terest-bearing loans.

Firec rate assels comprise fived rate loans, ursecured loans and loans repayable on demand, with a weighted average interest rate of 12.3%(2018: 12.6%)

Floating rate assets and floating rate lis

Fixed rate liabilities include hire purchase contracts and lease craditors.

The Group is not materially exposed to currency risk as its assets and liabilities are substantially denominated in sterling.

The interest rate exposure profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities as at 31 Gecember 2018 and 2018 were:

ty loans are subject to interest rates which are based on LIBOR and bank base rates.

Non-intersst-
bearing
assets/ Fixed rate Floating rate Flxed rate Flosting rate
Habifitles ass0ts asgots Iobil Rabllitles Net totat
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 €000
Campany
Asat 31 December 2019 '
Investments - securities 6,843 1,915 - - - 8,758
Cash - - 1,840 - - 1,940
Acsrued income 37 - - - - 37
Owed by Group undertakings " 2780 - - - - 2,780
Creditors
- falling due within | year (40) - - (243) - (283)
- falling due after 1 year - - - - (5,886) (5.886)
| 9820 191 1840 (243)  (5,886) 7,246 1
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fledrate Floating rete Ficad rate Floating rate
Bssets assets lizbiities Hisvllities Nat total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
As at 31 December 2018
investments - securities 4,847 1613 - - - 6.260
Cash - - 6,148 - - 6,148
Accrued income 104 - - - - 104
Owed by Group undertekings 22i - - - - yval
Creditors
~ falling due within 1year {152) - - - (2,000} {2,152}
- falling due after 1 year - - - - {7,840} {7,840}
4,820 1,613 6,148 - {5,840) 2,74

Although the Company holds investments that pay interest, the Board does not consider it appropriate to assess the impact of interest rate changes
upon the value of the invesiment portfolio as interest rate changes are only one factor affecting market price and the impact is likely to be immaterial.
The Group no tonger has bank borrowings so the sensitivity of interest payable to changes in interest rates is no longer applicable.

Liquidity risk

The investments in equity investments in NEX £xchange traded companies may be difficult to realise at their carrying value, particularly if the
investment represents a significant holding in the investee company. Similarly, investments in equity and fixed interest stocks of unquoted
companies that the Company holds are only traded infrequently. They are not readily realisable and may not be realised &t their carrying value where
there are no wiliing purchasers.

The Group aims to hold sufficient cash to fu
entities compiied v

its requirements withrespect to regulatory capital. Buring the year the Group and its subsidiary
h all regulatory capital requirements.

The table belovs analyses the Group's financial liabitities into refevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the Statement of Financial
Position date to the expected maturity date. The amounts disciosed in the tabie are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

Batwaen Betwasn
Less than 1and 2and
Tyear 2years Sysers
£000 £000 £000

As at 31 December 2019
Leases 323 69 72
Trade payables 489 - -
Accruals 7730 - -
Contingent consi 5,000 5,000 2,032
Other creditors 2,029 - -

I 15581 5,089 2,04 |
Between Between
Lessthan tond 2 2and6
1year years years
£000 £000 €008
As at 31 December 2018
Bank borrowings 2,42 2,301 6.202
Trade payables 1212 - -
Accruals 2,31 - -
Contingent consideration - - 11,032
Other creditors 560 - -
6,506 2.301 17,234
Gresham House ple.
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31 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Capltat risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure thal entities within the Group and the Company will be able to trade inas y fashion vehil
intaini i returns i

The capita! sty 2 of the Group and Company consist of short g-term i disclosed in Notes 21and 23, cash and cash equivalents

and equity atri to equity f the Company ¢ ising issued share capital, share premium, share v-arrant reserve and retained

reserves as disclosed in Notes 24 to 27. The Board reviews the capital structure of the Group and the Company on a regular basis to ensure it complies.
with all requiatory capital requirements. The financial meastires that are subject to review include cash flov projections and the ability to meet cagital

and cther nd interest covenants, aithough no absotute targets are set for these.
Group Company

209 201 201 2018

£000 €000 £000 £000
Debt . - (9,840) - {9,840}
Cashand cash equivalents 18,432 13,958 1840 6,148
Netassets 80,819 79,740 88,577 en
Net cashdeit) 18,432 4118 1,840 (3.692)
Net cashAidebt)as a % of net assets 214% 52% 2.2% (4.8%)

32 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Vauation Inputs

IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement - requires an entity to classify its financial assets and liabilities held at fair value according to  hierarchy that
reflects the significance of observable market inputs. The ification of these iabilities is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined befow.

Ouoted market prices - Level 1
Firancial if the valuation of hare ined by reference quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active

@ts where the quoted price is , and the price rep tual and regularly occursing marke? transactions on an armis length
basis. An active markel is one in which i i icient vol d frequency Lo provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Vatuation technique using observable inputs - Level 2
Firancial instruments that have been valued using inputs other than quoted prices as described for Level | bul which are observabls for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Valation iq! 9 Inputs - Level 3

Firencial i the valuation of which i significant inputs for the asset or Hability that are not based on observable market dsta
(urabservable inputs). Unobservable inputs are those not reatiily available in an active market due to market iltiquidity or complexity of the product.
These inputs are generally determined based on observable inputs of a simiar nature, historical observations on the level of the input or analytical
techniques. :

Fori insecurities, which includes sarly-stage private equity investments, the significant uncbservable inputs used include cash flow
foracasts and discount rates. Anincreass in the discount rate applied wil the fair value of the “ adecrease inthe rate
wil i the fair value. Ni ignificant unobservable inputs will result in a material impact to profit anc loss or
equity.

The valuation techniques used by the Company for Level 3 financial assets can be found i ing poticy {j)ii

invastment in the unlisted security relates to a single i in the equity of fund. That unfisted fund invests in a arge number of

forastry assets. The forest held at fair vaiue in the underlying fund. Anindependent valuation of the forests within the underlying fund is
performed annuaty by forestry valustion experts by reference 1o comparable market transactions fer each underlying forestry asset that considers
factors including focation, maturity of the forest and size. There is no reasonabie change in the inputs in each of the underlying assets viould give rise
10 a material adjustment to the fair vatue of the investment.

Further details of the securities partiolio can be found in Note 11 of these financial statements.

1 O 6 Gresham House ple
Annual Report and Accaunts 2018

Lo |
Repart Govermancs

32 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS {CONTINUED)
i the G

l Financle) ' Aaditional
Statements information,

aly; d Company's assets measured at fair value by hierarchy is set out below,
S1Docomber
Loval Lovel 3
£000 €000
Group. -
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
Investments - securities.
- Equities 8.91% 8,165 2,749
8,814 8,185 2,749
31Decembor
2018 Lavelt Level3
£000 £000 £000
ancial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
investments - securlties
- Equities 6511 587 1,924
6.51 4,587 1824
3100combor
2018 Lowet! Lovel3
£000 €000 £000
Company
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
Investments - securities
- Equities 8,843 6.165 678
6,843 - 8,165 678
31 December
208 Level! Level3
. £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss:
investments - securkies
- Equities. 4,847 4587 60
4,867 4587 60
Setoutbelowisa itiation of fi ial measured at fair valug based on Level 3.
tnvestments - Trade and other
socuritios  recelvables Total
£000 €000 £000
Group:
31December 2018
Opening balance 1824 1033 2,857
Total gains and{losses)k:
in Statement of Comprehensive Income 339 - 338
Additions 500 - 500
Disposals. (14) (1,033) (1,047}
Closing balance 2,748 - 2749
i the year included in incorne for
assets held at the end of the reporting period 340 - 340
Gresham House ple.

nnyal Report and Aczounts 2013

107



Notes to the Accounts (continued)

32 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED}

Property  lavestmenis - Trao nd cther

ivesiments  securkles  recehables Total
€050 £003 £000

31 December 2018
Opening balance 1936 1724 3,683 7403
Total gains and{lossesk:

In Statement of Comprehensive Income o (3%0) 40 (351
Addgilions - 1,500 - 1.500
Disposals {1.985) (810} {2,700 (5.595)
Ciosing balance . - 1,924 1,033 2,957
Totat gair the year included i ive i e for

assets heid at the end of the reporting period - 202 40 262
Investments -
securitics Tota
€000 €000
Company:

31 December 2019
Opening balance 80 60
Tozal gains and(lossesk

In Statement of Comprenhansive Income B2 B2
Additions 500 500
Bisposals (14) (4)
Closing balance 878 878
Toial gains the year included i ive i for

assets heid at the end of the reporting period 132 132
Ivestments -

securlies Tota!

€000 €000

31December 2018
Gpening batance : 5 4
Tota gains and{losses):

InStaternent of Comprehensive Income (653) (653)
Additions 1090 1.000
Dispesals (332} (332)
Clsing balance 60 60
Tolal gains and(losses) for the year included in comprehensive income for
assets held at the end of the reporting period B 18
The onty fi ial liabil helg at fair gl 10 the di f F114 Services Limited and the acquisition

of the fund and investment management businesses of Livingbridge VC LLP amounting to £10,510,000. This is measured using Level 3 valuation
techniques. There were no such financial liabilities held at fair value vithin the Company.

Price risk sensitivity
Based on values as at 31 December 2019 2 10% movement in the fair vzlues of 100% of the Group's equity investments would be equivalent to a
movement of £891,000n both profit and net assets.

»] O 8 Gresham House ple
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33 RELATEDPARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group

During the year management fees totalling £693,687(2018: £656,882)and performance fees of £1.844,518(2018: Eniljwere invoiced to Gresham House
Strategic plc{GHS), a company in which the Group has 3 22.9% interest. Al the year end £75,783(2018: £64,990)was due from GHS.

During the year management fees totalling £866,627(2018: £867.358)were invoiced to LMS Capital plc (LMS), a company with a significant
shareholding in the Company as disclosed in the Directors' Report. At the year end £nil(2018: £nil) was due from LS.

During Lhe year amounts totalling £nit{2018: £51,297)were invoiced to Corylus Capital LLP{Corylus), an entity in which Ben Guest, head of the New/
Energy strategy, has a material interest. Canversely, the Group was invoiced £85,413(2018: £287,623) by Corylus for office and other costs. At the year
end £nil{2018: Enilwas due from Corylus. Corylus has provided a ioan totalling £3,261,656(2018: £nil}to HC ESSE Limited (ESSE). Interest totaliing
£205.078(20i8: £nil}was charged by Corylus to ESSB.

Company
Ouring the year the Company received loans totalling 2,121,736 from{2018: repaid £2.925,760 1o) Security Change Limited. At the year end £4,684.314
{20i8: £2,562.578) was due to Security Change Limited. No interest wes charged during the year {2078: £nill.

Durlng the year the Company received £nil{2018: Enil) from Gresham House Finance Limited. At the year end £221,406(2018: £221,400] was owed by
Gresham House Finance Limited. No interest was charged during the year(2018: £ni).

During the year the Company advanced £30,073(2016: £nil}i6 Gresha
Gresham House (Nominees) Limited. No interest was charged during the year(2018: £nll).

imited. At the year end £30,079 (2018: £nif}was owed by

During the year the Company repaid loans totaliing £1,500,56110(2018: received £10,458,814 from) Gresham House Holdings Limitad. At the year end
£1.301.528{2018: £2,802,090) was due to Gresham House Holdings Limiled. No interest was charged during the year{2018: £nit).

Buring the year the Company advanced £1,038,140{2018: £nil)to HC ESSE Limited. Interest fotatling £99,388(2018: £nil)was charged during the year.
At the year end £1,138.522(2018: £nil)was owed by HC ESSE Limited.

During the year the Company advanced £1,489,628(2018: Enifito HC ESST Limitad. Interest totalling £207,820(2013: £nillwes charged during the
year. At the year end £1,697.449(2018: £niwas oved by HC ESS7 Limited.

34 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
0n’s March 2620, the Company the acquisition of isks Limited ( isks?) for an nitial
consideration of up t6 £4.0 million payable subject i of certain per criteria,

f £7.0 million, with further

TradeRisks is a fund management business and specialist provider of debt structuring and advisory services to the housing and social infrastructure
sectors, with strong ESG credentials through its social impact ina structurally important area.

i sholly ovmed and sep FCA regulated subsidiary, ReSt Capital » Limited, is the manager of Resi ial Secure Income
ple (ReS! plcHLSE: RESI). a ¢l ended i pany vihi to deliver secure income returns to its shareholders by investing in
portfolios of shared ownership and specialist residential property. ReS! pics shares wers admitted to trading on the main market of the London Stock
Exchange in July 2017, and as at 31 December 2019 had gross AUM of £321 sillion{i g i isiti N&Y of E184 million.

in the year ended 31 July 2019, TradeRisks' reported audit
IFRS accounting policies, which will be applied post-compl:
EBIT of £1.8 million.

profit before tax of £2.2 miilion and gross assets of £8.7 million. When adjusted to reflect
ion, for the year ended 31 July 2012 TradeRisks generated revenues of £5.6 miilion and

wnasomaiiamezs 109



Corporate Information

Company Number

Directors

Secretary

Registered Office

Auditor

Nominated Adviser and Joint Broker

Financial Adviser and Joint Broker

Reglstrars

Sollcitors

87}incorporated in England

Anthony Townsend Non-Executive Chairman
Anthony Datwood Chief Executive Otficer
Kevin Acton Chief Financial Officer
Richard Chaduvick Mon-Ececutive

Simon Stilwelt Non-Executive

Rachel Beagies Non-Executive

Gareth Davies Non-Executive

Samee Khan

5 New Street Square

London EC4A 3TW

BOOLLP

55 Baker Street

Lendon WU 7EU

Canaccord Genuity Limited
88 Wood Street
London EC2V 70R

Jefferies International Limited
85 Upper Thames Street
London EC4V 38J

Neville Registrars Limited
Meville House

Steelpark Road
Halesowen

‘West Miclands B2 8BHD

Eversheds Sutherland!{international) LLP
One Wood Street
London EC2V 7WS

-” Gresham House ple
Bnrus] Repart and Accounts 2019

Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREB GIVEN that the Annual Generai Meating(the "Meetingf)
of Gresham House plc(the Company'vill be held at the offices of
Eversheds Sut ernational) LLP, One London,
EC2Y TS on Friday, 15 May 2020 3t 1.30pm for the purpose of considering
and(if thought fithpassing the Resolutions set out below, of which

1108 mmatte : )

< proposed. y
Sand 10 will be i

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

I Toreceive and adopt the Annual Report and Accounts for the year

ended 31 December 2019 togather with the Directors' Repart and
the Report of the Independent Auditor;

2. Todeclare a final dividend of 4.5 pence per ordinary share for the
year to 31 December 2019, payable on 22 May 2020 to shareholders
wihose names appear on the Register of Members at the close of
business on 8 1ay 2020;

3. Tore-electasa Director, Kevin Acton, who retires in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association and offers himself for
re-election;

4. Tore-elect as a Director, Anthony Townsend, vha retires in

Strategic l I Financial Additionat
Governznce Statements Information

(i} holders of other equity securities, as required by the
rights of those securities or, subject to such rights,
s the Directors of the Company otherwise consider
necessary,

and so that, in each case, the Directors of the Company may
impose any li it d make any
which they consider necessary or appropriate to deal with treasury
shares, fractional entitlements, record dates, legal, requlsiory
or practical problems in, or under the laws of, any territory or any
of the requirements of any regulatary body or stock exchange or
any other matter, and this authority shall take effect on the date
of passing of this Resolulion and shali (unless previously revoked,
newed i ire on the earlier of the ion of the
Company’s next Annual General Mzeting or the date falling 15
months atter the date of passing of this Resolution, save that the
Company may, at any time pricr to the expiry of such authority,
make an offer ar enter into an agreement which would or might
require the allotment of ordinary shares in pursuance of such an
offer or agreement as if such authority had not expired.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
8.

That, subject to the passing of Resofution 8 above and in

with the Company's articles of association and off
himselt for re-election:

5. Toelectasa Director, Garsth Davis, who was appointed as @
Director since the fast Annual Seneral Meeting;

for any existing ities to disapply p P
rights in connection with any allotment of shares or grant of rights
to subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company
for cash, the Directors of the Company be and are empovsered in
accordance with section 570 of the Act to allot equity securities fas
defined in section 580 of the Act)for cash pursuant to the authority

6. Toreappeint BDO LLP as the Cempany's auditor i with
Section 489 of the Companies Act 2006{the "Act’), 1o hold office
from thy ion of the i il the i the next

Annual Seneral Meeting:

7. Toauthorise the Directors to determine the remuneration of the
auditor;

8. That,in substituticn for any existing authorities to afiot shares
or to grant rights to subscribe for or to convert any security into
shares in the Company (but without prejudice to the vaidity of any
afigtment or any agreement to aliot shares entered into pursuant
to such previous authorities), the Directors of the Company be and
erally and it horised in with
section 551 of the Act to exercise ll powers of the Company to:

8. Aliot shares or to grant rights to subscribe for or to convert
BNy security into shares in the Company up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £2,501.033; and

b, Allot equity securities(as defined in section 560 of the Act)p
to an aggregate nominal amount of £5,002,086(such amount
10 be reduced by the nominat amount of any shares atiotted or
hts granted under i fonwith
an offer by way of a rights issue or other pre-emptive of fering
o

() the holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the

Company in {as nearly as. i
respective numbers of ordinary shares held by them;
and

ferred on them in ion 8 above as if section 56W 1) of the
At did not apply to such allotment, provided that this authority
shall be limited to allotmenis of equity securities:

a. inconnection with or pursuant to an offer by way of rights,
open offer or olher pre-emptive offer Lo the holders of shares
in the Company and other persons entitled to participate
therein in proportion{ss nearly as practicable}to their

pecti fings. subject to such i other
9 as the Direct 7 consider or
expedient to deat with fractional antitlements of legal or
practical problems under the laws of any territory or the
regulations or requirements of any regulatory authority or any
stock exchange in any territory; or

4

otherwise than pursuant 1o sub-paragraph (a) above, up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £750,310,

and this 2uthority shall take effect on the date of passing of this
Resolution and shall(unless previously revoked, renewed or varied)
expire on the earfier of the 2nd of the Company’s next Annual
General Meeting or the date falling 15 months after the date of
pascing of this Resolution, save that the Company may, at any time
prior to the expiry of such authority, make an offer or enter into an
agreement which would or might require the allotment of ordinary
shares in pursuance of such an offer or agreement as if such
autherity had not expired;

annual Report and A::::rnn‘:;m!! ] 1 ]



Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

0. Thatin for any ei ke mark
purchases of ordinary shares in the capitat of we Ccmpany(bu(
without prejudice to mc validity of any purchase or any agreement
0 purch: ol tosueh i
the Companyhe and s generaily and unconditicnally authorissd for
the purposes of section 701 of the Act 16 make market purchases
{as defined in section 683(4) of the Act)of ordinary shares in such
nmanner and on such terms as Lthe Directors of the Company may
from time to time determine, and where such shares are held as
treasury shares, tha Company may use them for the purposes set
outin sections 727 or 728 of the Act, including for the purpose of its
employee share schemes, provided that:

5. the maximum number of ordinary shares which may be
purchased is 3,001.240:

b, the minimum purchase price which may be paid for any
ordinzry share is 25 of eyp ) and

. the maximum purchase price which may be paid for any
ordinary share in the cagital of the Company shall not be more
than the higher of lin each case exciusive of expenses):

i five per cent. above the average middie market
quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the AlM
Appendix. to the London Stock Exchange Dally Official
List for the five business days immediately preceding
the day on which the purchase is mage; or

(i} an amount equal to the higher of the price of the last
trade of i hare ard the highest
current independent bid for an ordinary share, as
derivad from the trading venue where the purchase is
carried out,

and this autherity shall take effect on the date of passing of this
Resolution and shall {unless previously revoked, renewed or varied}
expire on the carfier of the conctusion of the Company's nex
Annual General Mesting or the date falling 15 months after the
date of passing of this Resolution, save in relation to purchases of
ordinary shares, the contraci{s)for which were concluded before
the e«piry of this authority and which will or may be executed
wholly or partly after such expiry.

By Order of the Board,

Samee Khan
Chief Legal Officer and Company Secretary

Registered Office:
5 New Street Square
London EC4A3TW

9 Aprit 2020

'] ] 2 “Gresham House plc
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EXPLANATORY NOTES with the latest guidetines issued by Thy
The foliowing notes give a of the proposed upt te nominal value of £2,501.033 of tr
authority is reserved for arights i issue or otherpre-empme offer to
110 8linclusi Ordinary ions. This | ordinary y one third (33.33% ) of
means that for each of those ve:,ululmns to be passed, more than half of | the nominal value of the Company’s i h ital as at 9 April 2020.

the votes cast must be in favour of the resolution. Resolutions §and 10
are proposed as Special Resolutions. This means that for each of those
resoiutions 1o be passed, at least three-quarters of the votes cast must
be in favour of the resolution.

The Directors consider the passing of all of the Resnluuons to be inthe

This authority will expire at thi f the next Annual General
Meeting or the date falling 15 months from the passing of this resolution,
whichever is earlier. The Directors consider it important to have the
masimum ability and flexibility to raise finance to enable the Company
to respond to market development ang conditions. Any allotment or any

best interests of the Company and its shar to allot shares entered into 1o pr
recommend that you vote in favour of these they intend remains valid. The i similar h ced at the
to de so in respect of their cwn shareholdings. last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 16 Hay 20i3.

1- 1 pt Annual Account: ption rights

The Directors of the Company are required tolay the Annual Report

and Accounts before the shareholders each yezr. Resolution lisan
ordinary resofution to receive and adopt the Company's annual accounts,
together with the Directors' Report and Auditor's Report on the
accounts, for the financial year ended 31 December 2019,

Resolution 2 - Declaration of dividend

The Di that afinal dividend
for the year to 31 December 2019 of 4.5 pence per share. The final
dividend cannot evceed the amount recommended by the Directors, If
approved, it will be paid on 22 May 2020 to shareholders on the Register
of Members at the close of business on 8 May 2020.

3. 4 and 5 - Electit Directors

The articles of association of the Company require i ber of

p
if the Directors viish to allet new shares or other equity securities for
cash, the Act requires that such shares or other equil‘y securities are
offered first to existing shareholders in proportion to their existing
holdings. The allotrment of equity sscurlties as referred to In this
resolution Includes the sale of any shares which the Company holds in
treasury following a purchase of its own shares.

9 ask: grant the Di i}a general
authority 1o aliot equity i cashupt nomiral
value of £750,310 (being 16% of (I\e nominal value of the Company’s
issued ordinary share capital as at § April 2020} without first offering the
securilies to existing shareholders,

The resclution also disapplies the statutory p
with a rights i

s provisions in
ue only in relation to th permitted

the Diractors to retire by rotation at each Annual General Meeting. At

the Meeting Kevin Acton and Anthony Townsend will retire. Kevin Acton,
Anthony Townsend and Gareth Davis are each offering themsetves for re-
election or election and Resolutions 3, 4 and 5 propose their re-election
or efection as Directors,

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 44 and 45 of
the Annual Report and Accounts and are available on our website at
m-M.gres‘namnnuse.comlaur»teaml.

Resolution 6 - Reappointment of auditor

This resolution concerns the reappointment of BOO LLP s the
Company's audiler until the conclusion of the Company’s next Annual
General Meeling.

Resolution 7 - Auditor’s remuneration
This resclution autherises the Directors to determine the auditor’s
remuneration,

8- y to allot shares or grant
conversion rights

This resoluti togrant the Directs thority
under ssction 551 of the Act to allot shares or grant such subscription
or conversion rights as are contemplated by sections 55K a)and (b)
respectively of the Act up 16 a maximum aggregate nominal value of
£5,002,066, being approximalely two thirds of the nomina! value of the
issued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 9 April 2020(being
the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this Notice). As at
9 April 2025, the Company held no treasury shares.

under Resolution & above allowing the Dxreclers to meke appropriate
inrelation to fracti other legal or
practical problems which might arise.

The authority will expire at the Company's next Annual General Mesting
or the date falling 15 months from the passing of the resolution,
whichever is earfier. The resolution replaces a similar resclution passed
atthe Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 16 May 2018.

Resolutlon 10— Pumhasw of own shares by the Company
lut ity for the Company 1o
make market purchases ofits own Ufﬂlﬂnfy shares, such authority being
fimited to the purchase of 10% of i |meas=-9hpr|l
2020. The mesdmurn and minimum prices payabie ere also stated inthe
resolution. The authority will only rcised if the Direct
that there is likely (o be a beneficial impact on earnings per ordinary
share and that il is in the best interests of the Company at the time. This
resolution replaces a similar resolution passed at the Annual Gerieral
Meeting of the Company held on 16 May 2019, The Company will be able
1o hold the ordinary shares which have been repurchased as treasury
shares, in accordance with the Act, and reseli them for cash, cancet
them or use them for the purposes of its employee share schemes.

Gresham Houso pic 1 -I 3
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Notice of Annual General Meeting(continued)

Entitlement to attend and vote
1. Pursuant ion 41 of the Uncertificated Securitie:
i the Company sp that only

Company’s Register of Members at:

- 6.00 pmon Wednesday, I3 May 2020: or

= if this Meeting is adjourned, at 6.00 pm on the day two
working days prior to the adjourned leeting,

shall be entitied to attend and vote at the Meeting in respect of the
number of shares registered in their name &t such time.

2. Anymenmberor his or her proxy attending the Meeting has the right
to ask any Guestion at the Meeting relating to the business of the
Meeting.

Appointment of proxies

3. Iyouareamember of the Company at the time set out in note
1above, you are entitled to sppoirt a proxy to exercise al of any
of your rights to attend, speak and vote at the Meeting and you
should have received a proxy form prior to receiving this Notice
of Meeling. You can only appoint a proxy using the procedures set
outinthese notes and the notes to the proxy form. A member may
appoint more than one proxy to attend the Meeting, provided sach
proxy i inted to exercise the rights att: i

s held by that member(the number of shares in

each proxy is appointed must be specitied). The

respect of whi
right to appoint a proxy does not apply to any person te whom this
notice is sent who is a psrson nominated under section 148 of

the Companies Act 2008{the *Act’)to enjoy information rights(a
“Nominated Person’)

4. Aproxy coes not need to be a member of the Company but must
attend the Meeting to represent you. Details of how to appoint the
Chairman of the Meeting or another person as your proxy using the
proxy form are set out in the notes to the proxy ferm,

5. Avotewithheld is not a vote in law, which means that the vate
will not be countad in the calculation of votes for or against the
resolution. If no voting indication is given, your proxy will vote or
abstain from voting at his or her discretion. Your proxy will vote (of
abstain from voting) as they think fit in relation to any other matter
which is put before the Meeling.

Appointment of proxy using hard copy proxy form
6. The notes to the proxy form explain how to direct your proxy to vote

on each resolution or withhoid their vote.

1Fyou have lost your proxy form, please contact Neville Registrars
Limited via email at info@nevilleregistrars.co.uk.

To appoint a proxy using the proxy form, the form must be:

= completed and signed;

= sentor delivered to Neville Registrars Limited, Nevilie House,
Steelpark Read, Halesoven, 862 8HD; and

> recelved by Heville Registrars no later than 1.30 pmon
Wednesday, I3 May 2020.

In the case of amember which is 2 company, the proxy form must
e exscuted under its commen seal or signed on its behalf by a
Director or by any duly autherised officer or attorney.

Any sovier of altorney or any other authority under which the proxy
form s signed{or a duly certified copy of such power or authority}
mrust be included with the proxy form.

Appointment of proxies through CREST

7. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies by utilising
the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so for the
Meeting and any adjournment(s) thereof by utilising the procedures
described in the CPEST Manual. CREST Personal Members or other
CREST sponsored members. and those CREST members who have
appointed  voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST
spongor or voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the
appropriate action on their behal,

Inorder fora proxy appointment made by means of CREST to be
valid, the REST g2 (a ‘CREST P
must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear
UK & ireland Limited's |EUI) specifications and must contain the
information required for such instructions, as described in the
CREST Manual. The message must be transmitted so as to be.
received by the issuer’s agent Nevitle Registrars (1D 7RAI) by
1.30 pm on Wadnesday, 13 May 2020. For this purpose, the time
ol receipt will be taken to be the time (as determined bylhe

pplied to the by the CREST
Host}from which the issuer’s agent is able 1o retrieve the message
by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescrided by CREST.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors
or voling service providers should note that EUl does not.

mate available special procedures in CREST for any particular
messages. Normal system timings snd fimitations will therefore
apply inrelation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. Itis
the responsibifity of the CREST member concermed to take (or, it
the CREST member is a CREST personal member or sponscred
fember or ted a voting service provi to procure
that his CREST sponsor or voting service provider{s} take{s)}
such action as shall be necessary to ensure that 2 message is
transmitted by means of the CREST system nyany oarucular
time. In this CREST b

their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referrsc,
in particuler, 1o those sections of the CREST Manual concerning
practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

'I -I 4 Grosham House ple.
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Tne Company may treat as invalid 2 CREST Proxy ionin the
setoutin ion 35(5a)of the L
Securities Regulations 2001 {as amended).

Changlng proxy instructions

To change your proxy Instructions simply submit a new progy
appointment using the methods set out above. Mote that the
cut-off time for receipt of pro«y appointments (see above}also
applies in relation to amended instructions: any amended proxy
appointment recelved after the relevant cut-off time will be
disregarded.

Where you have appointed a proxy using the hard-copy proxy form
and would like to change the instructions using another hard-copy
proxy form. please contact Neville Registrars Limited, Neville
House, Steeipark Road, Halesowen, 852 8HD. Telephone 0121585
1131{lines are open Mon-Fri 9.00 am - 5.00 prm) or from overseas
+44 121585 1131,

if you submit more than cne valid proxy appointment, the
appointment received last before the latest time for the receipt of
proxies will take precedence.

Termination of proxy appointments.

1. Copiesof the terms and conditions of appointment of the Non-
Executive Directors are avaitable for inspection at the registered
offices of the Company {5 New Street Square, London, EC4A 3TW)
during usual business hours on any we Sundays
and public holidays excluded)from the date of this notice untif the
conclusion of the Meeting and will be available for inspection at the
place of the Meeting for at least 15 minutes prior to and during the
Meeting.

Issued shares and total voting rights
12, Rs 219 April 2020, being the latest practicable date prior to the
pumicalien 0 hxs notice, the Company's issued share capitat
i iinary shares of 25 pence, i
vots each. Thelefare, the Company’s total voting rights as at 8 April
2020 are 30,012,401

Communication
13, Exceptas provided above, members who have general
queries ahnur the Meeting should use the fﬁ!!uumg means of
{ her methods of ion will be

accepted):

= Calling our shareholder helpline on 0121585 1131, (iines are cpen

8. Inorder to revoke a proxy instruction, you will need to inform the Mon-Fri .00 am - 5.00 pmjor from overseas +44 121585 1131,
Company by sending a signed hard copy notice clearly stating your
intention to revoke your proxy appointment to Heville Registrars You may not use any efectronic address provided either:
Limited, Nevitle House, Steelpark Road, Halesowen, BE2 8HD. in
the case of a member which is a company, the revecation notice = inthis Notice of Ieeting: or
must be executed under its common seal or signed on its behalf 2 inanyrelated documents(including the Chairman's letter and
bya Director or duly authorised cfficer or atiorey. Any power of proxy forml.
atlorney or any other authority under which the revocation notice
is signed (or a duly certified copy of such power or authority}must ; to icate with the Company for any purposes other than
be included with the revocation notice. i those expressly stated in this Notice of Meeting.
The revocation noti b y Neville Registra to be published
later than 1.30 pm on Wednesday, 13 May 2020. i,  Theinformation required to be published by section 31KA)of the
. Act{information about the contents of this notice and numbers of
if you attemot to 2 JOur proxy but th shares in the Company and voting rights exercisable at the Meeting
is received after the time specified then, subject 10 the paragraph any members' members’ i g
directly belov, your proxy appointment will remain valid. members'items of business received after the date of this Notice)
_ may be found at www.greshamhouse.com,
Appsintment of a proxy does not preclude you from attending
the Meeting and voting in person. If you have appointed a proxy 15, Members representing 5% or more of the total vating rights of all
and attend the Megting in person. your proxy appointment will the members or at least 190 ither members viho
automatically be terminated. have aright to vote at the Meeting and hold shares on which there
has been paid up an average sum. per member, of £100 or persons
Jointholdersof shares i . satisfying the requirements set out in section 153(2) of the Act)
10.  Inthe case of joint holgers, the vote of the senior holder who may require the Company, under section 527 of the Act, to publish

lenders a vote whether in person or by proxy shall be accepted to
the eelusion of the votes of the other joint holders and, for this
purpose, seniority shail be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the register of members of the Company in respect
of the relevant joint holding.

on awebsite a statement setting out any matter relating to: fi the
audit of the Company's accounts (including the Auditor’s Report
and the conduct of the audit) thal are to be laid before the Meeting;
orii}any circumstance connected with an auditor of the Company

ceasing to hold office since the previous Meeting at which annuat

Lnnua) Remn’ednd uccunxcmu:; 1 1 5
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ts and reports were laid in viith section 437
of the Act. The business which may be dzalt with 4t the Meeting
includes any statement that the Company has besn required under
section 527 of the Act to publish on a website.

Nominated Person

A Hominated Person may, under an agreement between them and
the member who nominated them, have a right to be appointed (or
0 have scmeone else appointed)as a proxy entitied to attend and
speak and vote at the Meeting. Mominated Persons are advised to
contact who i i them for further i i
on this and the procedure for appointing any such proy.

if a Mominated Person does not have a right to be appointed, or
10 have someong else appointed as a proxy for the Meeting or
does not wish to evercise such a right, they may stiil have the
right under an agreement between themselves and the member

i them to give i lions 16 the member as to the
evercise of voting rights at the Meeting. Such Nominated Persons
are advised {0 contact the members who nominated them for
further information on this.

'] 'I 8 Gresham House ple
&nnual Regort and Accounts 2013




